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An Act Concerning the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority and Prohibiting
Quasi-Public and State Agencies fi:om Retaining Lobbyists
FINANCIAL MITIGATION PLAN

Dear Madame Treasurer and Secretary Ryan:

This Plan is provided to satisfY the requirement of Section 22a-26l of the Connecticut General
Statutes, as amended (the "Statute ), that the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (the
Authority ) submit a Financial Mitigation Plan (the "Plan ) for approval by the State Treasurer

(the "Treasurer ) and the Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management ("Secretary" and
OPM"). Pursuant to the Statute, the Authority may borrow an amount up to one hundred fifteen

million dollars ($115 000 000) fi:om the State of Connecticut (the "State ). This Plan is a formal
request for up to $22 million to be loaned fi:om the State to the Authority for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2004. It is expected that any borrowings fi:om the State win result in a loan to be
amortized through January 2013 generally by level payments of principal and interest, an in
compliance with a Master Loan Agreement to be entered into between the State and the
Authority.

Section 3 of the Statute provides that the Financial Mitigation Plan include the following:

. . . Such financial mitigation plan shall include information detailing the efforts
that the authority has made to reduce the amount necessary to borrow fi:om the
state, including, but not limited to, the reduction of general administration and
costs, renegotiation of vendor contracts, efforts to increase the price paid for the
sale of steam or electricity, and efforts to assess the viability of the sale of hard
assets of the project. In addition, the authority shall provide the State Treasurer
and the Secretary with its proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year, a three year
financial plan, a cash flow analysis showing the need for the current and projected
future borrowings, and the most recent certified audit of the authority.



In order to satisfY the foregoing requirements, attached as part of this Plan are the following
exhibits:

Exhibit A

Exhibit B

Exhibit C

Exhibit D

Exhibit E

Exhibit F

Exhibit G

Exhibit H

Plan To Minimize Tipping Fees For Municipalities

Authority Efforts To Reduce Administrative Costs

Authority Efforts To Renegotiate Vendor Contracts

Authority Efforts To Increase Electricity And Steam Revenues

Authority Efforts To Assess Viability Of The Sale Of Hard
Assets

Adopted Mid-Connecticut Budget For Fiscal Year 2004 and
Three Year Financial Plan

Cashflow Analysis Through Fiscal Year 2006

Certified Audited Financial Statements For Fiscal Year 2002

In addition to the required exhibits, included as Exhibit I are the resolutions of the Authority
Board of Directors approving the Financial Mitigation Plan and request of the $22 million loan
fi:om the State. Also included as Exhibit J is the Authority's Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

Executive Summary of the Proposed Loan Drawdown

The Authority is a statewide quasi-public solid waste management authority created by the
General Assembly in 1973. The Authority owns a waste-to-energy facility in Hartford called the
Mid-Connecticut project, which generates approximately 445 megawatt hours of power each
hour and processes approximately 790 000 tons of municipal solid waste per year.

On December 2 2001 , the Authority was informed that Enron Power Marking, Inc. ("Enron
had declared bankruptcy. This was significant in that the Authority had entered into a tri-party
agreement with Enron and the Connecticut Light & Power Company ("CL&P") with regard to its
Mid-Connecticut project on December 22, 2000. Among other things, the agreement obligated
Enron to pay the Authority $2.2 million per month in steam capacity charges and $175 748 per
month in Operations and Maintenance Fees until 2012. The impact to the Authority of the loss
of these revenues is material, as illustrated on the following table:



ENRON PAYMENTS TO CRRA
Payment Steam Capacity Electricity Sales Monthly

Date Payments Revenues Expenses Total
Apr- 200 000 $175,748 $ 2 375 748
May-OI 200, 000 258, 048 175 748 633 796
Jon- 200, 000 652 903 175, 748 028 651
Jul-OI 200 000 175,748 375 748

Aog- 200, 000 IJ22,167 175 748 497 915
Sep-OI 200, 000 219, 301 175,748 595 049
Oct- 200, 000 IJ53 496 175,748 529,244
Nav- 200, 000 Il9,991 175,748 495 739

* During these periods, CL&P purchased elecIricity from the Authority instead of Enron, per closing documents.

Currently, the Authority has three series of bonds outstanding for its Mid-Connecticut project:

CRRA - Summary of Mid-Connecticut System Bouds
Original Par Currently Credit Original Current

Bond Series Value Outstanding Par Enhancement Moody s/S&P Moody slS&P
($000) Value ($000) Securi Rating Rating

1996 Series A $ 209 675 $ 179 775 MBIAlSCRF AillJ/ AAA A11a! AAA
1997 Series A 000 000 MBWSCRF Aaa/ AAA Aaa/ AAA

2001 Series A 210 210 Subordinated A2/A Baa3/BBB

.fMarch 2003

Monthly debt service requirements for these bonds total approximately $2.2 million. The final
maturity of the bonds is November 15 , 2012.

These bonds are supported by contracts backed by the full faith and credit of the Mid-
Connecticut project member towns and two are additionally secured by the State s Special
Capital Reserve Fund ("SCRF"), as noted, as a further pledge to bondholders, in addition to
municipal bond insurance. The third - the 2001 Series A Bonds - are subordinate debt that is not
secured by the State s SCRF and do not carry municipal bond insurance. As such, they have
received downgrades fi:om both Moody s Investors Service and the Standard & Poor
Corporation as a direct result of the loss of Enron revenues to apply toward debt service. Both
rating agencies have expressed concern with the ability of the Authority to set tipping fees for the
Mid-Connecticut project at a level sufficient to cover its debt service, as required by the Mid-
Connecticut bond resolution. With the loss of the Enron payments, the Authority has been
forced to draw down on reserves related to the Mid-Connecticut project to fund operations in
order to meet the Mid-Connecticut debt service obligations.

On December 31 , 2002 , the Steering Committee Report to the Board of Directors and the
Connecticut General Assembly was released in compliance with the Statute. The Steering
Committee Report contained a plan to restructure the Authority and presented a financial model
to alleviate the pressure on the member towns of the Mid-Connecticutproject and the State. This
Financial Mitigation Plan details the Authority s plan to minimize tipping fees for the Mid-
Connecticut project municipalities; its efforts to reduce administrative costs; its efforts to
renegotiate vendor contracts; its efforts to increase electricity and steam revenues; and its efforts
to assess viability of the sale of hard assets. In addition, the required financial models, budgets
and audits are included.



The Authority started fiscal year 2003 on July 1 , 2002. At that time, the Authority had over
$19.0 million in Mid-Connecticut project-related reserves and other surplus accounts (excluding
the debt service reserve fund and SCRF accounts dedicated to support debt service on the Mid-
Connecticut project bonds) that were used to mitigate the cashflow drain fi:om the Mid-
Connecticut project. In addition, through its contractual arrangement with CL&P and Enron for
electricity sales, CL&P provided $7.8 million in escrowed electricity revenues in March 2003.
With the loss of both the monthly Enron steam capacity and O&M payments - representing
approximately 30% of Mid-Connecticut's monthly revenues - the Authority' s reserve utilization
is approximately $2.4 million per month. Without State support, the remaining available reserve
funds of the Mid-Connecticut project are projected to be depleted by July 2003.

On February 27, 2003 , the Board of Directors of the Authority adopted the fiscal year 2004
Budget for the Mid-Connecticut project, which included a tip fee of$63.75 per ton- an increase
of nearly 12% over the previous fiscal year. The budget incorporates a concerted effort by the
Board to incorporate cost-saving measures but nonetheless utilized monthly loan drawdowns
from the State-authorized $115 million loan. The fiscal year 2004 Mid-Connecticut budget
contemplates the use of $18.4 million in loan drawdowns in support of the Authority s debt
service obligations.

In conjunction with yearly tip fee increases and potential other sources of revenues, the monthly
and yearly loans required from the State may diminish over the years. The Authority has
projected the use of$1.5 million in State loans for the balance of fiscal year 2003; $18.4 million
in State loans for fiscal year 2004; $8.2 million in State loans for fiscal year 2005; and $6.5
million in State loans for fiscal year 2006. Full repayment of these loans will occur fi:om the
drawdown date through January 2013. Notwithstanding the current projected use of State funds
in 2005 and 2006, additional deliberations and decisions by the Authority' s Board regarding tip
fees and required loan terms may modify this projection.

It must be noted that the Authority has developed and oversees three other waste-to-energy
projects in the State located in Bridgeport, Preston and Wallingford. None of the revenues
reserves or cashflows fi:om these projects may be used to mitigate the financial strain that the
Mid-Connecticut project is facing. An four projects are distinct and stand-alone projects fi:om a
financial perspective. The Authority is not permitted to use project funds from one project to
support another project.

The Authority gratefuny acknowledges the cooperation and support of both the Office of the
State Treasurer and the OPM with developing the terms of the Master Loan Agreement and the
cashflow models.



Dated: May 2., 2003

By:

By:

By:

Respectfuny Submitted On Behalf
of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Chairman

7~~iA---
Thomas D. Kirk

President

7-~~d~
James P. Bolduc
Chief Financial Officer



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Tab:

PLAN TO MINIMIZE TIPPING FEES FOR MUNICIPALITIES

AUTHORITY EFFORTS TO REDUCE ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

AUTHORITY EFFORTS TO RENEGOTIATE VENDOR CONTRACTS

AUTHORITY EFFORTS TO INCREASE ELECTRICITY AND STEAM
REVENUES

AUTHORITY EFFORTS TO ASSESS VIABILITY OF THE SALE OF HARD
ASSETS

ADOPTED MID-CONNECTICUT BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2004 AND
THREE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN

CASHFLOW ANALYSIS THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 2006

CERTIFIED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2002

RESOLUTIONS OF THE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING
THE FINANCIAL MITIGATION PLAN AND REQUEST FOR $22 MILLION
LOAN

COMPREHENSNE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REVIEW ("CAFR")FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2002



EXHmIT A

PLAN TO MINIMIZE TIPPING FEES FOR MID-CONNECTICUT MUNICIPALITIES

The Steering Committee Report to the Board of Directors and the Connecticut General Assembly
subInitted pursuant to Public Act 02- , filed in December 2002, required a plan to miniInize
tipping fees for the Connecticut municipalities that utilize the Mid-Connecticut project. This
Report detailed several approaches to mitigate the effect of the Enron loss on the Mid-
Connecticut, which totals over $26.4 Inillion per year (or approximately 30% of annual Mid-
Connecticut project revenues). However, these approaches, even if successful and taken in total
would not be enough to fill the budget gap. The Connecticut Legislature responded by providing
a loan in an amount not to exceed $115 million with the expectation that the loan would be used
to help minimize the financial impact on the Mid-Connecticut project municipalities.

Tip fees to the municipalities are being minimized in the short term due to two factors: (I) cost
reductions and (2) the Mid-Connecticut project maintained healthy reserve balances. These
factors, in conjunction with a maximum $115 million State loan would be utilized to minimize
the tip fee impact on the municipalities over the longer term.

The Steering Committee Report anticipated yearly increases based upon the aforementioned
assumptions and facts. Due to continued contractual disputes with the current operator of the
Mid-Connecticut facility and larger than anticipated legal expenses in connection with the Enron
bankruptcy, the Board was compelled to increase the tip fee for fiscal year 2004 by 12%, an
increase larger than previously anticipated and projected. Tip fee increases for future years are
n~ expected to be significantly higher than previously projected, as a result of the more
stringent debt repayment terms that may be required by the State lending authorities.

In assessing the tip fee levels, the Authority considers many elements including:

Debt service payments on outstanding debt. Currently, the annual debt service obligation
of the Authority on its Mid-Connecticut debt is over $26.0 million. Any debt service
decrease accomplished through an economic refunding would have a direct impact on the
expenses of the Authority.

Impact of tip fee increases on the towns. This is a very difficult year for all Connecticut
towns completing their fiscal year 2004 budgets in light of the State fiscal crisis and
current projections for 2005 are expected to be equally difficult.

Estimates of solid waste volumes. There is an inverse relationship between tip fees and
solid waste deliveries as price elasticity impacts delivery volumes. It is critical to find a
proper balance of price and deliveries in order to still attract enough waste volume to
generate the revenue required. Historically, tip fee levels were at a below market level
such that some level of future increases can be implemented without negatively
impacting waste volume.
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Estimates of recycling volumes. Currently, the Authority does not impose a charge for its
recycling activities; however future economic and financial conditions may warrant a
charge.

Electricity revenues. The Authority may be able to increase electricity revenues from
renegotiating its electricity contract (currently the Authority receives 3.2~ per kilowatt
hour, escalating to 3.3~ on January I , 2004) and the use of our electric supplier s license
and acceptance into NEPOOL (the New England Power Pool), which will allow the
Authority to sell it' s power on a wholesale basis into the electric power grid or a bilateral
agreement with other NEPOOL electric suppliers.

Municipal Solid Waste Contracts with Municipalities . The future operation of the Mid-
Connecticut project is considered as contracts with municipalities start to expire in 2012.

Operations and maintenance contracts associated with the Mid-Connecticut facility
Several of the programs and functions at the Mid-Connecticut facility are performed
under contracts that are a premium to market and could be readily accomplished at a
lower cost. The Authority is actively seeking to reduce these costs, which impact the tip
fees directly and substantially.

The Mid-Connecticut project was fortunate to have amassed significant reserves. As noted by
Moody , these reserves were able to keep the project (and rating) afloat during critical periods
when the Authority did not receive monthly electricity revenues from CL&P. At the time of the
Enron bankruptcy, the Revenue Fund of the Mid-Connecticut project had a balance of
approximately $10. 1 million. All revenues of the project are deposited monthly into the Revenue
Fund. Without the $2.2 million steam capacity payments coupled with the loss of the actual
electricity sales fi:om Enron, this fund balance was depleted in April 2002. Subsequently,
monthly transfers fi:om other Mid-Connecticut reserves began in order to cover operating
expenses and debt service payments.

Three other sources of funds were identified (not including the debt service reserve fund or
State-backed SCRF funds) to augment the diminished cashflow of the Mid-Connecticut project.
These funds totaled $25.6 million at April 2002 and were used to mitigate the monthly cashflow
deficiencies of the project. These funds are projected to be exhausted by June 2003 , at which
point, the monthly cash flow deficits are expected to be augmented by the loans from the State.
The loans can ouly be used to support debt service payments on the outstanding Mid-Connecticut
bonds, which total $2. 1 million per month.

The Authority s working financial recovery model currently contemplates tip fee increases
augmented by State loans to mitigate the monthly cashflow deficiencies. In addition, the
Steering Committee Report identifies other potential sources of revenues that would be applied
either toward mitigating the tip fee increases or repaying the State loan. These include:

Bottle Escheats

The Authority supports escheats legislation that would distribute the unclaimed bottle and can
deposit revenue of an estimated $16.4 million to all Connecticut municipalities, including the
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Authority' s Mid-Connecticut project towns. The Mid-Connecticut Project towns are projected to
receive approximately $5.6 million, pro-rated, based upon population.

Authority Chairman Michael Pace, Vice Chairman Stephan Cassano, other Board Members and
President Thomas Kirk testified on March 14, 2003 before the Environment Committee
regarding Senate Bill 1030, An Act Concerning the Escheat of Unclaimed Beverage Container
Deposits, which would return the revenue to the State. The bill was subsequently referred to the
Finance, Revenue and Bonding Committee where it currently resides.

Elimination of Dioxin Tax

Section 22a-232 of the Connecticut General Statutes requires that owners of Resources Recovery
Facilities ("RRF") pay the Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection $1 per ton of
solid waste processed as a "solid waste assessment." This Statute became effective October I
1987. The funds collected go into the "solid waste account", per Section 22a-233 of the Statutes
to be used for activities which include: (I) pollution prevention, (2) stack testing for dioxin and
furan emissions, (3) preoperational and post-operational testing for dioxins and furans in the
ambient air, soil, surface waters and biota in the area of existing or proposed resources recovery
facilities, (4) residue testing, (5) leachate testing for dioxins and furans at resources recovery
residue disposal sites, (6) inspection and enforcement, (7) operator and inspector training, and (8)
staffmg necessary to carry out such activities.

There are seven municipal waste combustion facilities in Connecticut subject to this "Dioxin
Tax." (The facility in Sterling processes tires exclusively, but is regulated as a municipal waste
combustor ("MWC")). The following table lists the approximate tonnage of municipal solid
waste processed at these facilities during a 12-month period, the associated fee each facility pays
for the tonnage it processes and the maximum reimbursement for which each MWC is eligible.

Annual Annual Number of Maximum
Facility/ Location Tonnage Dioxin Tax Combustion Allowable

Processed Units Reimbursement
CRRA/ Hartford 668 950 $668 950 $82 500
CRRAIW allingford 145 665 $145 665 $82 500
CRRA/Bridgeport 722 500 $722 500 $82 000
CRRA/Preston 247 094 $247,094 $55 500
Bristol RRF/Bristol 194 290 $194 290 $55 500
WheelabratorlLisbon 178 707 $178 707 $55 500
Exeter Energy/Sterling 108 616 $108 616 $55 500
Total 2265 822 $2265 822 $46'MOO

Section 22a-233a of the Statutes requires that any cost associated with testing air emissions from
a resources recovery facility shall be paid from the "solid waste account " not directly by the
owner of the resources recovery facility, provided the owner pays for certain other costs (DEP
weather monitoring, initial emissions performance testing prior to permitting, emissions
performance testing following modification of the facility, emissions performance testing ifDEP
suspects permit violation).
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From at least 1993 through 2000, the DEP conducted armual air emissions testing of the resource
recovery facilities in the State, with DEP staff performing the testing for dioxin/furans and ten
metals (arsenic, beryllium, cadmium, ChrOinium, copper, lead, manganese, mercury, nickel and
zinc). The Dioxin Tax was used to fund the DEP' s emission testing activities.

The DEP's Source Emission Monitoring Group ceased performing emissions testing on
municipal waste combustor facilities in 2000, and entered into contracts with each MWC for
reimbursement of the costs associated with this armual emissions testing. The DEP' s contract
limits reimbursable expenses to $25 000 per combustion unit plus a 10% contingency.

Therefore, the Authority estimates that elimination of the $1.00 per ton dioxin tax would result in
net armual Authority savings of approximately $586 450.

Enhancing Interest Income

The funds of the Authority are wholly invested in the State Treasurer s Short Term Investment
Fund ("STIF"). The Cash Management Division of the State Treasurer s Office manages the
STIF. Created in 1972, STIF serves as an investment vehicle for the operating cash of the State
Treasury, state agencies and authorities, municipalities, and other political subdivisions of the
State.

The Authority had a total of $130. 1 million Mid-Connecticut funds invested in STIF as of
December 31 2002. The current rate ofSTIF is 1.44%. One of the benefits of the STIF account
is the daily liquidity of the fund, which provides flexibility in the Authority s treasury and
accounting functions. The Authority is presently completing a reserve fund and investment
analysis to identifY funds and accounts that could be invested in longer-term instruments in
accordance with the Authority' s Investment Policy and Indenture requirements. It is premature
to quantifY the exact additional interest income that will be realized. However, a conservative
estimate on the Mid-Connecticut funds alone indicates that potential increased interest income
could be approximately $425 000 per year ($85 million at a 50 basis point improvement.)
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AUTHORITY EFFORTS TO REDUCE ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

As part of the Authority s plan to mitigate the loss of energy revenues to the Mid-Connecticut
Project, Administrative expenditures have been reduced, as graphically summarized below:

Historical General Administration Expenditures
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Direct reductions were made to the Mid-Connecticut administrative budget for an additional
$137 000 for fiscal year 2003. The reductions were derived fi:om the itemized list below:

. Non-Personal Services - reduced number of copiers, enter lower cost service plans for
copiers/phones, advertising, business meetings; eliminate corporate giving and various
contractual and miscellaneous services

Capital Outlay - elimination of various office and computer-related purchases

Personal Services - elimination of bonus and market adjustment pools mandated by
previous policy; elimination of four vacancies; combination of four positions;
postponement of vacancy fulfillment

Eliminate lobbyist expenses

Reduce use of outside consultants

Limit public education expenses such as radio ads

Implement policy changes for tighter controls on employee expenses

Assume more services to be performed in-house (copying/duplication)
Reduce general office expenses (supplies)

As shown in the above graph, the fiscal year 2004 budgeted Administrative expenditures were
further reduced by 8. , as compared to the adopted fiscal year 2003 budget. Of these
reductions, approximately 75%, or an estimated $440 000, would have been allocated to the
Mid-Connecticut Project.
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AUTHORITY EFFORTS TO RENEGOTIATE VENDOR CONTRACTS

The Authority will recognize more positive cashflow with successful vendor contract
renegotiations. To that end, the Authority is in the process of renegotiating major contracts with
Manafort, Wheelabrator and the MDC. It has also renegotiated all its legal services agreementsand is renegotiating with the law firms employed by the Attorney General's office. Othervendor s contacts will be renegotiated as they expire.

The Authority attempted to renegotiate a contract with Covanta for the 
operation and

maintenance of the Mid-Connecticut Air Processing System ("MCAPS"). As a result, theAuthority decided that instead of continuing this contract with Covanta (valued at approximately
$300,000 per year), Authority staff has assumed the operations and maintenance responsibilities
for the MCAPS. It is projected this will result in a net savings in excess of $200

000 annually.

The Authority is continuing to investigate the viability of replacing Covanta with its own staff
for the operation and maintenance of the Electric Generation Facility ("

EGF") (annual operatingand maintenance costs is approximately $3.5 million and would require a staff of 15 to 20). The
operation of the EGF is initially tied to the operation and maintenance of the Power Block
Facility ("PBF"), which is operated and maintained by Covanta under a contract with a
termination of date of 2012. Safety and efficiency concerns with splitting the EGF and PBF
need to be assessed prior to proceeding.

The Authority continues to work with the Metropolitan District Commission ("MDC") toimprove efficiencies and reduce costs in connection with the Mid-Connecticut facility. As the
MDC contracts represent 19% of the overall costs to the project, significant opportunity exists.
The Authority will insist that contractor costs, quality and performance are market competitive or
alternative options will be considered.

The Authority is also investigating the feasibility of renegotiating the PBF contract with Covanta
to include the processing of the process residue in the boilers rather than landfilling this material.
The cost savings associated by exercising this option could be in excess of $2 million annually in
future years.

Other initiatives include close investigation of exercising the Authority's rights under the ash
disposal agreement with Waste Management to take Mid-Connecticut ash to the Putnam Landfill
under favorable rates.
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AUTHORITY EFFORTS TO INCREASE ELECTRICITY AND STEAM REVENUES

The Authority continues to evaluate a number of options for the sale of electricity generated at
the Mid-Connecticut Project, with the goal of maximizing revenues ITom that sale while
simultaneously minimizing market risk. The Authority has the opportunity to sell 250 000-
megawatt hours of that electricity (formerly sold to CL&P; the "Enron Electricity") on an annual
basis, as a result of the rejection by the Enron bankruptcy trustee of an Electricity Purchase
Agreement between Enron Power Marketing and CL&P.

First, the Authority applied for and obtained a retail Electric Supplier License from the
Connecticut Department of Public Utility Control on November 6 2002. The Authority s intentin obtaining that license was to sell the Enron Electricity at retail (possibly to the State of
Connecticut, as recommended in the Cibes Report). However, subsequent financial analysis
indicated that the estimated incremental revenue to be gained from a retail sale to the State of the
Enron Electricity was overstated. In addition, retail electric rates are currently capped under a
statutorily mandated Standard Offer. Those factors, combined with the fact that the Authority
would need to rely on a single source of generation to serve the retail market (thus requiring the
Authority to potentially become involved with electric futures and hedging to cover shortfalls or
outages), have led the Authority to conclude that selling the Enron Electricity at retail might not
be the most profitable nor the most prudent use ofthat electricity, and that other opportunities (as
described below) should be explored. However, the Authority shall retain its Electric Supplier
License, in order to take advantage of future opportunities in the retail market.

Second, the Authority has issued a Request for Offers ("RFO"), inviting parties interested in
executing a bilateral contract for the purchase of the Enron Electricity at wholesale, to submit
bids for that electricity. The Authority is presently awaiting the results of the RFO. Authority
goals with respect to the RFO are to evaluate the value of the Enron Electricity in the wholesale
market and to determine whether the Authority can obtain a 

firm commitment for the Enron
Electricity, under terms and conditions favorable to the Authority with respect to both revenue
and risk.

Third, the Authority is seeking to negotiate a new Energy Purchase Agreement with CL&P
EP A"), which would include the Enron Electricity. CL&P currently purchases the output of

the Mid-Connecticut Project in excess of the Enron Electricity at 
wholesale; the Authority

believes that a new EP A encompassing the entire output of the Mid-Connecticut Project could
prove beneficial, by providing the Authority with a single wholesale customer with a known
(low) risk profile.

Finally, the Authority has submitted a membership application to the New England Power Pool
NEPOOL"); that application is currently proceeding through the appropriate NEPOOL

channels. The Authority is seeking to obtain NEPOOL membership effective July I , 2003 , so
that it may sell the Enron Electricity at wholesale directly into the NEPOOL Control Area. The
Authority is taking this step for two reasons. First, the Authority wishes to have an alternative
market for the Enron Electricity in the event that the aforementioned CL&P negotiations and the
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RFO are not successfuL Second, selling directly into the NEPOOL Control Area may in fact
prove to be the best alternative for the Authority fi:om the standpoint of both revenue and risk.
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AUTHORITY EFFORTS TO ASSESS VIABLITIY OF THE SALE OF HARD ASSETS

To date, there have been several hard assets identified for potential sale that might be available to
mitigate the tip fee increases. They include:

Sale of the Jet Turbines The Authority is reviewing its options with respect to the long-term
disposition of the peaking jet turbines. The contracts with Select Energy for the output of the
units and with Northeast Generating System for the operation and maintenance of the units
terminates in 2010, with provisions to terminate as early as May 2005. A sale of the units in
2005 is one option being considered.

Collins Building. Hartford . The sale of this building could realize potential revenue of
$400 000. However, this is currently on hold pending a long-term strategy on the future
administrative office needs of the Authority.

Portions of the South Meadows property (a total of approximately 90 acres) may be available
for the Authority to sell. Site remediation, being performed as required by the property
transfer act, is under way and should be completed prior to the sale of any portion of the
property. The Authority is working to develop a strategic plan for the property.

Other parcels within the South Meadows site (currently contaminated and in process of being
remediated). The Authority is working with the Department of Economic and Community
Development and other quasi-publics for development potential and long-term strategic
plamJing.

Gas Rights at the Ellington Landfill In order for the Authority to sell the gas rights at this
site, a feasibility study would need to be executed to determine how much gas generation life
remains, which would determine the level of interest of a potential sale.

Miscenaneous Equipment The Authority has various equipment (bulldozer and autos) that
could be sold in the future. Specific proceeds from potential sales have not been determined
but should be less than $50 000.
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CONFIDENTIAL
DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY
STATE OF CONNECTICUT $115 MILLION LOAN ANALYSIS

SUMMARY OF KEY FACTORS AND ASSUMPTIONS
April 22, 2003

. 100% of payment of "I" from day one of borrowing
Borrowing from FY03 to FYll payment of"P" amortized to FYl2
Interest rate 4.0% Fixed

. FY04 tip fee set at $63. , which cannot be increased
Tip fees are set to bring revenue equilibrium with expenses. Any deficiency
shortfalls are offset by a pro-rata 50/50 split between tip fee increases and
utilization of the State loan
Tonnage delivered to project is equal to maximum capacity of plant (800 000
annual tons)
Assumes 100% of Town commitment continues to be applied to project
(Enforcement Issue)



'. MID.CCONNECTICUTPROJECT ,REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUl\1:MARY

III REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

IIIREVENUES

ACrUAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECrED PROJECrEDAeooo.t D"c" tio. FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06

41-OOl-QOO.4()IOI Servico Clmg" Solid W"'to- Membe", $33 041 418 $35,987 917 141 284 364 $50 564 400 $56,804 40041-1)01-00040102 Servico Clmg" Solid W"te-Con"',,~ $12 039 845 $14 277 083 $15.487,824 $18,967,800 $21 307 80041-001-00040103 Serv"e Cha"", Solid W"'to-Spnt $872,985 $434 000 $272 500 $291 500 $311 00041-001-000-41101 BolkyW"to- Municip'" 594 "72 $1,158 000 $1,813 000 $1.813 000 813,00041-001-000-41102 BulkyW,"e- Conun""i,1 $61 019 $102 000 $85 000 $85 000 $85 00041-001-1)00-41103 DEPCortifiodM'lerial, 620 119 000 $229 750 $229.750 $229,75041-001-1)00-42101 R"ycliog S,I" $1. 135 305 $t.362 825 467,600 11.467 600 $1.467 600
R"ycling Tip F" Royoo",

41-001-000-42103 Metal, Servico Chargo 025 000 230 $5,200 $5,20041-001-000-43101 EI"tr"ily $21 669,715 $14 332 500 $14,462 500 $14 462 500 $14.462 50041-001-000-45150 Mmcollan"", _me $896. 166 $703,480 $536,386 $550 000 $550,00041-001-00046101 Intoo"t Income 606 031 $1,373 500 $354.600 $250,000 $250 000
U"ofRe"rv" & Stato Lonn $18,852 133 $18,421 399 $8,284 400 16,506 413"~/EGF 394 754 $5,759 522 067.737 $6.427 700 $4.102,10041-001-00048202 U" of Bond Proce,,", $403.369 $24 725

rot'" Reveno" $82 733 124 $94 466 960 $100,487.890 $103,398.850 $107.919 588

IIIEXPENDIruREs

ACTUAL ADOPrED ADOPrED PROJECrED PROJECTEDAeoount D"e"ption FY.2 FY03 FY.4 FY05 FY06

4I-OO1-50I-xxxxx Gooe",1 Adnrinffitmtion 100 883 059,005 351.482 974 100 100,6004I-OO1-502-xxxxx Debt Servico/Admini,tmtion $26 597,876 $26 090,243 $26 893.541 $29,120, 142 $30 329,54941-1)01-505-xxxxx W"tor"""port $13, 182 337 610,401 $13.901 762 $14 004 900 $19,547 1004I-OO1-506-xxxxx Reg;onal Reoycliog 370 433 $3,359 688 798 781 $2,499 900 568 9004I-OO1-601-xxxxx W"teProco"ingF,cilily 118 128 758 $21 935,289 $20,316 311 $21,127 800 $21 453 9004I-OO1-602-xxxxx Pow" Btock Focilily $15 886.607 $15 872.887 $16 775,052 $17 051 600 $17 200.20041-oo1-603-xxxxx En"gy Geno""'g Foc"ily 701.008 123 579 461,706 $1,498 300 535,8004I-OOI~O4-xxxxx Londfill - Hnrtfonl $3.969 572 809 319 $4,241 332 010 508 332 9394I-OO1-605-xxxxx Lnndfill- Ellington $273 351 $279,150 $397,181 $402 900 $408 70041,001-6Ix-xxxxx Tr.."f"Statio", 481 367 787 539 242 348 239.400 296.90041-001~20-xxxxx 171 Mwpby Re,d $36,815 $39,811 $40.556 $41.600 $42 700Je~/EGF 676.827 499.950 $6.067,737 $6.427,700 $4,102,300

Tot" Expend".." 196 405 834 $94.466 961 $100,487 889 $103 398 850 $107 919,588

B,l,oco $13.672,710



MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

"EXPENDITURE DETAIL

ACTUAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECTED PROJECTED
Aocouot Do",ip"on FYO2 FYO3 FYO4 FYOS FYO6

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
4i-OOI-'OI- '21O1 P"!a", & O,Ii"",Fo" $10 628 $12 000 $12 000 $12 300 $12.60041-001-'01- '2104 Tol'pbnno & Pog", $19.999 $t9.000 $14 000 $14 400 $14 80041-001-'01- '2111 Ou"id, Copying $44 761 $10 000 $10,000 $10,300 $10 60041-001-501-'2115 Adv,,",ing $13,290 $2'. 000 S20 000 $20 500 $21 00041-001-501-52201 Otlke Equipment $500 $'00 $'00 $'0041-001-'01- '2202 om" Suppli" $7,71' $9,000 $10 000 $10 300 $10.60041-001-'01- '2211 Prote" Clothing/SoCely Equip. $6'0 000 $3,000 $3,100 $3,20041-001-'01- '2302 M"""ttanoo", Smi", $4.648 $18.000 000

$',

100

$'.

20041-001-501-52303 Sub,,"p"o", ",d Publi,,"o", $28
41-001-501-52304 On" - Proc..,iooal O""wOo", $'0
41.()()1-'OI- '230' Bu,in", Moo""", ond Trey,1 $1.'40 $3.000 000 000 $1,00041-001-501-'2306 TnUning $231
41-001-501-52355 Mil.... Reimbun;ement $5,010 250 000

$'.

100 20041-001-'01- '2401 Vehid,RepWr/Mninterumoe $3,239 $10,000 000 $6,200 $6.40041-001-'01- '2403 om" Equipm,nt S'M" $17 237 522.'00 $15 000 $15,400 $15,80041.()()1-'OI- '2404 BuiIdingOp",Oo", $38 83' $71 88' $71.960 $73 800 $7' 60041-001-501-'2415 ilioouds Mointe""", $37,960 $26 500 $26.'00 $27,200 $27 90041-001-501-'2'02 F"'-'Li",,,wr,mU" $531 $2'0 $'00 $'00 $'0041.()()1-'OI- 52'O' CtainWLo"", $6.692 $8. '00 '00 $8,700 $8,90041-001-'01- '2602 Bad Debt ""re"" $10 000 SIO OOO 510 300 $10,600
41.()()1-'OI- 52612 Fu,1 197 000 $4,000 100 $4,200
41.()()1-'OI- 52615 om" T'mpornri"
41.()()1-'OI- '28'6 Logo! 029,79S $1,500.000 '00 000 000,000 000,000
41'()()1- 'OI- 52859 Fimmoiot S6' 000 $66.600 $68 30041-001-'01- '2862 Arbitrntor
41-001-'01- '2863 Andi,"r

$30 000 $30,800 $31,60041-001-'01- '287' I",mn"", Co",ulting. Bmk"'g' S,rv $2'.200 $'4 983 $86 '00 $88 700 $90,900
41.()()1-'OI- "899 OtherCo",wtingS'M'" $336 076 $ISO OOO $150 000 $153 800 $157 60041.()()1-'OI- 53301 G", 86' '00 8'0 $8,000 20041-001-'01- 53304 Eloetrioily $37,531 $4' 000 $55,000 $56.400 $'7, 80041-001-'01- '4481 Om"Furniture
41.()()1-'OI- '4482 Computer lIardwore $15 844 $16,000 $10 000 $10 300 $10 600
41.()()1-'OI- '4483 Computer Softwore $12,297 $4.000 $4,000 100 $4,20041-001-'01- '2853 Infonno"on roehnnlogy $36 000 $80,000 $82 000 $84 10041-001-'01- '7840 All""Oon - Sot";,, 6'7, 221 '08,767 $1,731,'82 800,800 872,8004I.oOI-'OI- '78$0 All"oOon - Over""d 76', 810 $1,474 370 $1.408 590 $1.443,800 $1.479,900

Sublo,", $6,100 883

$'.

059 00' 351.482 $4,974 100 100 600
17. 7.1%



MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

EXPENDITURE DETAIL

ACTUAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECTED PROJECTEDAccount Description FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06

DEBT SERV CE/ADMINISTRATION
41-001-502-55525 Inte""'- 96Seri" Itl, I88 584 ItO,464 441 $9,704 $8,836 975 $7,879 04541-001-502-55526 Inte""t- 97Seri" $238,571 $199 180 $157 406 1113,419 $67 1314I.oO!-502-55536 Inle"",- Ol Seri" $686 623 $686.623 $686,623 5686.623 5686.62341-001-502-55560 Priodp,1 Rep'yorent It4 432,744 $14 725 000 $15,470 000 $16,333 125 $17.373 7504I.oO!-502-55585 Trn"eeFe" $51 354 $15 000 515 000 115,000 $15 000

Lo"" R",'yment
$860,000 13.135,000 308,000

Subtotal $26 597,876 $26 090 243 $26 893,541 $29.120 142 530 329,549
1.9% 3.1% 4.2%WASTETRANSPORr

41-001-505-52409 OtberR""", & M,intcna"", 000 000 000 $2,0004I.oO!-505-52509 T_fer/T_I"'rtSnb,idy $224 256 5229,253 $229 794 $229,800 $229 80041-001-505-52658 Rolting Stook Re""", $750.000 $750.000 $750.000 5750,000 $750,0004I.o01-505-5270! Cont",t Opernting Cbarg'" (MDC) $4. 145,886 083,800 160.900 561 40041-001-505-52701 Con..et Opcrnting Cbarg" (Otber) $1,818 243 $4,478,946 317 300 386,100 490 100
kh Loading $156 702 5159 013 $163 000 5167 10041-001-505-52706 A,h H,uling $402 192 $430.500 $426 855 $437,500 $448,50041-001-505-52707 Con..ct H,oling - Otber $81,935 525 000 523,000 523 600 524 20041-001-505-52899 Otber Co=lting S"vie" $tlO 091 160 000 560 000 $60 000 $60 000
Sublo,"t 57,532 603 132,401 051 762 $7.212 900 $12 733 10041-001-505-52710 Di'po,,1 Fe" - Solid W"te (Tipping Fee,lExports) $5.649.734 478.000 850,000 792 000 814.000

Subtotal- W"'te T""'port $13.182 337 58,610 401 513,901 762 $14.004 900 519 547 100
34. 61.5% 39.REGIONAL RECVCLING

41-001-506-52118 M,"'eting & Public Rel,lio"" $9,931 $40,000 540,000 $41 000 $42 00041-001-506-52202 OffieeSuppli" 511 388 510 000 SIO OOO 510 300 510 60041-D01-506-52302 M.,ocn""cou, SeMe" 732 000 000 100 20041-001-506,52303 Sub"riptioWPubli"tiomIRe( M,teri,1 $112 $200 5200 $200 $20041-001-506-52404 Building Operntio", $5.313 S21 IOO S25.000 $25 600 $26 20041-001-506-52407 PmjeetEquipmentMointe_e $22, 165 514 700 538 000 539 000 $40 00041-001-506-52418 Edue"iun Exllibits M,inteDaOOC 163 535.000 535 000 $35 900 $36,80041-001-506-52502 Fee,njoc",e,jpenoits $14 923 59.000 513.000 !I3,OOO $13,00041-001-506-52652 Eqnipment Repl,ocment Re""", $125.000 $125,000 $125.000 1125 000 $125 00041-001-506,52701 CootrnctOpemtingCha,gee 5802 465 928 $1,076,044 $727 900 $746.10041-001-506-52709 Other Opemting Charg" (Eleotroni" Reoyding) 540.000 550,000 $51,300 552,60041-001-506-52810 Con"etSeMe" 59, 161 545,000 550,000 551,300 $52 60041-001-506,52858 Engineering 541.063 545.000 5100,000 $102 500 5105 1004I-OO1-506-5290t Envimmoentd T"ting 355 500 500 700 90041-001,506-54482 ComputerH"",w,",, 000 000 000 00041,001-506,56605 Cun"rn,tiun 515 000 S25 000 525.000 $25 00041,001-506-57840 Allne,tiun - S,I,ri" $640,962 $720 560 $669.722 $696 500 5724 40041-001-506-57850 AIIu"tio. - Ove"'". 5667,700 $715 700 $532 315 $545.600 $559,200

Subtot,1 $2~70,433 359 688 798.781 $2,499,900 $2,568 900
41.7% 16. 10.



MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

III EXPENDITURE DETAIL

AcruAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECTED PROJECTED
A",ount D",o"ptioo FYO' FYO3 FYO4 FYOS FYO6

WASTE PROCES ING FACILITY
41-001-601-52404 Building Oporatio", $66.867 125 382 $10 000 $10.300 $10 60041-001-601-52407 Proj"'t Equipro,,! M,in"'nao" 555 $10,000 $5.000 100 $5,20041-001-601-52507 P,ym"~ in Lion ofT",... 592 341 $2,900, 197 $2,471 211 $2.533 000 596 30041-001-601-52604 ""0..1/,-",,, $57,453 $15.000 $15,000 $15,400 $15 80041-001-601-52640 1"'0""" Premium $938,555 663,420 567.600 646 000 728,30041-001-601-52701 CootrnotOporntingCho""" 112,859 272 $12,875 750 $13.723 800 $14 066,900 $14,418 60041-001-601-52709 Othor Opornting Charges $884 228 $441 000 1178,200 1178 200 1178,20041-001-601-52710 Othor Opernting Chorg... $290 000 $297,300 $304 70041-001-601-52858 Engin",ing $198 398 1450.000 S57.oo0 $58 400 159,90041-001-601-52899 Othor Consulting S"'.;c... 230 122 500 $15 000 $15,400 $15 80041-001-601-52901 Enviroomon'" T...ting $17,730 $20 000 $25 000 $25 600 $26 200
41-001-601-53304 Elootridly $300.000 $300 $300 $30041-001-601-54482 Compu"" Hardw,re 000 $t.Ooo 000 00041-001-601-56605 Co","""tioo $65 760 600 000 $750 000 050,000 $850 000

C'pi"l Amomatioo
Uon ofSm"l", Fund,

WPFModificatiooR..."vo $500.000 1500.000 $500,000 $500.000
Sub!o"l (WPF) $17.692 389 $20,824 249 $19.609,111 120 402.900 $20,710 900

Mid-Cooo",tiont Air Proc...slog Sy"om (MCAPS)
41-001-601-52616 Fuel $166 192 $635.040 $509,400 $522 100 $535,20041-001-601-52713 Odor - M,into..." Cos~ $270 177 $300 000 $91,000 $93.300 $95 600
41-001-601-52713 Odor- Fil!orM,in!o..mce $176 000 1106 800 $109,500 $112 200

Sub!o..1 (MCAPS) $436,369 111,040 $707 200 $724 900 1743.000

Subto"" $18,128 758 $21.935 289 120 316.311 121 127.800 121,453 900
21.0% 7.4% 1.5%POWER BLOCK FACILITY

41-001-602-52502 FeoslLi,,"'e""ernU~ 1107 341 1125,000 1126.000 1126 000 1126,00041-001-602-52506 Dioxinr", 1695 972 1724 290 $693.416 $693,400 1693 40041-001-602-52611 Revenue Sharing &pc",e (5.05) 410 021 406,649 13,724.713 $3.724,700 724 70041-001-602-52613 Cool
1154 750 1154,800 $154,80041-001-602-52614 Lime $638.700 1739.200 1747.502 1747 500 $747,500 ,

41.OQ1-602-$2616 SNCR (Ure,) 1240 572 $187 500 $208.000 $208 000 1208 000
41-001-602-52702 Cnotrnc! Ops Chnrge - Equipm"t (5.02) 13,612 466 13,725 345 13,753 030 846,900 846 90041-001-602-52703 Cootrnc! 0.' Chnrge - M,nagemeo! Fee (5. 03) 449.082 $1,504 670 11.505 439 543 100 543 100
41.OQ1-602-52709 Contrnct Ops Chnrge - pernnunel (5.01) 175, 183 $4,975,233 15,132,202 $5,260 500 392.00041-001-602-52858 Engineering $133 277 $45,000 165 000 166 600 168 300
4I.OQI-602-52899 Othor Co",olting S",.;c... $5,000 $5,000 100 $5,200
41-001-602-52901 Envirnomentlt T...ting 1207 397 1200 000 1170 000 $174.300 $178 70041-001-602-52910 Continuo", Emi"ionMonitoring 1221 830 1200,000 $175 000 1179,400 1183.90041-001-602-53305 Electricily

1250,000 1256 300 $262 700
4I.OQI-602-56605 Co"'tmctioo (15 234) $35.000 165.000 $65 000 165 000

Snbto"l 115 886.607 115 872,887 116 775 052 $17.051 600 117,200,200

1.6%
ENERGY GENERATING FACILITY

41-001-603-52504 A"...sment T",... 701 008 123 579 455 206 491 600 $1,528 900
41-001-603-53304 Elootricily

16.500 16.700 16.900

Sobtotal $1,701 008 123 579 $1.461 706 498 300 535,800
24. 31.2% 25% 25%



MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

EXPENDITURE DETAIL

ACTUAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECTED PROJECTEDA",ount D"c,;ption FYO2 FYO3 FY04 FYO5 FYO6

LANDFILL - HARTFORD

41-001-604-52104 Telephone & Page~ 099 500 $3.750 $3,800 $3,90041-001-604-52404 Buildmg Ope..tions $11,982 $7,000 $13,000 $13.300 $13.60041-001-604-52407 Pmj"'tEquipmentMaiare...ee $76.425 $49 000 567 200 $68 900 $70.60041-001-604-52415 Gmond, Mamte...ee $273 318 $200 000 $242.500 $248,600 $254 80041-001-604-52502 FeesILieense"'enni~ $16.513 $20 000 514 500 $14 500 $14 50041-001-604-52507 Paymon~ m Ueu ofTaxns $167.050 $127 719 $179,914 $184,40041-001-604-52604 Rontal / Lea" $525 000 $525 000 $525 000 $525 000 $525 00041-001-604-52650 Po",Clo"reRe"'ve $475,000 $475.000 $475,000 $627,608 $692 15941-001-604-52701 ContraetOpe..tingCha",ns $t.490 159 $1,562 100 482 250 $1,519,300 $934,38041-001-604-52709 Other Ope..tingChargns $470 248 $325,000 $408.290 $418,500 $429,00041-001-604-52858 En8mooring $313 523 $158 000 $207 000 $212 200 $217 50041-001-604-52901 EnvUonmenml Tnsting $147.023 $t22 000 $106,528 $t09,200 $111 90041-001-604-53304 Elee",oIly $232 $5,000 $13.900 $14 200 $14.60041-001-604-54482 Compure, llanlwnm
$1.000 000 $1.00041-001-604-56605 Co"'truetion $230 000 $500 000 $50 000 $50,00041-001-604-58001 Contingeney

500

Snbtotal $3,969 572 $3,809,319 241,332 010.508 332 939
-4. 11.3% 5.4% 16.

LANDFILL - ELLINGTON
41-001-6Q5-52407 Pmjeet Eqnipment Mamre...ee $4,760 $4,000 000 $4.100 $4,2004I-OOt-605-52415 Gm- Mamtenanoe $78 218 $61 000 537 500 $38 400 $39,40041-001-605-52502 FeesIL;eensnslPenni~ $144 $250 $250 $300 $3004I-OO1-6Q5-52650 Po",Clo,"",Re""", $55 014 S50.000 $175 000 $175 000 $175 00041-001-605-52709 OtheeOpe..tingChar"" $90, 190 59t.000 $117 281 $120,200 $123,20041-001-605-52858 En"'eering $7,568 515.000 S12 000 $t2 300 $12 60041-001-605-52901 Envirenmontal T"ting $27 434 $38 000 S33,250 $34,100 $35 00041-001-605-53304 Elee",eily $10,023 $20.000 $18 000 $18,500 $19,000

Subtotol $273 351 $279 250 $397,281 $402,900 $408,700
2.2% 42.3% 1.4% 1.4%

rRANSFER STATION - ELLINGTON
41-001-610-52104 T"'Phone & Page~ 208 000

$;.

000 000 00041-001-610-52302 Mi"ellaneo", SeMe" $400 $500 $500 $500 $50041-001-610-52404 BWlding Ope..tions $t4 015 000 S12 000 $12 300 $12 60041-001-610-52502 FeesIL;eense&IPenni~ 750 000 500 $1,500 $1,50041-001-610-52508 MnniolpalSub,idy $5.152 $9.000 $6. 188 200 20041-001-610-52701 Cootraet Opemtin8 Cha'g" $410 770 $344,210 $434 600 $445 500 $456 60041-001-610-52901 Environmeotal Tnsting $716 $3.500 $1,200 $1.200 $1,20041-001-610-53304 Elee",oIty
800 800 80041-001-610-54482 Compurer H..rownm $700 OOO 000 00041-001-610-56605 Construetion $21.902 $6.000 516 000 $10.000 $10,000

Subtotal $458 913 $371 910 $475 788 $481 000 $492 400
19. 27. 1.1% 2.4%

TRANSPER STATION - ESSEX
41-001-611-52404 BuildmgOpe..tions $25 698 $10 000 $30 000 $30 800 $31 60041-001-611-52502 FenslLieense"'enni~ $5.000 350 500 500 $1,50041-001-611-52701 Contraet Ope..ting Ch"'gns $630 191 $409 772 $607 900 $623 100 $638 70041-001-611-52901 Environmental rnsting 367 $3.800 500 600 70041-001-611-54482 CompurerH..roware $700 $1,000 000 00041-001-611-56605 Construetion $38 600 000 516 000 $10,000 $10.00041-001-611-57820 Lo"IAdmini,tration $58.000 $58.000 $58.000 $58,000 $58,000

Snblota! $763,856 $488.622 $717 900 $728 000 $744 500
36. 46. 1.4% 2.3%



MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT REVENUE AND 
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

I EXPENDITURE DETAIL

ACrUAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECrED PROJECTEDA"ount D..,riptinn FYO2 FYO3 FYO4 FYOS FYO6

TRANSFER STATION - TORRINGTON

41-001-612-52404 Buil,""g Oo,..tiu", $52 426 $2.000 $35.000 $35,900 $36.8004I-O0t-612-52502 Foe,jU"",Wi',mri" 500 500 500 500 50041-001-612-52701 Conlrn,' Oo,..ting Chmg.. $600.247 $442 553 $455,829 $469,500 $483 60041-001-612-52901 Enmomnontal T,"ing 621 000 000 100 $2,20041-001-612-54482 Compotor H"dwure $700 000 000 00041-001-612-56605 Co",lrn,tion $3.615 000 $3.000 000 $5.000

Snbtotu' $659 409 $450 753 $498,329 $515 000 $530 100
31.6% 10. 3.3%

TRANSFER STATION - WATERTOWN
41-001-613-52404 Building Op,..tio", $13,582 $3,000 514 000 $14 400 $14 80041-001-613-52502 Foe,jU"",../P,mri" $35,164 $2,000 $1.500 500 500

Muni,ipul Sub,idy (Wutoromy) 
522 500 $22.500 $22 500 $22 5004I-O0t-613-52701 Conlrn"Oo,..tingCh"g.. $548.846 $442 554 $455 831 5469 500 $483,60041-001-613-52901 Enmomnootal T..ting 597 $3,500 $1,500 500 50041-001-613-54482 Computor IIurdwure $700 OOO 000 $1,00041-001-613-56605 Co",tru,tiun 000 554 000 $5,000 $5,000

Subtotul $599. 189 $476,254 $550.331 $515.400 $529,900
20. 15. 6.3%

171 MURPHY ROAD

41-001-620-52404 BuitdingOperetio", $7,731 $10.000 $10 000 $10,300 $10 60041-001-620-52507 Poymoo" in Uoo ofT""" $29.084 $29,811 530.556 $31,300 $32 100

Subtotol $36 815 $39.811 $40 556 $41 600 $42 700
8.1% 1.9%""/EGF

02-001-501-= Goo,..IAdreini'lrntion $567.274 $486 865 $281 691 $511 500 $262 20002-001-951-=

,,"

355 247 $1,253,854 $1.687 961 767.200
02-OOt-952- En,rgy Goo,..ting F..ilily $3,754 306 759.231 $4,098 085 149,000

"""

100

676,827 499 950 067 737 $6.427 700 102.300
3.1% 10.3% 36.2%



MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

ACTUAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECTED PROJECTEDEXPANDED ASSUMPTIONS
FYOZ FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06

Tip F..s MSW Fees
Member $5LlO $57. $63. $78.25 $88.
Contract $51.05 $57. $63. $78.25 $88.
Spot $5Ll4 $48. $63. $78.25 $88.
Recycling Residue $55. $62. $68. $78.25 $88.

Landfill Fees
Metals $75. $75. $75. 575. $75.
Bulky Waste - Connnereial $85. $85. $85. $85. $85.
Bulky Waste - Municipal $69. $74. $74. $74. $74.
White Goods $65. $74. $74. 574.00 $74.
Certilled Soils $95. $95. $95. 595. $95.
Unprocessible F.. $61.00 $74. $74. $74.00 $74.
Cover Material- Charged $3. nJa $15. $15. $15.

Other Fees

FOITous Residue $12.00 $0. $12. 512. $12.
Woodchips $0. $0. $0. $0. $0.
RDF $15. $0. $15. $15. $15.

Power Produetion kwh/ton ofMSW Processed 538 542 562 562 562
Total kwh Sold 426 136 014 455 000 000 445 000 000 445 000 000 445 000 000
Rate Per kwh $0.030 $0.032 $0.033 50.033 $0.033

DeHvery Processing MemberMSW 641 858 623 000 640 000 640 000 640 000
ContraetMSW 229 667 247 000 240 000 240 000 240 000
SpotMSW 16,231
Reoycling Residue 377 000 000 000 000
Ferrous Residue 575 000 000 000
Shredded Material
Wood chips 773 000 000 000
RDF (Imported) 582 000 000 000

DeHveries to the System 890 134 877 000 894 000 894 000 894 000

Hanled Tous (MSW & Reeyelabl.s)
Ellington 065 500 000 000 000
Essex 688 000 000 000 000
Tmrington 755 000 000 000 000
Watertown 117 925 133 000 112 000 112 000 112 000

Trnnsrerto Southeast 894 000 000 000 000
Transfer to Bridgeport 669 000 000 000 000
Export 824 30,000 000 000 000

TransferlExport tous 93,386 000 102 000 102 000 102 000

Total Tons Processed 791 760 840 000 792 000 792 000 792 000RDF Produced 696 667 714 000 693 416 693 416 693 416

Residue
Ash Rate (per Ton ofMSW) 20.3% 20. 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
Process Residue Rate (per Ton ofMSW) 10.
Ferrous Metals Rate (Outbonnd) (per Ton ofMSW) 35%
Ferrous Residue Rate (Inbonnd) (Per Ton ofMSW) 1.3% 1.3% 1.3% 1.3%
Unprocessible Waste - From WPF (perrou ofMSW) 1.3% 1.5%



MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

ACTUAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECTED PROJECTEDEXPANDED ASSUMPTIONS FY02 FY03 FY04 FYOS FY06Hartford Landfill Waste Deliveries tons
Ash 160 585 168 000 166 320 166 320 166,320Process Residue 900 000 71,280 71,280 71,280
FelTOus Metals 590 400 760 760 23,760Unprocessihle Waste - Direct 430 000 000 000 000Uoprocessihle Waste - nom WPF 533 600 840 840 840Metals
BulkyWaste- Commercial 1,279 1,200 000 000 000Bulky Waste - Municipal 082 000 500 500 500White Goods
Certified Soils 200
Cover Material- Charged 070 000 000 000Waste Diverted to Manchester LF

Reoycling Containers 573 000 000 000 000
Paper (total) 308 000 000 000 000Reoyelahles Delivered to the System 881 000 000 000 000

Revennes
Containers (CRRAreoieves 50%) $3739 $45. $40. $40. $40.Paper Contract $12.45 $18. $18. $18. $18.Residue Rate- Containers 03% 00% 00% 00% 00%Residue Rate- Paper 036% 00% 00% 00% 2.00%Expenditures
Container Processing Fee (FCR) $20. $21.34 $21.64 $22.18 $22.Paper Processing Fee (CROC) $19.50 $19. $10. $4. $4.Recycling Tip Fee (Memher Towns) $0. $0. $0. $0. $0.

Municipal Subsidies Fees (per ton)
Canton $4. $4.42 $4.42 $4.42 $4.East Granby $838 $838 $838 $838 $8.38Ellington $2,25 $2.25 $2.25 $2. $2.Granby $7. $7. $7. $7. $7.Simsbwy $8. $8. $8.!3 $8. $8.Regional Refuse Disposal District #1 (RRDD#I) $60. $60. $60. $60. $60.

Tonnage
Cantoo 547 400 500 500 500East Granby 451 650 500 500 500Granby 702 540 700 700 700Simsbmy 823 800 800 800 800RRDD#I Reoyc1ables 864 900 900 900 900
Waterbury (Watertown rS) 355 000 000 000 000East Windsor MSW (Ellington TS) 2,290 000 750 750 750

Transportation Fees Ellington nla $10. nla $0. $0.Essex nla $10.40 nla $0. $0.Torrington $12. $10.40 $12.55 $12. $13.31Watertown $11.60 $10.40 $11.95 $1230 $12.
Southeast Project Diveresion Fee (per ton) $55. $59. $60. $61.00 $62.Bridgeport Projeot Diveresion Fee (per ton) $52. $58. $61.00 $62. $63.
Exports Fee (average per too) $68.51 $69. $69. $68. $68.Process Residue Hauling (per ton) nla $4. $0. $0. $68.Non-ProcessiblelBulky (per ton) nla $226. $0. $0. $72.Ash Hauling (per ton) $2. $2.50 $2.57 $2. $2.



MlD-CONNECTICUT PROJECT REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

ACfUAL ADOPTED ADOPTED PROJECfED PROJECfEDEXPANDED ASSUMPrIONS
FY02 FYO3 FYO4 FYO5 FYO6

Miscellaneous Fees Coal Price (per Iou) $60.50 $62. $61.90 $61.90 $61.90PILOT - BuIkyWaste (per ton) $6. $7. $7. $7.23 $0.
Ash Loading (per ton) n/a $0. $0. $0. $1.00Lime (per ton) $96.35 $110. $98. $98. $98.Urea (per 8Olloo) $1.02 n/a $0. $0. $0.FCITOUS Residue $12.26 $15. $7. $7.50 $7.50

Miscellaneous Data Lime (Lhsffon ofRDF Burned)
Bulky Waste Shredding Expenseffon n/a ula n/a n/a u/aCoal Purchase (Tons)

500 500 500Coal Use (rous) 423 n/a 500 500 500
Urea (gallons per year) 236 105 n/a 260 000 260 000 260 000InJJation Estimate 0.54% 2.50% 2.50% 50% 2.50%



EXHmIT G

CASHFLOW ANALYSIS THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 2006
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Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (the "Authority") was created in 1973 by an act
of the Connecticut Legislatqre and is a public instrumentality and political subdivision of the
State of Connecticut (the "State ). The Authority is responsible for implementing solid waste
disposal, recycling and resources recovery systems, facilities and services. Revenues generated
by Authority operations, primarily disposal fees, energy revenues and recycling revenues
provide for the support of the Authority and its operations on a self-sustaining basis. The State
provides no revenues to the Authority and the Authority has no taxing power. 

In carrying out
this mission the Authority utilizes private industry to construct and operate solid waste disposal
and resources recovery facilities. The Authority contracts with Connecticut member
municipalities, non-member ~unicipalities (spot waste), and commercial haulers to provide
wlISte management services and charges fees for these services. These entities must then agree
to deliver a minimum amount of solid waste to the facilities. The Authority is authorized to fssue
tax-exempt bonds and notes to finance its activities. . The Authority's bonds are generally
secured by service agreements with the participating entities. Authority bonds are also secured
by revenues from the sale of energy generated by the facility and waste from non-municipal
sources. In addition, Authority bonds may also be secured by a special capital reserve fund
(backed by the State) and municipal bond insurance or bank letters of credit.

The Authority has developed and helps uversee four regional waste-to-energy projects across the
State. These facilities in Bridgeport, Hartford, Preston and Wallingford process over 80% of the
State s waste and serve approximately two out of every three municipalities in the State. The
Authority is also Connecticut's largest recycler, having developed two of the country's largest
recycling facilities and a statewide transportation network.

The following Management Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of the Authority s activities
and financial performance provide an introduction to the audited financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 as compared to June 30, 2001. Following the MD&A are the
basic financial statements of the Authority together with the notes thereto, which are essential to
a full understanding of the data contained in the financial statements.

The Authority ' financial statements use propriety fund reporting and reports its financial
position in three basic financial statements: (1) a statement of net assets; (2) a statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets; and (3) a statement of cash flows.
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FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY

The Authority s fiscal year 2002 assets decreased by $33.3 million or 7.4% over fiscal year 2001
and liabilities decreased by $22.2 million or 7.1 %. Total assets exceeded liabilities by $130.
rnillion in 2002 as compared to $142.0 million for 2001 , or a net decrease of$l1.1 million.

ASSETS:
Current unresIricted assets

Current resIricted assets
Total current assets

Capital assets

Other assets
Total assets

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

(In Thousands)
Fiscal Years Ending June 302002 2001

$ 94 241

85,339
179 580
229 151

480
420 211

$ 99 835
103 413
203 248
237 665

665
453 578

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities
Long-term debt outstanding

Landfill closure and post closure
Totalliabilities

47, 137
220 606

548
289 291

201
238 980

344
311 525

NET ASSETS:

Invested in capital assets, net of debt
ResIricted
UnresIricted

Total net assets

037

786
097

130 920

698
514
841

142 053

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS IDGHLIGHTS

The following is an overview of major changes within the Statement of Net Assets during the
past fiscal year:. 

Current unrestricted assets decreased by $5.5 million. This is due primarily to the drawdown
of funds from reserves to cover Operating Expenses in the Mid-Connecticut project due to the
Enron bankruptcy (see Enron and Covanta Exposure section herein and Note 7 in the 

Notes Financial Statements section).

Current restricted assets decreased by $18.0 million. This decrease was the result of:
Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $18.3 million due the drop in revenue related to
the Emon bankruptcy (see Enron and Covanta Exposure section herein and

. Note 7 in the
Notes to Financial Statements section).

Investments increased by $659 000 due to the purchase of a U.S. TreasuryBill.
Non-Current assets decreased by $9.7 million. This was derived primarily by:

Capital assets decreased by $8.5 million primarily due to an increased accumulated

depreciation expense of$13.8 million, which was offset by a $3 million land purchase.
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Other assets decreased by $1.1 million due to an increased accumulated amortization

expense for development and bond issuance costs.

Current Liabilities decreased by $4.0 million. This was derived primarily by:
Bonds payable decreased by $2.4 mi1lion due to two bond issues maturing during fiscal
year 2002: Bridgeport Subordinated Bonds 1991 Series A and Mid-Connecticut System
Bonds 1991 Series A.

Closure and postclosure care oflandfills decreased by $1.5 million due primarily to the
closure of the Shelton and Wallingford Landfills during fiscal year 2002. Subsequent
landfill costs are being funded from the postclosure reserve fund.

Long-Term Liabilitin decreased by $18.1 million. This was derived primarily by:
Bonds pavable decreased by $18.3 rnillion due to regular principal amortization on
Authority bonds.

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority s financial position.

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

(In Thousands)
Fiscal Years Ending June 302002 2001

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Excess before depreciation and other non-
operating income and expenses
Depreciation

Income before other non-operating income and
expenses, net
Oilier non-operating income and expenses, net

$ 157,513 $ 171 518
141 082 137 056

431 462
975 7\0

(544) 752
(10 589 58,313

(11 133) 065Increasel(Decrease) in Net Assets

Operating revenues decreased by $14.0 million in fiscal year 2002 or 8.2% from fiscal
year 2001 due primarily to the Joss of revenue resulting from the Enron bankruptcy (see
Enron and Covanta Exposure section herein and Note 7 in the Notes . to Financial
Statements section).

OperatinJ? expenses; net of depreciation for the same period increased 2.9% due maiuly to
increased solid waste operations expenses.

Oilier non-operating income and expenses. net decreased by $68.9 million at June 30
2002 from the same period due mainly to the one-time settlement income of $59.
million income received in fiscal year 2001 from the Enron energy contract (see Enron
and Covanta Exposure section herein and Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements
section).
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SUMMARY OF REVENUES

The following chart shows the major sources and the percentage of operating revenues for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002: 

Energy Revenue

26.

Other Service

Charges

16.

Ash Disposal

2.4%

Other Income

Investment
Income

Settlement
Income

Percentages may not add due to rounding.

Solid Waste tipping fees (member and other service charges) and ash disposal fees account for
two-thirds of the Authority' s revenues. Energy production makes up another 26.7% of revenues.A summary of revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, and the amount and percentage
of change in relation to prior fiscal year amounts is as follows: .

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

(Dollars in Thousands)

2002 Amount
Percent of

Total

Increase!

(Decrease) from
2001

Percenl
Increase/

(Decrease)

Operating:
Member Service Charges 634 47. 028
Other Service Charges 27,389 16. (2;711) (9.Energy Revenue 246 26. (11 864) (21.5)Ash Disposal 3;945 2.4% 224
Other Income 299 682) (21.1)

Total Operating Revenues 157 513 97. (14 005) (8.2)

Non-Operating:
Investment Income 388 234) (47.3)Settlement Income

(66 841) (100.

Total Non-Operating Revenues 388 (70 775) (94.

TOTAL REVENUES 161 901 100. (84 780) (34.4)

Percentages may not add due to rounding.
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Overall, fiscal year 2002 revenues declined by 34.4% over fiscal year 2001. The following
discusses the major changes in operating and non-operating revenues of the Authority:

Other service charl!es. which represent spot waste haulers, decreased by $2.7 million or
0% fi:om fiscal year 2001 to 2002. The decrease in spot hauler waste is offset to an

increase of $2.0 million of member service charges.

Energy Revenue decreased by $11.8 million or 21.5% ftom fiscal year 2001 due to the
absence of capacity payments due the Authority nnder its contract with Enron (see Enron
and Covanta ExpOsure section and Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements section).
This decrease was slightly offset by increased revenues realized fi:om the Jet turbine
engines purchased late in fiscal year 200 1.

Other Income decreased by 21.1 % or $1.6 million over the saIne period due to lower

recycling sales caused by the declining recyclable commodities market and the general
economic downturn.

Investment income decreased $3.9 million flUID fiscal 2001 to 2002 or 47.3% due to
overall market declines and lower returns on the Authority' s investments.
Settlement income represents a one-time gain of $59.9 million received in fiscal year
2001 fi:om the Enron energy contract (see Enron and Covanta Exposure section and Note
7 in the Notes to Financial Statements section).

SUMMARY OF EXPENSES

The folIowing chart shows the major sources and the percentage of operating expenses for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002:

Solid W~ste

Operations
75.2%

Closure/P oslclosure

0.5%

Maintenance and
Utilities

Project Admin.

Depreciation
7"/0

Other Baud Interest
0.3% Expense

8.4%

Day-to-day Solid Waste Operations is the major component of the Authority's expenses
accounting for over 75% of the expenses in fiscal 2002. A summary of expenses for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2002, and the amount and percentage of change in relation to prior year
amounts is as follows:
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Total Operating Expenses

SUMMARy OF EXPENSES
(Dollars in Thousands)

Increase! Percent
Percent of (Decrease) lTom Increase/

2002 Amount Total 2001 (Decrease)

130 051 75. 427 4.4
565 (493) (12.
619 (577) (8.
847 0.5% (331) (28.

141 082 81.5% 026

975 387 2.3

Operating:
Solid Waste Operations
Maintenance and Utilities
Project Administration
Closure and Postclosure .

Depreciation

Non-Operating:
Bond Interest Expense
Other (revenues) expenses

Total Non-Operating Expenses

456 8.4% 320) (8.4)
521 0.3% (553) (51.5)

977 (1,873) (1Ll)

173 034 100. 540 1.5
TOTAL EXPENSES

Percentages may not add due to rounding.

In general;. the Authority s expenses remained fairly constant between fiscal year 200 I and 2002
increasing by J.5% in totaL Notable differences between the years include:

Solid Waste Operations increased by $5.4 million primarily due to annual contractual
increases to the operators of the resource recovery facilities and plant upgrades to comply
with stricter emission regulations.

Maintenance and utilities expenses decreased $493,000 fi:om fiscal year 2001 to 2002 or
12.1 % due to slightly less expended for construction projects in fiscal year 2002.

Landfill closure and post-closure costs decreased 28.1% or $331 000 due to the closure of
the Shelton and Wallingford landfills.

Other (revenues) expenses, shows the net difference between investment income, bondexpense, property gains and losses, GAAP offsets and use of prior years retained
. earnings, among others. This amount decreased by $553 000 from fiscal year 2001 to
2002 due primarily to a $591 000 decrease in the use of prior years retained earnings for
the Wallingford project.

ENRON and COY ANT A EXPOSURE

As part of the national deregulation of the energy industry and the resultant energy contract buy-
downs, the Authority entered into agreements with Enron Power Marketing, Inc. ("

Enron ) and. the Connecticut Light & Power Company ("CL&P") on April 30, 2001 that, among otherobligations, required Enron to pay the Authority a monthly $2.2 million "
capacity charge" for thepurchase of steam and an additional charge for eonversion of steam into electricity from its Mid-
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COimecticut facility. As part of this transaction, Enron received $220 million and the Authority
received $59.972 million during fiscal year 2001. Enron filed for bankruptcy on December 2
2001 and has not made its monthly capacity, electricity or other payments due since that time.
The Authority, in an effort to generate adequate revenues to pay debt service on its bonds, has
increased the Mid-Connecticut tipping fees, is pursuing remedies in bankruptcy court with the
State s Attorney General, negotiating with CL&P and other parties for increased electric rates
and has applied for licensure as an electric supplier in the State.

Also Covanta Mid-Conn" Inc., the operator of the steam and electricity production components
of the Mid-Connecticut facility, and Covanta Projects of Wallingford, L.P., the operator and
lessee of the Wallingford facility, filed for bankruptcy on April 1 , 2002. Thus far the bankruptcy
has not affected Covanta s operation of either the Mid-Connecticut or Wallingford facilities.

The State is obligated to maintam the minimum capital reserve for the Mid-Connecticut bonds to
the extent the Authority uses monies in the special capital reserve fund to pay debt service oil the
Authority' s outstanding bonds. It is unclear at this time whether there will be any need for the
State to make payments to maintain the minimum capital reserve requirement. During April
2002, the General Assembly passed Public Act No. 02-46 which authorizes a loan by the State to
the Authority of up to $115 rnillion to support the repayment of the Authority' s debt for the Mid-
Connecticut facility. No amounts were drawn down through June 30, 2002.

SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW ACTIVITIES

The following shows a summary of the major sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents for
the past two fiscal years. Cash equivalents are considered cash-on.hand, bank deposits and
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)
Fiscal Years Ending June 302002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow fro!" investing activities
Cash flow from capital and related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

$ 17,209

165
(44 933)

(23 559)

$110 085
8,994

(73 192)

887

Cash and cashequivaIents:

Beginning of year

End of year
177,705 .

154 146

131 818

177 705

The Authority s available cash and cash equivalents decreased $23.6 million JTom $177.7 million
at the end of fiscal year 2001 to $154. 1 million at the end of fiscal year 2002 due to the negative
flow of funds used by operations and decreased investment income, as described below:

Cash flow fi:om operating activities for the fiscal years as indicated above represents the net
difference between cash received for services and cash paid to suppliers. For the fiscal year
2002, this net figure was $92.8 million less than 2001 and was mainly due to an $81.3
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million decrease in cash received from providing services representing the $66.6 million
settlement income received in fiscal year 2001 and approximately $19.6 million in
uncollected capacity and energy payments due from Enron (see Enron and Covanta Exposure
section and Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements section).

Cash flow from investing activities represents the net difference between interest on
investments of Authority funds and accounts plus any maturing investments versus the
purchase of investment securities. For the fiscal year 2002, this net figure was $4.8 million
less than 2001 and was mainly due to a decrease of $3.6 million in investment income
representing the steady decline in interest rates experienced in the market during the year.

Cash flow from capital and related financing activities represents the net difference between
total proceeds from bond or equipment sales and total costs involved with bonding, landfill
closure and postclosure, debt service expenses, and capital acquisition. For the fiscal year
2002, this net figure improved by $28.2 million over 2001 and was mainly due to a
combination of no proceeds fi:om bond sales during 2002 and a $43.1 mi1lion decrease in
capital acquisition costs. During fiscal year 2001 , capital acquisition costs were $50.5
million and represented Mid-Connecticut purchases related to the Non-Project Venture
generation equipment and buildings; the construction of an air processing system; and the
construction of a maneuvering hall for delivering solid waste.

LONG-TERM DEBT ISSUANCE, ADMINISTRATION and CREDIT RATINGS

The following table highlights the municipal bond issued and outstanding as of the fiscal year.
endit;1g June.30, 2002. Also included is the outstanding credit rating for each issue.

STATUS OF OIITST ANDING BONDS ISSUED AS OF FISCAL YEAR 2002

Su.dard & ORIGINAL
Poor Moody' SCRF Maturity AMOUNT PRINCIPAL

SERIES Rati.. Rati.. BACKED DATED Drle BONDED OUTSTANDING

MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT

199ISene.A- R"""lmg 08115/91 11/15101 735,000
1996 Sene. A- Project Retinanomg AAA Ana 08120/96 11/15112 209,675 000 193 170 000
1997 Sene. A- Projeoteo",...otio. AAA Ana 07115/97 11115106 000,000 880 000
2001 Seri"A- PrnjeotCo",...,uon Baa3 01118101 11/15112 210 000 13210000

211 260 000
BRIDGEPORT PROJECT

1991 Sene.A- Recydmg 08115/91 111/02 480 000
1999 Seri.. A - Project Retinaeoing AAA Ana 08131/99 111/09 141 695,000 111 790 000
2000 Seri..A- Refmanoing(Partiall",urnnee) A+/AAA AJ/A"" 08101/00 1/1109 9,200.000 1875000

119665000
WALLINGFORD PROJECT

1991 Seri" One - Snbnnlinated 08101/91 11115105 000 000 000 000
1998 Seri" A - Project RefiMn,mg AAA Ana 10123/98 11/15108 33,790 000 29100 000

33100000
SOUTHEAST PROJECT

1989 Seri" A- Proje" Refman,.ng 06101/89 11/15/11 935.000 2,630.000
1998 Seri" A - Proj,,' RefiMnoing AAA A"" 08118198 11/15/15 87,650 000 77,140 000

CRRA~ORPORA TE CREDIT REVENUE BONDS
1992 Seri..A- Cotp. Credit 09/01/92 11/15122 30,000 000 30,000,000
2001 Seri" A- American Rer-Fnel Company LLC- 11/15101 11/15115 150 000 750 000
2001 Seri" A - Ameri..n Ref-Fuel Company LLC- &ta2 11115/01 11115115 750 000 6750000

123270000

TOTAL BONDS OlJISr ANDING 574870000 487295000

OlJISrANDING SCRF BONDS $277820000
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The ratings of the Authority s outstanding bonds were unchanged during fiscal year ending June
, 2002 with one exception: the Mid-ConneCticut System Subordinated Revenue Bonds, 2001

Series A. Of the three outstanding Mid-Connecticut system bond issues, the 2001 Series A
bonds are subordinated debt that is not secured by the State s special capital reserve fund and do
not carry municipal bond insurance. Moody s Investor Service doWngraded this series of bonds
twice, due to the Authority s Enron exposure at the Mid-Connecticut facility (see Enron and
Covanta Exposure section and Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements section). The other
major bond rating agency, Standard & Poor , maintains its "A" rating on the bonds.

Chronolol:Y of Mid-Connecticut 2001 Series A Bonds Downuades bv Moodv s Investors Service
Currently Original Downgrade

Bond Series Original Issue Outstanding Moody Rating on Downgrade Rating
Par Amount Par Amount Rating March II on March 27, 2002

($000) ($000) 2002
2001 Series A $ 13 210 $ 13 210 Baal BaaJ
(Subordinated) with negative outlook

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 the following bond issues were refinanced:

Refinancing Original Issue
Project Series Purpose Issuance Date Par Amount

($000)
Southeast 1998 Series A Refmance November 15

(Duke) 2001 $6,750
Southeast 1998 Series A Refmance November 15

(BFD 2001 750

These bonds represent a refinancing of two series of bonds for which the Authority serves as a
conduit issuer. As such, they are not carried on the Authority books, nor does the Authority pay
debt service on these bonds.
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DOWLING &
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors
Connecticut Resources Recovery AuthoritY

Hartford, Connecticnt

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of Connecticut Resources Recovery
AuthoritY (a component unit of the State of Connecticut) as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 , and the
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibilitY of the Authority's management.
OUr responsibilitY is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States 'of America and with the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are fTee of material misstatement An audit also includes examining on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management
as, well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects
the financial position of Connecticut Resources Recovery AuthoritY as of June 30, 2002 and
2001 , and the results of its operations and its cash flow for the years then ended in conformitY
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Certified Public Accounlants and Consultants
Marilime Cenler" 555 Long Wnart Drive" New H"en , CT 06511 "203. 787.8600" ," 203.787.8604

Goodwin Square" 225 Asylum Slreel" Harttord , CT 06103" 860241.8962" ", 860.241.9157



As discussed in Note I to the accompanying financial statements, in the year ended June 30
2002, the Authority has adopted Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34
Basic Financial Statements and Management s Discussion and Analysis for Stale and Local
Governments.

The accompanying Management's Discussion and Analysis as listed in the table of contents is not
a reqnired part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary infonnation required by the
Govemment Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary infonnation- However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our andit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining financial statements listed in the table of contents are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements of
Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly

stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued. our report dated
September 23, 2002 , on our consideration of Connecticut , Resources Recovery Authority'
internal control structure over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunclion
with this report in considering the results of our audit.

L/L LLL
Hartford, Connecticut
Seplember 23 2002
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Total Non.Current Assets

EXHIBIT I

2002 2001

$69,705 $74 879

11,683 876

411 086
380 550
519 908

543 536

241 99,835

441 102 826
659

239 587

85,339 103 413

179,580 203 248

229,151 237 665
480 665

240 631 250 330

$420 211 $453 578

$18,373 $20 802
1,317 816

27,447 27,583

137 201

220 606 238 980
21,548 344

242 154 260 324

289,291 311 525

037 698

786 514

097 841

103,883 119 355

130 920 142 053

5420 211 $453 578

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

(In Thousands)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Unrestricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Service paymenls receivable
Accounts receivable

Accrued interest and other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

Total Unrestricted Assets

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accrued interest receivable

Total Restricted Assets

Total Cum:nt Assets

NON.CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets, net

Development and Bond Issuance COSls

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of bonds payable, net

Current portion of cJosure and postcJosure care oflandfills

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Total Current Liabilities

WNG.TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds payable, net

Closure and postcJosure care oflandfills

Total Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Restricted and Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part nf these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

(In Thousands)

Operating Revenues
Service charges:

Members

Other
Energy generation

Ash disposal fees
Other income.
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Solid waste operations
Depreciation and amortization

Maintenance and utilities
Closure and postclosure care oflandfills
Project administration

Total operating expenses

Operating (Loss) Income

Non-Operating (Expenses) and Income
Inveshnent income
Settlement income

Bond interest expense
Otber

Total Non-Operating (Expenses) and Income

Net Assets

. (Decrease) Increase in Net Assets

Total Net Assets, beginning of year

Total Net Assets, end of year

EXHIBIT 11

2002 2001

$76 634 $74 606
389 100

43,246 110

945 721

6,299 981
157,513 171 518

130 051 124 624
975 710
565 058
847 178

619 196
158 057 153 766

(544) 752

4,388 322
841

(14 456) (15 776)
(521) 074)

(10 589) 58,313

(11 133) 065

142 053 988

$130,920 $142 053

Tbe accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

(In Thonsands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received ITom providing services

Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to municipalities for rebates
Cash paid to employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

EXmBIT III

2002 2001

$161,953 $243,343
(140 %6) (128 627)

(559) (1, 150)
(3,219) 481)
17,209 110 085

842 461

889
(677) (356)
165 994

084
255

(112)
(599)

140) 011)
(13 970) (15 224)
(21 498) (27 733)

484) (50 575)
(44 837) (73 112)

(96) (80)
(96) (80)

(23,559) 887

177,705 131 818

$154 146 $177 705

($544) $17 752

841
789 15,464
187 246
847 178

(559) (1,150)

(1,325) 419
171 794

(7) (533)
193 (68)

(611) 229

870
$17,209 $110 085

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on invesbnents

Proceeds &om sale and maturities of investment securities
Purchase of invesbnent securities
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds ITom sale ofbonds
Proceeds /Tom disposal of equipmenl
Refunding of debt

Bond issuance costs incurred
Payment oflandfill closure and postclosure care linbilities
Interest paid on bonds

Principal paid on bouds
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities
Other interest and fees
Net Cash Used for Non-Capital Financing Activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, ending of year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:

Operating (loss) income
Adjusbnents to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Settlement income
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of development and bond issuance costs
Provision for closure and postclosure care of landfills
Other nonoperating revenues
Rebale to municipalities
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable
Accrued interest and other receivables
Inventory
Service payments receivable

Prepaid expenses
(Decrease) Increase in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Entity and Services

The Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
(Authority) is a body politic and corporate, created in
1973 by the State Solid Waste Management Services
Act. constituting Chapter 446e of the Connecticut
General Statutes. The Authority is public
instrumentality and political subdivision of the State
of Connecticut (State) and is included as a component
nnit in the State s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report. The Authority Board of Directors consists of
thirteen full members and eight ad-hoc members.
The . Governor .of the State appoints three full
members and all eight ad-hoc members. Eight full
members are appointed by the State legislature and
two fuIl members are .ex-officio. The Treasurer of the
State approves the issuance of all Authority bonds
and notes. The State is contingently liable to restore
deficiencies for certain Authority bonds. The
Authority has no taxing power.

The Authority has responsibility for implementing
solid waste disposal and resourceS recovery systems

and facilities throughout the State in accordance with
the Scite Solid Waste Management Plan. To
accomplish its purposes, the Authority is empowered
to determine the location of and construct solid waste
management projects, to own, operate and maintain
waste management projects or to make provisions for 

operation and maintenance by contracting with
private industry. The Authority is required to be self-
sufficient in its operation; that is, revenues from user
services and sales of products, such as elecIricity,
cover the cost of fulfiIling the Authority's mission.

The Authority is comprised of four comprehensive

solid waste disposal systems, a Non-Project Ventures
group of accounts and an Administrative Pool. Each
of the operating systems has a unique legal
contractual fInancial and operational structure
described as foIlows:

Mid-Connecticut Proiect

The Mid-Connecticut Project conSists ofa 2 710 ton
per day refuse derived . fuel Resources . Recovery
Facility located in Hartford, Connecticut, four

transfer stations the Hartford Landfill, the Ellington
LandfiIl and a Regional Recycling Center located in
Hartford, Connecticut This system of facilities
provides solid waste disposal services . to seventy
Connecticut mnnicipalities through servIce contract
arrangements. . The Authority owns the. Resources
Recovery Facility, the transfer stations, the Ellington
Landfill and the container-processing portion of the

Regional Recycling Center- The Authority leases the
land for the Essex transfer station and paper
processing portion of the Regional Recycling Center.
The Authority controls the Hartford LandfiIl under a
long-term lease with the City of Hartford. The
Authority leases the paper processing facility. of the
Regional Recycling Center to a private vendor.
Private vendors under various operating contracts
conduct. operation of the fucilities. All revenue

generated by the facilities accrues to the Authority.
Certain. operating contracts have provisions for
revenue sharing with a vendor if prescribed oPj'rating
parameters are achieved- The . Authority has
responsibility for all debt issued in the development
of the Mid-Connecticut .system.

Bridl!enort Proiect

The Bridgeport Project consists of a 2,250 ton per
day mass bum Resources Recovery Facility located in
Bridgeport, Connecticut, eight transfer stations, the
Shelton LandfiIl, the Waterbury LandfiIl and a
Regional Recycling Center located in Stratford,
Connecticut. The Bridgeport Project provides solid
waste disposal services to eighteen Connecticut
mnnicipalities in Fairfield and New Haven Counties
through service contract arrangements. The
Authority holds title to all facilities in the Bridgeport
system. The Resources Recovery Facility is leased to
a private vendor under a long-term sales-type
arrangement until December 2008, with several
renewal option provisions. The private vendor h

beneficial ownership of the facility through this
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arrangement. The vendor is obligated to pay for the
costs of the facility including debt service (other than
the portion allocable to Authority purposes for which
the Authority is responsible). The Authority derives
its revenues from service fees charged to member
municipalities and other system users. The Authority
pays the vendor a contractually specified disposal fee.
Energy and nonmember town revenues accrue to the
vendor.

WaIlin!!ford Proiect

The Wallingford Project consists of a 420 ton per day
mass burn Resources Recovery Facility located in
Wallingford, Connecticut and the WaIlingford
Landfill. Five Connecticut municipalities in New
Haven County are proyjded solid waste disposal
services by this system through service contract
arrangements. The Authority leases the Wallingford
Landfill and owns the Resources Recovery Facility.
The Resources Recovery Facility is leased to 
private vendor under a 10ng-teIUl arrangement. The
private vendor has beneficial ownership of the facility
through this arrangement. The vendor is responsible
for operating the facility and servicing the debt (other
than the portion allocable to Authority purposes for
which the Authority is responsible). The project's
revenues. are primari1y service fees charged to users
and fees .for elecIric energy generated. The Authority
pays the. vendor a contractually detennined service
fee.

Southeastern Proiect

The Southeastern Project consists of a 690 ton per
day n\ass burn Resources Recovery Facility located in
Preston, Connecticut and the Montvlile Landfill. The
sYstem proyjdes solid waste disposal services to
sixteen Connecticut municipalities in the eastent

portion of the State through service contract
arrangements- The Authority owns the Resources
Recovery Facility. It is leased to a private vendor
under a long-term lease. The private vendor has
beneficial ownership of the facility through this
arrangement. The vendor is obligated to operate and
maintain the facility and service the debt (other than
the portion allocable to Authority purposes for which
the Authority is responsible). The Authority derives
revenues from service fees charged to participating
municipalities and pays the vendor a service fee for
the disposal service. ElecIric energy and nonmember
town revenues accrue to the vendor with certain

contractually prescn'bed credits to the service fee for
these revenue types.

Non-Proiect Ventures

In coljjunction with the deregulation of the State

elecIric industry, the Authority currently owns four
Pratt & Whitney Twin-Pac peaking gas turbines, and
certain land and asset acquired from the Connecticut
Light & Power Company ("CL&P"). An operating
and license agreement was entered into with CL&P '
operate the gas turbines. Operating and maintenance
agreements were entered into with Northeast
Generation Services Company to operate the gas
turbines and with Covanta Mid-Conn, Inc. to operate
the steam turbines. Some or all of the .Non-Project
assets may be incorporated into the Mid-Connecticut
Project.

Administrative Pool

The Authority has an Administrative Pool in which
the costs of central administration are accumulated.

These costs are allocated to the Authority's projects
and non-project ventures group based on time
expended.

B. Adoption of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 34

On July I , 2001 , the Authority adopted GASB
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management Discussion and Analysis - for State and
Local Govermnents. The adoption of Statement No.
34 required the Authority to make several changes to
the presentation of its hasic financial statements in

addition to requiring the presentation of the
Authority' s Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). MD&A is considered to be required
supplemental information and precedes the financial
statements. The 2001 financial statements have been
restaled to conform io the current year presentation. .

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and
Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Authority are organized as
Enterprise Funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted

for by a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues
and expenses.
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Enterprise funds are established to . account for
operations that are fmanced and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the

intent is that the costs of providing goods or services
on a continuing basis are fmanced or recovered
primarily through user chaIges.

Enterprise funds are accounted for on the flow of

economic resonrces measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred. Interest on revenue bonds, used to fmance
the construction of certain assets, is capitalized during
the consiruction period net of interest earned on the
investment of unexpended bond proceeds.

The financial statements are presented in accordance
with Alternative #1 under Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, and the
Authority follows (I) all GASB pronouncements and
(2) Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements
and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins issued
on or before November 30, 1989, except those which
conflict with a GASB pronouncemenL

D. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the balance sheets and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Such estimates are subsequently revised as deemed
necessary when additional infounation becomes
available. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, all

unresIricted and resIricted highly liquid investments

and those with maturities of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

F. Receivables

Receivables are shown net of an allowance for the
estimated portion that is not expected to be collected.

The Authority performs ongoing credit evaluations
and generally requires a guarantee of payment form
of collateral. Service payments receivable are stated
net of an allowance for the estimated portion that is
not expected to be collected of $220 000 at June 30
2002 and 2001.

G. Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (flTSt-in/ftrst
out) or markeL

H. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Gains or losses
on sales of investments are determined using the

specific identification method.

Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in the
year the interest is earned, unless capitalized as an
offset to capitalized interest expense on assets
acquired with tax-exempt debL

I. Restricted Assets

Under provisions of various bond indentures and
certain other agreements, resIricted assets are used for
debt service, special capital reserve funds and other
debt service reServe funds, development, consiruction
and operating costs.

J. Development Costs

Costs incurred during. the development stage of an
Authority project, including, but not limited . , initial
planning, permitting and bond administration costs,
are capitalized. When the project begins commercial
operation, the costs are amortized using the straight-
line method over twenty to twenty-five year periods.

At June 30, 2002 and 200 1 , accumulated amortization
of development costs for the projects is as follows:

Project
(OOO' 2001

Mid-Conuecticut 336 179
Wallingford 683 400
Southeastern 516 4.124

Total
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K. Capital Assets

Capital assets with a useful life in excess of one year
ate capitalized at historical cost. Depreciation of
exhaustible fIXed assets is charged as an expense
against operatiqns. Depreciation has been provided
over the estimated useful lives using dIe straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives of landfiIls are
based on the estimated years of available disposal
capacity. The estimated useful lives of other capital
assets are as foIlows:

Capital assets I Years

Resqurces Recovery Buildings

Other Buildings

Resources Recovery Equipment

10-Gas and Steam Turbines

Recycling Equipment

RoIling Stock and Automobiles

Office and Other Equipment

Roadways

L. Other Financing

The Authority has issued several bonds pursuant to
Indenture Agreements with a Trustee to fund the

construction of waste processing facilities by
independent contractors/operaton;. These bonds are
payable from a pledge of revenues derived primarily
under Lease - . or Loan Agreements between the
Authority and the operaton;.

The Authority dqes not becqme involved in the
cqnstruction activities . or the repayment of the debt
related to the waste processing facilities (other than
the portion aIlocable . to Authority purposes). A
Trustee administen; debt service. The Authority has
not guaranteed repayment of debt service in the event
of default; therefore, the Authority does not record
the debt or the related capital lease receivable in its
fmancial state'1'ents.

The portion of all bqnd issues aIlqcable to Authority
purposes is recorded as long-term debt.

M. Compensated Absences

The Authority's liability for vested accumulated
unpaid vacation, sick pay and other employee benefit
amounts is recorded on an accrual basis.

N. Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net 'If related debt, consists
of capita! assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds that are
atIributable to the acqnisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Unreserved net assets represent the net assets
available tq finance future operations or for
disIribution.

Reservations of net assets are limited to outside third
party resIrictions and represent the net assets that
have been legally identified fqr specific purposes:
Reserved retained earnings at Juue 30, 2002 and 2001
are summarized as foIlows:

Reserved Net Assets
2002 I 2001(OOO'

Debt principal payment $11 694 $13 095

Operating and maintenance 336 245

Equipment replacement 185 098

Regional recycling center
equipment 871 1,367

LandfiIl custodian accounts 679 671

Mercury Public Awareness
--ll 

Tqtal mlli
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2. CASH, CASH EQUIV ALENTSAND
INVESTMENTS

The Connecticut General Statutes authorize the
Authority to invest funds in obligations of the United
States or any state or other tax-exempt political
subdivision nuder certain conditions. Fnnds may also
be deposited in the Short Term Investment Fnnd

(STIF) administered by the Office of the Treasurer of
the State.

STIF is an investment pool of short-term money
market instruments that may include adjustable-rate
Jedera1 agency and foreign govermnent securities
whose interest rates varY directly With short-term
money market indices and genera1ly are reset daily,
monthly, quarterly and semi-annually. The
~djnstable-rate securities have similar exposures to
credit and legal risks as fixed-rate securities frOnt the

same issuers. The fair value of the position in the
pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

The Authority's primary investment tools are STIF
and treasury securities.

A. Deposits

At June 30, 2002 and 2001 , the carrying amounts of
the Authority' deposits were $2 586 000 and

439 000, respectively, and the bank balances were
401 000 and . $3 075 000, respectively. Of the

bank balances, Federal Depository Insurance covered
at risk category 1 , $200 000 and $100 000, at June

, 2002 and 200 I , respectively. The remaining bank
balances of $5 201 000 and $2 975 000 at June 30
2002 and 2001

, .

respectively;were categorized at risk
category 3.

Category :3 deposits are those bank balances which
are uninsured and. are either not collateralized, or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, or by its trust department or

agent, but not in the name of the Authority. The
minimum amounts of the Authority' s category 3 bank
balances collateralized at June 30, 2002 and 200 I
were $540 000 and $308 000, respectively. The
remaining category 3 bank balances of $4 661 000
and $2 668 000 at June 30, 2002 and 2001
respectively, were not collateralized.

The following table is a summary of GASB Statement
No. 3 deposits reconciled to Total Cash and Cash
Equivalents (unresIricted and resIricted) at June 30
2002 and 2001.

. (OOO' 2002 I 2001

Total Deposits 586 439

146 618 172 959

942 637

670

STIF

U. S. Treasury Open End
Mutual Fund

S. Treasury Bills (not
classified as .
investments)

Total Cash and Cash

Equivalents
(unresIricted and
resIricted)

B. Investments

Investn)ents, under GASB. Statement No. , are

categorized to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed by the Authority at year-end. Category I
includes investments that are insured or registered or
for which the Authority or its agent in the Authority'
name holds securities. Category 2 includes uninsured
and unregistered investments for which a
countelparty holds the securities by a countelparty'
trust department or agent in the Authority's name.

Category 3 includes uninsured or unregistered
investments for which the securities are held bya
connterparty' s trust department or agent, but not in
the Authority' s name.

At June 30, 2002, investments as defuied by GASB
Statement No. 3 were U. S. Treasury Notes. in the fair
value amount of $659 000 classified in Risk Category
3. At June 30, 2001, invesb:D.ents, so defmed, were

S. Treasury Bills in the amount of $670 000 (with
maturities less than 90 days classified as cash
equivalents) classified in Risk Category 3.
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Co-incident with the March 2001 assigmnent of the
Mid-Connecticut Project Energy Contract explained
in Note 7, the Authority purchased certain generation
equipment and land at the Mid-Connecticut Project
for a total value of$35 087 000.

A surmnary of capital assets at June 30, 2002 and
200 I is presented as follows:

Classification
(OOO' 2002 I 2001

Land $27 774 $24 833

Plant 198 651 184 941

Equipment 192 818 193 903

Construction in progress ---1Q 10314

Subtotal 419 273 413 991

Less accumulated
depreciation (190.122) (176326)

Capitatassets, net m2.ill

Interest is capitalized on assets acquired with tax-
exempt debt The amount of interest to be capitalized
is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred
from the date of borrowing until completion of the
projects with . interest earned on invested proceeds
over the same period During fiscal 2002 and 2001
there was no interest capitalized in capital assets.

4. LONG- TERM DEBT

The principal long-term obligations of the Authurity
are special obligation revenue bonds issued to fmance
the design, development and construction of
resources recovery and recycling facilities and
landfills throughout the State. These bonds are paid
solely from the revenues generated from the
operations of the projects and other receipts, accounts

and monies pledged in the respective bond
indentures.

In January 2001 , the Authority issued $13 210 000
Mid-Connecticut 200 i Series A bonds. The proceeds
Were used towards the construction of (i) a
maneuvering hall for delivering solid waste and (ii)
an air processing system at the. Mid-Connecticut
facility.

In August 2000, the Authority issued $9 200 000
Bridgeport 2000 Series A bonds with an average

interest rate of 5.0%. The proceeds of the 2000
bonds, together with $1 268 000 of other Authority
funds ($1 145 000 resIricted) were deposited into an
irrevocable trust These amounts were used to refund
$10 260 000 of Bridgeport 1989 Series A bonds
which had an average interest rate 00.5%.

The Bridgeport refunding resulted in a difference of
$112 000 between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt. The amount is being
chatged to interest expense through fiscal year 2009
using the proportionate-to-stated interest method.
This refunding is reducing the Authority's total debt
service payments by $2 647 000 through fiscal 2009
and generated an economic gain (the difference
between the present values of the debt service
payments of the old and new bonds) of$755 000.

As of June 30, 2002, the Authority has no outstanding
balance of the defeased Bridgeport 1985 Series A and
B bonds.

In January 1999, the Authority defeased the
Southeastern 1988 Landfill bonds which had an
outstanding principal balance of $2 445 000, by
depositing $2 573 000 ($1 689 000 of resIricted
funds) into an irrevocable trust. Debt service
payments for the .defeased bonds were made from this
trust through the final matority date of November 15
2000.
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The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt recorded by the Authority as of June 30 , 2002, including interest
payments of$80 198 000, are as follows:

Total

2003 13,750 605 556 462 057 430

2004 512 651 327 507 034 031

2005 320 696 351 555 948 870

2006 16,298 761 126 609 758 )52

2007 17,463 860 653 666 524 166

2008-2012 002 672 391 255 672 132 992

2013-2016 31934 2..22l !.W. 36 136

Total m.lli lli2.m
Interest Rates 25- 25% 5.5% 63- 85% 125-

Certain of the Authority's bonds are secured by
special capit3r reserVe funds. Each fund is equal to
the highest annual amount of debt service remaining
on the issue. The State is contingently liable to
restore any deficiencies that exist in these funds in
anyone year in the event that the Authority must
draw from the reserve fund. Certain Authority bonds
are insured. Bond principal amounts recorded as
long-term debt atJune 30, 2002 and 2001 , which are
backed by a special capital reserve fund, are asfollows: 

Project
(OOO' 2002 2001

Mid-Connecticut $194,565 $208 578

Bridgeport 230

Southeastern 10051 10.474

Total

The long-tenn debt amounts fot the Projects in the
two tables above have been reduced by the deferred
loss (gain) on refunding of bon~ net of the
unamortized premium on the sale of bonds at June 30
2002 and 2001 , as follows:

Project
(000' 2002 2001

Deferred loss (gain):

Mid-Connecticut 485 $4,102
Bridgeport (81) (102)
Wallingford
Southeastern 2111 2.394

Subtotal 567 461

Reduced by unamortized
premium:

Mid-Connecticut (504) (556)
Bridgeport (60) (77)
Southeastern C1ffi (1,074)

Net Reduction
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5. LON~ TffimM LMBILnnES FOR
CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE
CARE OF LANDFILLS

Federal, State and local regulations require the
Authority to place fmal cover on its landfilIs when it
stops accepting waste (including ash) and to perform
certain maintenance and monitoring functions for
periods .wlrich may extend to thirty years after
closure.

GASB Statement No. 18 "Accounting for Municipal
Solid Waste LandfilI Closure and Postclosure Care
Costs", applies to closure and postclosure care costs
which are paid near or after the date a landfilI stops
a"""pting waste. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 1&, the Authority reports a portion of

Project/LandfilI
(ooO'

Liability

July I
2000

Expense

these closure and postclosure care costs . as an
operating expense in each period based on landfilI
capacity used as of the balance sheet date. This

amount increases the liability on the balance sheet for
closure and postclo.sure care of landfills. These costs
are generalIy paid when the landfilI is closed and may
continue for up to thirty years thereafter. The liability
for these costs is reduced when these costs are
actually incurred.

Actual. costs may be lrigher due to inflation 
changes in permitted capacity, technology or
regulation.

The closure and postclosure care expenses and the
amounts paid or accrued for fiscal 200 1 and 2002 for
the landfills, are presented separately in the following
table:

Paid or
Accrued

Liabilityat 
June 30

2001
Expense

Paid or
Accrued

Liability

June 30
2002

Mid-Connecticut:

Hartford 312 ($199) 113 $193 $4,306
Ellington 320 114 (235) 199 393 (211) 381

Bridgeport:

Shelton 381 985 551) 1~,815 404 506) 713

Waterbury 607 (91) 516 (4) 512
Wallingford 372 ..lill1 4.517 ill2l (423) 3955

otal u.m $M1
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The estimated remaining costs to be recognized in the future as closure and postclosure care of landfills expense, the
percent of landfill capacity used and the remaining years of life for open landfills at June 30, 2002, are scheduled
below:

ProjectlLandfill Remaining Costs to Capacity Used Estimated Years of Remaining 

(Ooo' be Recognized Landfill Area Landfill Area Life
Ash Other Ash Other

Mid-Connecticut-
Hartford 451 42% 95% 1.0

Bridgeport-Waterbury 68% 13.

Total 1Wl

The State of Connecticut Department of
Environmental Protection (DEP) requires that certain
financial assurance mechanisms be maintained by the
Authority to ensure payment of closure and

postclosure costs related to certain .landfills.
Additionally, DEP requires that the Authority budget
for anticipated closure costs for Mid-cOnnecticut'
Hartford Landfill.

Trust accounts were held for financial assurance

pwposes. The Mid-Connecticut Ellington Landfill
account was valued at $407 000 and $402 000 at June

, 2002 and 2001 , respectively. The Bridgeport

Waterbury Landfill account was valued at $145 000
and $143 000 at June 30, 2002 and 2001

fespectively. The Wallingford Landfill account was

valued at $127 000 and $126 000 at June 30, 2002
and 2001 , respectively. These trust accounts are

reflected as resIricted assets on the balance sheet.

At June 30, 2002 and 2001, a letter of credit for

$305 000 was outstanding for financial assurance of
the Bridgeport Shelton Landfill. No funds were
drawn on this letter during fiscal year 2002.

In addition to the above accounts and letters of credit
the Authority satisfies certain financial assurance
requirements at June 30, 2002 and 2001 by meeting
specified criteria pursuant to Section 258.74 of the
federal Environmental Protection Agency Subtitle D
regulations.

6. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Steam and elecIricity revenues from the CL&P
totaled 12% and 26% of the Authority's operating
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001
respectively-

Service charges revenues, from Waste Management of
Connecticut, Inc. ' totaled i I % and 10% of the
Authority' s operating revenues for the years ended
June 30, 2002 and 2001, respeclively.

7. SEITLEMENT INCOME

In March 2001 , CL&P assigned the Mid-Connecticut
Project energy contract to Enron Power Marlceting
1nc.- The Authority and Enron Power Marlceting Inc.
amended the contract to include payment for the
purchase of capacity and energy from the Mid-
Connecticut Project This transaction yielded
$59 972 000 of settlement income in the Non-Project
Ventures group of accounts.

In Jnne 2000, the Authority entered into an Operating
and License Agreement with CL&P to operate certain
gas turbines. The proceeds from the operation of the
units were held in escrow until March 2001. In
March 2001 , in conjunction with the purchase
discussed in Note 3, the escrowed proceeds of

619 000 were transferred to the Authority as
settlement income in the Non-Project Ventures group
of accounts.
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During both fiscal 2001 and 2000
, the Authority

received $250 000 from the Southeastern Project's
regional authority. These payments resulted nom
agreements entered into in fiscal 1996 between the
regional authority and private entities.

8. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Authority is the Administrator of its 401(k)
Employee Savings Plan. This defined contnlmtion
retirement plan covers aU eligible staff members. To
be eligible, . the staff member must be 18 years of age
and have been a full time employee for six months.

Under the Amended and Restated 401(k) Employee
Savings Plan, effective July I, 2000, Authority
conIributions are 5 percent of payroll with a dollar for
dollar match of employees' contnoutions up to 5
percent. Authority conIributions for the years ended
June 30, 2002 and 2001 amounted $299 000 and
$279 000 'respectively. Employees conIributed
$252 000 to the plan in fiscal 2002 and $240 000 in
fisca12001.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss
related to: torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees;
and, natural disasters. The Authority purchases
commercial insurance for all insurable risks of loss.
There were no significant reductions in insurance
coverage from the prior year. Settled clainxs have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

The Authority is a member of the Connecticut
Iuterlocal Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), an
unincorporated association of Connecticut local public
agencies, which was fonned in 1980 by the
Connecticut Conference of Municipalities for the
purpose of establishing. and administering an interlocal
risk management program. pursuant to the provisions of
Section 7-479a et. Seq. of the Connecticut General

Statutes.

The Authority is a member of CIRMA' s Workers
Compensation Pool, a risk sharing pool, which was
begun on July I , 1980. The Workers ' Compensation

Pool provides statutory benefits pursuant to the
provisions of the Connecticut Workers
Compensation Act. The coverage is a guaranteed
cost program. The deposit contnoutions (premiums)

paid were $27 000 and $16 000 for the years ended
June 30 2002 and 2001 , respectively. The premiums
are subject to payroU audit at the close of the

coverage period. C\RMA' s Workers ' Compensation
Pool retains $750 000 per occurrence and purchases

reinsurance above tlxat amount which is unlimited.

10. COMMITMENTS

The Authority has various operating leases for office
space, land, landfills and office equipment. For the
years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 , operating lease
payments totaled $949 000 and $1 340 000
respectively. Future minimum rental conunitments
under noncancelable operating leases as of June 30
2002 are as follows: .

Fiscal Year
(OOO' s) . Amount

2003 $919

2004 912

2005 934

2006 947

2007 950

Thereafter

Total

The Authority leases the Bridgeport Regional
Recycling Center and its equipment to . a private
vendor. Under. this. operating lease, the Authority
earned rental income of $1 093 000 and $1 115 000
for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001
respectively. The cost of the plant and equipment

under lease is $3 025 000 and $1 909 000
respectively, at June 30, 2002. The carrying value at
June 30, 2002 of this plant and equipment under lease
is $1 607 000 and $69 000, respectively. The future
minimum rental income on non-cance1able leases at
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June 30, 2002 is $6 395 000 due in fiscal years 2003
through 2008 in equal annual amounts of$1 ,066 000.
During fiscal 2001, the Authority contracted to
construct an air processing system for the Mid-

Connecticut facility. At June 30, 2002, the remaining
amount to complete the construction contract was
$124 000.

In June 2001 , the Authority authorized the purchase of
three parcels adjacent to the Mid-Connecticut
Ellington Landfill for the approxinxate amount 

$900 000. The purchase of all three parcels had
occurred in fiscal 2002. The Administration Project
provided the funds for these purchases.

In DeCember 2000, the Authority authorized
purchasing land adjacent to the WaI1ingfordlandfill

for approximately $1 850 000 plus legal fees. The
purchase had occurred in fiscaJ.2002.

11. OTHER FINANCING

The Authority has issued several bonds pursuant to
Indenture Agreements to fund the coustruction of
waste processing facilities by an independent
contractor/operator. The revenue bonds are issued by
the Authority to lower the cost of borrowing for the
contractor/operator of the projects. The Authority
does not become involved in the construction
activities, and construction requisitions by the
contractor are made from various trustee accounts-

The Authority does not become involved in the
repayment of debt on these issues except for the
portion of the bonds allOCable to Authority purposes.

In the event of default, and except in cases where the
State has a contingent liability discussed below, the

payment of debt is not guaranteed by the Authority or
the State. Therefore, the Authority does not record the
assets and liabilities related to these bond issues in its
financial statements. The amounts of these bond issues
outstanding at June 30, 2002 (excluding portions
allocable to Authority purposes) are as follows:

Proiect (OOO' I Amount

Bridgeport - 1999 Series A

Wallingford- 1998 Series A

Southeastern -

1992 Series A (Corp. Credit)

1998 Series A (project)

2001 Series A (American Ref-Fuel
Company LLC - I)

2001 Series A (American Ref-Fuel
ComPany LLC - II)

Total

$107.560

24.644

000

555

750

750

112.055

The Southeastern 1998 Series A Project bond issue is
secured by a special capital reserve fund. The State is
contingently liable for any deficiencies in the special
capital reserve fund for this bond issue, as explained
in Note 4.

12, SERVICE CONTRACT
COMMITMENTS

The Authority has various contracts with the
operators of the waste processing and power block
facilities, regioual recycling centers, transfer stations
and landfills under various tenns and conditions
expiring through November 2015. Generally,
operating charges are derived from various factors
such as tonnage processed, energy produced and

certain pass-through operating costs.

The approximate amount of contract operating charges
included in solid waste operations and maintenance

and utilities expenses for the years. ended June 30
2002 and 2001 are as follows:
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Project (OOO' 2002 2001 13. SEGMENT INFORMATION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Mid-Connecticut $38 544 $38 898
The Authority has four opemting 

enterprise funds
Bridgeport 943 450 which are intended to be self-supporting through

service fees charged to operate resources recovery
Wallingford 483 390 and recycling facilities. The Authority also has a

non-project ventures enterprise fund, established in
Southeastern 840 978 fiscal 2001 , that is intended to be self-suPPorting

primarily through certain energy revenues.
Non.Project Ventures 4.141 addition, the Authority has an Administrative Pool.

Financial segment information is presented below as
Total of and for the year ended June 30, 2002.

Mid- Bridge- WaIling- South- Non-
Connecticut port ford eastern Project Total

Project Project Project Project Ventures 2002

Operating . ~ues $71 799 $45 165 $21 573 $10 462 514 $157 513
Depreciationand

amortization
expense 330 073 324 448 563 237 975

Operating income (loss) 054) (931) 207 (1,774) 273 (265) (544)
Net income (loss) (13 670) (286) 830 284) 156 879) (11 133)

Operating transfers:

Out
042) 042)962 080

042

Capital Assets:

Additions 407 980 553

Deletions 025) (0) (246) (2) (2,273)
Bonds payable

(including current
portion) 208 279 245 404 051 238 979

Total net assets 929 697 423 815 023 033 130 920
Net working capital

(deficiency) 835 975 909 130 065 529 132 443
Total Assets $259 341 $33 694 $33 527 $19 712 $63 023 $10 824 $420,211
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14. CONTINGENCIES

In September 2001 , the Authority began to arbitrate a
vendor s $5,000 000 claim for costs over the
contracted amount to construct the Mid-Connecticut
air processing system. At present, the parties are
attempting to settle the matter without future
arbitration. The Authority has recognized a liability
of$1 084 000.

In May 2001, BridgepOrt Resco filed a demand for
arbitration seeking a declaratory judgment that it is
entitled to approximately $9 000 000 of savings ftom
an August 1999 bond refmancing- The parties are
attempting to settle this claim. In the opinion of
management and its outside counsel, the amount of

: any liability is currently not determinable.

In August 1999, the Authority terminated an
operating contract with a former operator of the
methane collection system at the Shelton landfill for
system failure and methane gas leak. In November
1999, the operator was placed in the involuntary
bankruptcy and. then filed an adversary proceeding
against the Authority for improperly terminating the

contract and is seeking damages in excess of

800 000 and punitive damages in an unspecified
amounL The Authority has denied all material
allegations and has counterclaimed for breach of
contract, negligence statutory violations and

declaratory relief. The Authority seeks declaratory

relief, compensatory damages, indemnification and
punitive damages, The Irial on liability alone is
scheduled for the end of October 2002. Management
believes that the outcome of the above matter will not
have a material adverse effect on the Authority'
financial position.

The Authority is subject to numerous federal state
and local enviromnental and other regulatory laws

and regulation and management believes it is in

substantial compliance with all such governmental

laws and regulations

The Authority is involved in other legal and
administrative proceedings and claims of various
types. While any litigation contains an element of
uncertainty, based upon the opinions of outside
counsel, management presently believes that the
outcome of these proceedings and claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the Authority'
fmancial position.

15. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

In connection with the restructuring of the state
elecIric industry, in March 200 I , Connecticut Light &
Power Company (CL&P) assigued its Mid-
Connecticut energy agreement with the Authority to
Enron Power Marketing, lnc. (Enron). Enron was

obligated to pay the Authority a monthly "capacity
charge" for the purchase of steam and an additional
charge for conversion of steam into elecIricity. The
capacity charge was significantly above current
market prices. Enro~ filed for bankruptcy on
December 2 2001 and has not made its capacity or
electricity payntents since that time. It is unlikely that
Enron will make its other required payments to the
Authority. Therefore, management has decided not to
record the amounts due ftom Enron on the
Authority's financial statements. The Authority, in an
effort to generate adequate revenues to pay debt
service on its bonds for the Mid-Connecticut facility,
is considering renegotiating the rate at which CL&P
pays for the Authority's power, as well as pursing
remedies in bankruptcy court. The Authority has
been working with CL&P, The US Attorney's Office
and bankruptcy counsel to resolve this issue as soon
as possible.

ln addition Covanta Mid-Connecticut, lnc.
Covanta") operator of the steam and electricity

production components of the Mid-Connecticut
facility, filed for bankruplcy on April I , 2002. Thus
far the bankruptcy has not affected Covanta'
operation of the Mid-Connecticut facility and it
appears that Covanta will continue to operate without
any foreseeable problems relating to the bankruptcy.

During April 2002, the General Assembly passed

Public Act No. 02-46 authorizing a loan by the State to
the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority of up
to $115 million to support the repayment of the

Authority's debt for the Mid-Connecticut facility and
to minimize the amount of tipping fee increases

chargeable to the towns which use the Mid-
Connecticut facility. The Authority is looking into
ways in which to utilize these monies to repay the Mid-
Connecticut debt and to minimize the tipping fees for
Mid-ConnecticuL As of June 30, 2002, the Authority
had not drawn upon these funds.
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RESOLUTIONS OF THE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING THE
FINANCIAL MITIGATION PLAN AND REOUEST FOR $22 MILLION LOAN

EXHIBIT I



As approved by Finance
Committee on 4/10/03

and approved by the Board
Of Directors on 4/17/03

SUPPLEMENTAL
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY
TO AUTHORIZE AN INTERIM FINANCING FROM THE

STATE OF CONNECTICUT FOR THE BENEFIT OF
THE MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT

WHEREAS , the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (the "Authority") has been
duly established and constituted as a body politic and corporate, constituting a public
instrumentality and political subdivision of the State of Connecticut (the "State ), to carry out the
purposes of Chapter 446e of the Connecticut General Statutes, Sections 22a-260 et. seq. , as the
same has been amended and modified by Public Act No. 02-46 (the "Act" and, collectively with
Sections 22a-260 et. seq. of the Connecticut General Statutes, the "Statute ); and

WHEREAS, on February 27 2003 , the Board of Directors of the Authority approved a
resolution (the "February 2003 Resolution ) authorizing the Officials of the Authority, namely
the Steering Committee of the Board, the President and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Authority, to submit an application to the State Treasurer and the Secretary of OPM, in the name
of and on behalf of the Authority, in connection with the extension by the State of a loan to the
Authority in an aggregate amount not to exceed $115 000 000 to support the repayment of debt
issued by the Authority on behalf of the Mid-Connecticut Project (the "Financing ); and

WHEREAS, Section 5 of such February 2003 Resolution further authorized the
Officials, prior to the finalization of the proposed Financing, to enter into an interim financing
arrangement with the State (the "Interim Financing ); and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to enter into an Interim Financing arrangement with
the State, substantially upon the terms and conditions authorized in this Supplemental
Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Authority:

Section 1. That the action of the Officials of the Authority, in entering into an Interim
Financing arrangement with the State of Connecticut in the form of a loan in an amount not to
exceed $22 000 000, be and the same is hereby authorized and approved.

Section 2. That the loanfi:om the State shall provide for the Authority to request
advances from the State through June 30, 2004 in an amount not to exceed $22 000 000, the
proceeds of which shall be expended by the Authority to support the repayment of debt service
on the Mid-Connecticut Project during the remainder of the Authority s fiscal year 2003 and
fiscal year 2004, and shall further provide for an amortization schedule setting forth the
repayment of such loan through December 1 , 2012.



Section 3. The Officials are authorized and directed to perform and take such other
actions as may be desirable, necessary, proper or convenient to accomplish the intent and
purposes expressed herein, and the performance thereof by such Officials shall be conclusive as
to the approval by the Authority of the terms thereof.

Section 4. This supplemental resolution shall take effect immediately, and shall
supplement and modifY the February 2003 Resolution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all other
terms and provisions of the February 2003 Resolution shall remain in full force and effect.

BPRT /68305 .2/CGB/4 7363 7v 3



Adopted by the Board of Directors on February 27 2003

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CONNECTICUT RESOURCES RECOVERY AUTHORITY
TO AUTHORIZE A SUBORDINATE LOAN FROM THE

STATE OF CONNECTICUT FOR THE BENEFIT OF
THE MID-CONNECTICUT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (the "Authority ) has been
duly established and constituted as a body politic and corporate, constituting a public
instrumentality and political subdivision of the State of Connecticut, to carry out the pUiposes of
Chapter 446e ofthe Connecticut General Statutes, Sections 22a-260 et. seq., as the same has
been amended and modified by Public Act No. 02-46 (the "Act" and, collectively with Sections
22a-260 et. seq. of the Connecticut General Statutes, the "Statute ); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has, fi:om time to time, issued bonds, pursuant to certain
powers and duties expressly provided for in the Statute, to finance its Mid-Connecticut System, a
Waste Processing Facility and Power Block Facility, and operated by the Authority, pursuant to
the powers vested in the Authority under the Statute (the "Mid-Connecticut Project"); and

WHEREAS, Section 3 of the Act provides that the Authority may, upon the approval of
two-thirds of the appointed directors of the Authority and subsequent approval of the State
Treasurer and the Secretary of the Office of Policy and Management ("OPM"), borrow from the
State of Connecticut, in an amount not to exceed one hundred fifteen million dollars
($115 000 000.00), for the purposes of supporting the repayment of debt issued by the Authority
on behalf of the Mid-Connecticut Project; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires that any loan from the State to the Authority for such
purpose as stated above shall be subordinate to all bonded indebtedness of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to finance certain debt service payments of the Mid-
Connecticut Project through a loan in an amount not to exceed $115 000 000. , all in
accordance with the terms and conditions of Section 3 of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority (the "Board") wishes to authorize
the application to the State Treasurer and the Secretary of OPM for such loan, and further wishes
to authorize the negotiation and documentation of the financing to support the repayment of debt
issued by the Authority on behalf of the Mid-Connecticut Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to give the members of the Steering Committee of the
Board, the President and the Chief Financial Officer of the Authority (collectively, the
Officials ) the authority to submit such application as well as to negotiate and document such

financing;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Connecticut Resource
Recovery Authority:



Section 1. That the action of the Officials of the Authority, in submitting an
application to the State Treasurer and the Secretary of OPM, in the name of and on behalf of the
Authority, in connection with the extension by the. State of Connecticut of a loan to the Authority
in an aggregate amount not to exceed $115 000 000.00 to support the repayment of debt issued
by the Authority on behalf of the Mid-Connecticut Project (the "Financing ), be and the same is
hereby authorized and approved.

Section 2. That the Authority, in connection with such application for the Financing,
shall submit for approval , by the State Treasurer and the Secretary of OPM, those items required
under the provisions of Section 3 of the Act including, but not limited to a Financial Mitigation
Plan, the proposed budget for the Mid-Connecticut Project for fiscal year 2004, the Authority
three-year plan for fiscal years 2004, 2005 and 2006, a cash flow analysis showing the
Authority s need for current and future borrowings through fiscal year 2012, a certified audit of
the Authority for fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, all as previously reviewed and approved by the
Board, as well as any other items reasonably requested by the State Treasurer and the Secretary
of OPM in order to effectuate the Financing.

Section 3. That the Board of Directors of the Authority hereby authorizes the
Officials to enter into negotiations with the State Treasurer and the Secretary of OPM, to
establish the terms of such Financing, which terms shall include the maturity, interest rate
repayment terms and other terms of the Financing provided, however, that the repayment of such
Financing shall be subordinate to the repayment of any bonds of the Authority, all in accordance
with the terms and provisions of Section 3 of the Act and in substantially the form of the Term
Sheet, attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "Term Sheet") and made a part hereof, all in such
manner as the Officials shall determine to be in the best interests of the Authority.

Section 4. That the Board hereby authorizes the Officials, for and in the name of and
on behalf of the Authority, to take such actions and to negotiate any and all such loan
instruments, notes and documents including, but not limited to a Master Loan Agreement (the
Loan Documents ), substantially in accordance with the attached Term Sheet, and in such form

as such Officials shall approve, subject to the advice of bond counsel to the Authority, as are
deemed necessary, appropriate and advisable and in the Authority' s best interests in order to
effectuate such Financing.

Section S. That prior to the finalization of the Financing, the Board of Directors of
the Authority hereby authorizes the Officials to enter into an interim financing arrangement (the
Interim Financing ) with the State to borrow funds to support the repayment of principal and

interest during the remainder of the Authority' s fiscal year 2003 on debt service issued by the
Authority, such Interim Financing to be on such terms and conditions and embodied in such
Interim Financing documents (the "Interim Loan Documents") as the Officials shall approve
subject to the advice of bond counsel to the Authority. All amounts advanced as part of the
Interim Financing shall, upon the completion of the Loan Docmnents, be rolled over and made a
part of the Financing subject to the same terms and conditions as the Financing.

Section 6. That the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Board and the
President, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute, acknowledge and
deliver the Loan Docmnents and the Interim Loan Docmnents, and the execution of such Loan



Documents and the Interim Loan Documents, by the Chairman of the Board and the President
shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of the Authority.

Section 7. That any two of the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chairman of
the Finance Committee, the President and the Chief Financial Officer, acting together, are further
hereby authorized, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to approve, execute or
submit, as appropriate, any and all of the Authority' s requisition forms for the disbursement of
loan funds as submitted to the State Treasurer and Secretary of OPM during the term of the
Financing and the Interim Financing, in such form and substance satisfactory to the Authority
and the State Treasurer and Secretary of OPM.

Section 8. The Officials are authorized and directed to perform and take such other
actions as may be desirable, necessary, proper or convenient to accomplish the intent and
purposes expressed herein, and the performance thereof by such Officials shall be conclusive as
to the approval by the Authority of the terms thereof.

Section 9. This resolution shall take effect immediately.
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1 CONNECTICUT
RESOURCES
RECOVERY1; AUTHORITY

100 CONSTITUTION PlAZA - 17th FLOOR' HARTFORD * CONNECTICUT' 06103- 1722 . TELEPHONE (860) 757-7700
FAX (860) 727-4141

December 6, 2002

Board of Directors
Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
100 Constitution Plaza, 17th Floor
Hartford, CT 06103

We are pleased to present the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority s (the "Authority"
Comprehensive AJ:mual Financial Report prepared for the fiscal year ended June 30

, 2002.

The accuracy, completeness ,and fairness of this report are the responsibility of the
Authority' s management. We believe this report as presented is accurate in all material
aspects and that it presents fairly the financial position of the Authority and the resUlts of 

itsoperations as measured by the financial activity of the various 
projects. All disclosures

necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority's financial affairs
have been included.

The report is presented in three sections:

The Introductory Section contains this transmittal letter, which provides a description
of Authority operations, pertinent financial information and an outline of major
initiatives accomplished in fiscal year 2002 and planned for fiscal year 2003. The
Introductory Section also contains a list of Authority Board members and officials
and an organizational chart.

The Financial Section contains the independent auditors
' opinion of the financial

statements, the management's discussion. and analysis, the combining fmancial
statements, the notes to the financial statements and supplementary information.

0 The Statistical Section contains unaudited data on selected financial, operating and
demographic on a multi-year basis.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The Authority is a body politic and corporate, created in 1973 by an act of the Connecticut
Legislature, and is a public instrumentality and political subdivision of the State of
Connecticut (the "State ). The Authority is responsible for implementing solid Waste

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



disposal, recycling and resources recovery systems, facilities and services. . Revenues
generated by Authority operations, primarily disposal fees, energy revenues and recycling
revenues, provide for the support of the Authority and its . operations on a self-sustaining
basis. The State provides no revenues to the Authority, and the Authority1ias no taxing
power. In carrying out this mission, the Authority utilizes private industry to construct and
operate solid waste disposal and resources recovery facilities. The Authority contracts with
Connecticut member mumcipalities . non-member municipalities (spot waste), and
commercial haulers to provide solid waste management services and charges fees for these
services. The Authority is authorized. to issue bonds and notes to finance its activities upon
approval of the State Treasurer.

The Authority is governed by a thirteen member Board of Directors. In addition, two ad hoc
directors serve on the Board for each operating resources recovery project. These ad hoc
directors vote only on matters concerning the project they represent.

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The Authority has developed four regional solid waste management projects, which together
serve more than 100 Connecticut cities and towns. Each of these projects is described below:

The Mid-Comiecticut Project

The Mid-Connecticut Project consists of a 2 710 ton per day refuse derived fuel (RDF)
resource recovery facility;. the Hartford. Landfill, which handles ash, process residue and
bulky waste; a network of four transfer stations; and a regional recycling center composed of
paper and container processing facilities. The Mid-Connecticut Project serves 70
communities in the greater Hartford area and around the State.

The Mid-Connecticut resources recovery facility began commercial operation in October
1988 and generated power at an annual average rate of 50.8 megawatts of electrical energy
(net of in-plant usage) in fiscal year 2002.

The Bridl!eoort Project

The Bridgeport Project consists of a 2 250 ton per day mass bum resources recovery facility;
the Waterbury Landfill, which provides bulky waste disposal capacity for the project; the
Shelton Landfill, which has been closed; a network of eight transfer stations; and aregional
recycling center. The ash residue fi:om the resources recovery facility is disposed of at an in-
state landfill under contract with a private operator. The Bridgeport Project serves 18
communities in the southwest and south central part of the State.

. The Bridgeport resources recovery facility began commercial operation in July 1988 and
generated power at an annual average rate of 54.9 megawatts of electrical energy (net of in-
plant usage) in fiscal year 2002. Electrical energy and non-member town service charge
revenues accrue to the facility operator.



drawn down as of June 30, 2002. Overall, the Mid-Conriecticut project had a decrease in net
assets of $13.6 million, which reflects the loss of revenues related to the Enron bankruptcy
described herein.

Olher Projects 

Only one of the remaining three projects posted net income for fiscal year 2002. The
Wallingford project had an increase in net assets of $5.

8 million. Contributing to this
increase is the continued high level of waste deliveries to the Wallingford project. Member
town waste deliveries exceed the budget by 109.6% for fiscal year 2002.

The Bridgeport project posted a decrease in net assets of $286,000 for fiscal year 2002 due to
several adverse economic factors. Included in these was a significant decrease in interest
income due to deteriorating financial markets. Actual interest income earned for fiscal year
2002 was ouly 22.9% of the fiscal year budgeted amount. In addition, the Bridgeport project
incurred higher resource recovery facility and transfer station expenses. However, theAuthority and the member towns had anticipated a loss and had budgeted to approximately
$0.7 million of Retained Earnings in order to stabilize tipping fees.

The Southeast project incurred a decrease in net assets for fiscal year 2002 of $2.3 million.
Of particular note, the Southeast project enjoys a highly ild:v;mtageousenergy contract that
will provide significant increment earnings in future years. As such, the project had
anticipated this decrease and had budgeted to approximately $0.9 million of Retained
Earnings to cover the anticipated shortfall. However, this shortfall was further hindered by a

. substantial decrease in interest income that was only 31 % of the fiscal year 2002 budgeted
amount. Total deliveries to the plant during fiscal year 2002 were higher 

than 2001.

In total, the Authority projects received over 2.0 million tons of municipal solid waste for
fIScal year 2002, up 45 442 tons or 2.3% from fiscal year 2001.

Financial and operating accomplishments for fiscal year 2002 include the following:

1. Distribution of $559 000 million in service charge rebates to the Wallingford project.

2. Installation of a carbon injection system for mercury control at the Southeast project.

3. Installation of a carbon injection system for mercury control at the Wallingford
project.

4. Completion of the Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction (SNCR) for nitrogen oxide
control at the Bridgeport project.

5. Completion of the Mid-Connecticut air processing system (MCAPS) and assumption
of operations and maintenance responsibilities with in-house staff.

6. Commenced receipt of "Blackstart" paYments fi:om ISO New England for the jet
turbine engines acquired at the South Meadows site during fiscal year 200 I.



7. Commenced work on acquiring an electric supplier license to potentially generate
more electric revenu~ by selling power produced at CRRA plants to the State. In this
vein, we continue to develop a cost/benefit analysis with the State.

8. Extended the Hartford Landfill life by reducing process residue fi:om II % to 8%.

9. Continued to work with the replacement contractor (CWPM) at the Tomngton and
Watertown.transfer stations. 

10. Worked with the MDC to control costs of the Mid-Connecticut waste processing
facilitY, the Essex and Ellington transfer stations, the balance of the transportation
functions and the Hartford Landfill.

11. Reviewed options for plant expansion at the Wallingford facilitY to improve
economics and reduce waste exportation costs.

12. Completed a Review of Future Options Plan for the Wallingford facilitY.

13. Completed a Review of Future Options Plan for the Bridgeport facilitY and continued
analysis with the Bridgeport Solid Waste Advisory Board (SWAB).

Since fiscal 1997, a primary AuthoritY initiative has been to reduce and maintain member tip
fees for all project at "marketplace" tipping fees, and continue to increase member delivery
volumes while improving the financial strength of each project. Figure 1 depictij the
relationship between the tip fee and deliveries for the Bridgeport Project. As illustrated, there
is an inverse relationship between tipping fees charges and the amount- of waste delivered to a
project for disposal purposes. Member tipping fees were above marketplace levels in fiscal
year 1997 through 1999, and during that tim~, deliveries of waste on behalf of the member
towns declined- However, as the AuthoritY successfully reduced member tip fees during
fiscal years 2000 and 2001 , deliveries increased. For fiscal year 2002, the Bridgeport project
tip fees were held constant.

With the exception of the Mid-Connecticut project, the AuthoritY's other projects were able
to hold tip fees constant or lower during fiscal year 2002 fi:om fiscal year 2001 levels
enabling the AuthoritY to deliver at or below market tipping fees to its members.

In addition, the projects also accept waste fi:om "spot" market deliveries of in-state and out-
of-state waste. Because tipping fees paid by short-tenfi, spot-market deliverers are less than
. those paid by member town and long-term contract haulers, the waste delivery mix a project
experiences (the ratio of member waste, contract waste and short-term waste) is vitally
important to overall, economic performance of the system. Figure 2 highlights the
performance of the Authority' s strategy to reduce reliance upon short-term suppliers, and to
deliver improved and more predictable financial results through increased deliveries of
member town waste and longer-term contract deliveries.



The Wallin!!ford Proiect

The Wallingford Projec( consists of a 420 ton per day mass bum resources recovery facilitY.
The ash residue from the resources recovery facility is disposed .of at an in-state landfill
under contract with aprivate operator.

The Wallingford facilitY began commercial operation in May 1989 and generated power .at an
annual average rate of7.6 megawatts of electrical energy (net of in-plant usage) in fiscal year
2002. Five towns in New Haven CountY are served by this facilitY.

The Southeastern Project

The Southeastern Project consists of a 690 ton per day mass bum resources recovery facilitY,
located in Preston. The ash residue fi:om the reso1ircesrecovery facilitY is disposed of at an
in-state landfill under contract with a private operator.

The Southeastern facilitY began commercial operation in February 1992. The facilitY
generated power at an annual average rate of 15.4 megawatts of electrical energy (net of in-
plant usage) in fiscal year 2002. The Southeastern Project serves 16 communities in the
eastern portion of the State.

N on~Proi ect Ventures

Iri' c6njunction with the deregulation of the State s electric industry, . the AuthoritY in fiscal
year 2001, purchased certain land and generation equipment owned by Connecticut Light and
Power ("CL&P"). This acquisition included four Pratt & Whitney Twin-Pac peaking gas
twbines with a total summer capacitY of 152 megawatts and a total winter capacitY of 191
megawatts. An operating and license agreement was entered into with CL&P to operate the
gas turbines. The AuthoritY entered into an operating and maintenance agreement with
Northeast Generation Services Company to operate the gas turbines and with Covanta Mid-
Conn, Inc. to operate the steam turbines. Some or al1 of the Non-Project assets may be
incorporated into the Mid-Connecticut Project.

Administrative Pool

In addition to the Authority s operating projects, the AuthoritY maintains an Administrative
Pool in which. the costs of central administration are accumulated. These costs are allocated
to the AuthoritY' s projects and the non-project ventures group based on efforts expended.

Please refer to Note lA in the "Notes to the Financial Statements" in the Financial Section of
this report for additional information on the waste management systems.
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Authority' s four projects delivered mixed economic performance in fiscal year2002. On
the whol~, the combined net assets dUring the fiscal year decreased by $11.1 million. This is
compared to an increase of $9.5 million during fiscal year 2001 (net of a one-time receipt
fi:om the settlement of a power contract).

Mid-Connecticut Project and Enron Exposure
As part of the national deregulation of the energy industry and the resultant energy contract

buy-downs, the Authority entered into agreements with Enron Power Marketing, Inc.
Enron ) and the Connecticut Light & Power Company ("CL&P") on April 30, 2001 that

among other obligations, required Enron to pay the Authority a monthly $2.2 million
capacity charge" f()r the purchase of steam and an additional monthly charge of $175 000

for conversion of steam into electricity fi:om its Mid-Connecticut facility. As part of this
transaction, Enron received $220 million and the Authority received $59.972 million during
fiscal year 2001. Enron filed for bankruptcy on December 2 2001 (fiscal year 2002) and has
not made its monthly capacity, electricity or other payments due since that time. The
Authority, in an effort to generate adequate revenues to pay debt service on its bonds, has
increased the Mid-ConnecticuLtipping fees, is pursuing remedies in bankruptcy court with
the State s Attorney General, negotiating with CL&P and other parties for increased electric
rates and has applied for licensure as an electric supplier in the State. The net effect on the
Mid-Connecticut project is the loss of significant monthly operating revenues.

This situation exacerbates the Authority's outstanding Mid-Connecticut Bonds, which are
secured by revenues fi:om the participating member towns under service agreements that
commit the towns to deliver a minimum amount of waste to the facility each year. In
addition, some bonds are further secured by the Special Capital Reserve Fund of the State of
Connecticut whereby the State is obligated to maintain a minimum capital reserve for the
bonds to the extent the Authority uses monies in the special capital reserve fund to pay debt
service on the Authority' s outstanqing bonds. At fiscal year-end, it was unclear whether there
would be any need for the State to make payments to maintain the minimum capital reserve
requirement due to the non-receipt of payment fi:om Enron. As of June 30, 2002, the
Authority had approximately $211.2 million Mid-Connecticut bonds outstanding of which
the State s Special Capital Reserve Fund secured approximately $198. 1 million.

Also, during March 2002, Moody s Investors Service twice downgraded that portion of the
Mid-Connecticut bonds that were not secured by a municipal bond insurance policy fi:om
A2" to "Baa3." The downgrades reflected the loss of revenues associated with the Enron

bankruptcy.

As a result of these events, the Board of Directors was reconstituted on June 1 , 2002. In
addition, the position of President was vacated on April 19, 2002.

In an effort to help ease the Mid-Connecticut project's financial situation , the Connecticut
General Assembly passed Public Act No. 02-46 during April 2002, which authorizes a loan
by the State to the Authority of up to $115 million to support the . repayment of the
Authority' s debt for the Mid-Connecticut facility and to minimize the amount of tipping fee
increases chargeable to the towns which use the Mid-Connecticut facility. No amounts were
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Both member and contract solid waste delivery volumes increased in fiscal year 2002 fi:om
the prior year, while spot deliveries declined for the fifth year in a row. Overall, total
municipal solid waste deliveries increased to a record 2.0 million tons in fiscal 2002, up 2.3%
from the prior fiscal year.
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At the end of .fiscal year 2002, the. AuthoritY successfully came through one of its most
turbulent years, witnessing not only the after-effects of September lIon insurance premiums
(which will be increasing dramatically into fiscal year 2003), but also the significant increase
in tipping fees that were passed py the Board of Directors for the Mid-~onnecticut project
and the change in leadership of the AuthoritY. Nonetheless, the tip fees adopted for the
ensuing fiscal year were the same as the current fiscal year for the projects, with the
exception of the Mid-Connecticut project, which experienced a 12% increase due to the
Enron situation, discussed herein.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Electric Utilitv Dere!!:ulation and Power Diversification

In May 1998 , the Connecticut Public Act 98-28 (the "Deregulation Act") was signed into
law, which provided for the restructuring of the state s electric industry. While the
Deregulation Act was designed to achieve a number of goals, certain aspects of the law
particularly apply to the AuthoritY and its projects. Three issues of particular importance to
the AuthoritY were as follows:

CL&P was directed to divest itself of its interest in all power generating facilities
which included the South Meadows Station site. at . which the Mid-Connecticut
Project' s Waste Processing FacilitY and Power Block FacilitY were constructed;

While the Deregulation Act contained provisions intended to protect the electricitY
power sales agreements for the AuthoritY'sprojects CL&P and United llluniinating
("Of' ) took steps to "auction" these. historical arrangements, including. payment
obligations contained therein, to other parties; and

. The Deregulation Act set in place a mechanism for Connecticut's regulated industry
to be compensated for historical costs that would not be recovered fi:om customers
going forward ("stranded costs"), which included one-time compensation to either
buy-down or "buy-out" historic.al contracts with parties for the supply of electricitY
where the price paid was in excess of today smarketplace conditions. The
Deregulation Act contained specific provisions related to the "buy-down" or "buy-
out" of such power sales agreements for the Authority' s projects. . The overall goal of
this process was to eliminate "over-market" priced electricitY being used in the State.

For all projects, the revenue received from the sale of electricitY is a vital component of
project revenues. The Authority' s resources recovery projects produced an average of neafIy
130 megawatts of power in fiscal year 2002. The revenues fi:om this production are

. substantial and significantly reduce the amount of revenue that would otherwise need to be
raised fi:om tipping fees. Preserving, enhancing and securing this revenue stream have been
and continue to be vital to the Authority' s environmental mission.

In recognition of their obligations under the Deregulation Act, CL&P moved to include the
Hartford South Meadows site into its general auction process. Fortunately, the AuthoritY was
able to convince both CL&P and the DPUC that it was inappropriate to have this site
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included in the general auction, and a negotiated transaction resulted which was approved by
the DPUC and implemented in fiscal year 2001. Consequently, the Authority now owns the
site at which it has over $300 million in facility investment, and which is relied upon by
approximately 70 municipalities for waste processing and disposal services. Further, this
acquisition has also brought to the Authority ownership of the 160 megawatt jet turbine
peaking units at the South Meadows site.

Finally, as part of this "buy-down" the Authority entered into agreements with CL&P and
Enron, discussed earlier in this letter, which provided the Authority with the funding for the
acquisition of the South Meadows site and for the extensive environmental remediation
associated with the nearly century-long use of the property for electricity generation
purposes. These agreements had originally been anticipated to provide revenues to the Mid-
Connecticut project for the life of the project. However, following Enron s declaration of
bankruptcy, the Authority is now faced with the loss of a significant capacity charge of $2.
million per month and the loss of electricity sales that Enron was contractually obligated to
purchase under the agreements.

Debt Ref'mancin2

All four of the Authority's resources recovery facilities were financed in the mid to late
1980' s when interest rates were high relative to today s rates. There was no new bond
financing activity during fiscal year 2002, with the exception of the following:

In November 2001 , the Authority refinanced two of the Southeast project bonds, replacing
the corporate credit of the issUer. These bonds were the $6 750 000 1998 Series A (Duke)
Bonds and the $6 750 000 1998 Series A (BFI) Bonds. The corporate credit of both bonds
was replaced with American Ref-Fuel Company, LLC-I and LLC- , respectively. These
bonds represent a refinancing of two series of bonds for which the Authority serves as a
conduit issuer. As such, they are not carried on the Authority's books, nor does the Authority
pay debt service on these bonds.

Plant Improvement

During fiscal year 2002, the Authority completed the work associated with the installation of
mercury control systems at both the Southeast and Wallingford projects. In addition, theAuthority completed the work associated with the air processing system at the Mid-
Connecticut project. This represented completion of the project designed to eliminate
odorous emissions fi:om the buildings associated with the Mid-

Connecticut project. Also
during fiscal year 2002, the installation of the Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction (SNCR) for
nitrogen oxide control was completed at the Bridgeport project. '

Lon2-Term Service Planning

The contractual life of the Authority' s projects (the term of the municipal service contracts
power contracts, operating contracts and project bonds) extends to between 2008 and 2015.
While this appears to be years away, the Authority has already begun to consider how solid
waste services will be proVided beyond the term of the existing projects. During fiscal year
2002, the Authority commissioned and received a "Review of Future Options" report for the



. Wallingford and Bridgeport projects. These documents are being used as the basis for
moving ahead on additional investigations and negotiations.

Market Competitive Tip Fees

A multi-year initiative was begun in fiscal year 1997 to return and maintain all project tip
fees at market rates. Efforts to reduce fees have included project bond refmancings

executing enforceable delivery contracts with waste haulers, securing lower cost ash disposal
capacity, staffing reductions, discontinuing use of non-performing landfill assets and
eliminating uncertainties related to the power contracts through settlements with the utility
companies.

These efforts paid off in terms of reduced tip fees. Figure 3 highlights the member tip fees
for all four projects since fiscal year 1997. The Authority has leveraged its service reliability
and market proximity with competitive tip fees to assure waste deliveries by means of
economic flow control." Simply put, waste haulers generally seek out the closest reliable

disposal option offering a reasonable market price.

The Authority was successful in increasing member waste flow through reductions in tip
fees. With the exception of the Bridgeport project, the Authority' s tip. fees were below the
average market rate during fiscal years 2001 and 2002. However, due to the Authority'
Emon exposure (discussed previously) the Board of Directors passed a $6 per toil increase in
the Mid-Connecticut project tip fee for fiscal year 2003. In addition, the Bridgeport project
tip fee was also raised $2 per ton due to increases in a. variety of expense-related factors
including insurance, recycling and a reduction in interest income.

Figure 3
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Authority' s Board of Directors has the sole power to establish service charges (tip fees)
for the waste disposal services provided by the Authority at the Mid-Connecticut, Bridgeport
and Wallingford Projects. The Board of Directors of the Southeastem Connecticut Regional
Resources Recovery Authority formally establishes the service charges for the SoutheastemPr~ect, 
The Authority is a component Unit enterprise fund of the State. Enterprise funds account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises.
The acquisition, maintenance and improvement of the Authority' s physical facilities are
financed fi:om existing cash resources or through the issuance of bonds.

The Authority uses the accrual basis of accounting, where revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Additional. information regarding the
significant accounting policies can be found in the "Notes to the Financial Statements" in the
Financial Section of this report.

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
controls designed to ensure that the assets of the Authority are protected ftom loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The
internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (l) the. cost of
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Financial Results

The 2002 fiscal year financial operations showed an operating loss of $0.5 million. Net
assets, net of the proceeds received in fiscal 2001 fi:om settlement of the Mid-Connecticut
energy contract and the Non-Project Ventures turbine operations, decreased 217% fi:om fiscal
2001 to $1 I. I. Please refer to Summary of Operations and Changes in Net Assets in the
Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") in the Financial Section.

Total operating revenues for fiscal 2002 were $157.5 million, a decreased of 8.2% or $14.
million. Please refer to Summary of Revenues in the MD&A in the Financial Section of this
report for discussion and analysis on the Authority' s revenues.

Operating expenses increased 2.9% or $4.0 million from fiscal year 2001 to fiscal year
2002. Please refer to . Summary of Expenses in the MD&A in the Financial Section of this
report for additional discussion and analysis.

Debt Administration

The Authority issues debt for financing construction and improvements to the solid waste
disposal facilities. In addition, the Authority issues debt to refund existing high interest rate



debt. At June 30, 2002, the Authority had $238.9 million in outstanding revenue bond debt.
The outstanding debt by project was as follows:

Mid-Connecticut
Bridge:port
Wallingford
Southeastern

($OOO'

$208 279
245
404

10.051

Total

The outstanding series of revenue bonds are generally rated by either Moody s Investor
Service" Inc. or Standard & Poor s Corporation, or both. Credit features vary across and
within projects. As a result, there are a variety of ratings on Authority issues. Please see
Exhibit lOin the Statistical Section of this report for a complete listing of outstanding bond
ratings.

Cash Manal!ement

During the year, cash was invested on a short-term basis. The Authority's primary short-term
investment vehicle is the Short-Term Investment Fund ("STIF") operated by the Office of the
State Treasurer. The annualized average yield for STIF for fiscal year 2002 was 2.61%
compared to 6. 11 % in fiscal year 2001. This represents the steady decline in interest rates
experienced in the market during fiscal 2002.

Risk Manal!ement

The Authority purchases commercial insurance for its property and liability needs. The
Authority has secured insurance coverage for a variety of environmental exposures related to
the operation and control of its projects and landfills, Statutory workers' compensation
benefits are provided by the Authority's membership in the Connecticut Interlocal Risk
Management Agency Workers' Compensation Pool. The Authority also has designated
nearly $8 million of the retained earnings in the Administrative Pool to cover insurance

deductibles and losses not covered by the Authority's commercial insurance among other
items. The Authority engages in an on-going. evaluation of its risk exposures to prevent
losses where possible and minimize the fmancial impact of those risks that must beundertaken. 
Independent Audit

State statute requires that an annual audit be conducted by an independent certified public
accountant. The acc9unting fIrm of Scillia Dowling & Natarelli LLC, was selected in May
1999 to perform audits through June 30, 2002. The auditor s report on the financial
statements and supplementary information is included in the Financial Section of this report.

xii



Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada ("
GFOA"awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the

Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. This was the ninth consecutive year that the
Authority has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the Authority must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which conforms to program standards. The report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The Authority believes
this current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program s requirements and is being submitted to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate,
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Marc S, Ryan
Andrew M. Sullivan

President

Vacancy

Ad Hoc Directors

Mid-Connecticut Project
Alphonse S. Marotta
Vacancy

Bridgeport Project
Vacancy
Vacancy

Wallingford Project
Louis L. Rubenstein
Vacancy

Southeast Project

Vacancy
Vacancy



D
l
r
e
c
t
o
,
 
o
f
 
L
e
g
.
1
 

s.
",

I-
.

So
nl

o,
 C

ou
ns

ol

P"
"-

T
lm

o
So

nl
o'

 C
ou

ns
ol

C
on

ne
ct

ic
ut

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 R

ec
ov

er
y 

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
S

ta
ff 

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n

O
po

",
,'o

n.
D

iv
is

io
n 

H
..d

~
 
L
o
s
d
 

S
en

Io
r 

A
nS

IY
..

S
on

lo
, A

na
ly

st
io

"'
I-

A
ns

ly
st

C
us

to
m

or
 S

.r
vl

oo
S.

.o
la

"'
"

(2
)

D
""

"o
ro

fC
'v

" 

&
C

on
",

",
ot

Io
n

E
ng

ln
...

..n
g

A
"'

."
"'

C
o
n
"
,
"
,
o
t
I
o
n
 
S
p
.
.
.

(P
tu

t-
T

im
o)

S
o
n
l
o
r
 
C
l
v
"

"n
gl

n.
.'

(P
tu

t-
T

Im
o)

01
...

...
, o

f
D

av
ol

op
m

on
t

F
.
.
.
.
.
"
,
.
.
 
E
n
g
l
n
.
.
.
.

(2
)

M
ld

-c
1'

P"
'I-

M
sn

sg
o'

P"
,s

ld
on

t

rc
o,

;;,
;;"

n,
 c

oo
""

nS
'O

'

0
1
"
,
"
"
 
o
f

A
dm

ln
,."

""
on

In
.u

...
no

o 
&

 C
la

Im
.

M
sn

sg
or

H
u
m
a
.
 
"
.
.
o
u
"
,
o
.

A
dm

ln
lo

t"
"o

,

Fs
ol

llt
l..

 M
s.

sg
o,

S
y
o
t
o
m
s
 
A
.
"
y
.
t

""
oo

ut
lv

o 
A

..~
A

dm
l.'

ot
to

""
" 

A
u~

S
.
o
"
,
t
o
.
.
.
.
.
 
(
2
)

So
.lo

. C
"'

"

..o
oy

o.
..g

 &
E

.v
l"

,.m
..t

sl
"d

uo
st

lo
n

D
iv

is
io

n 
H

.s
d

I r
 E

du
oo

tlo
n

Pr
og

...
m

a 
D

I"
,o

to
,

M
ld

-O
T

p
o
T
 
"
d
u
o
s
t
o
.
.
.

(4
)

Sf
m

ff
or

d
P
.
T
 
"
d
u
o
s
t
o
.
.
.

(3
)

So
n'

o.
A

.s
ly

s,

Pt
so

yo
"n

g
Sp

oo
ls

"a
,

"o
oy

o.
.n

g 
Fl

ot
d 

.
M

s.
sg

o.

C
u
s
'
o
m
o
,
 
s
.
"
"
o
o

Sp
oo

's
...

ta
(2

)

xv
i

F
I
.
a
.
o
.
 
D
l
v
l
a
'
o
.
 

H
oo

d

A
.s

'a
to

nt
 T

...
.a

u"
,r

 .
&
 
0
1
"
"
'
"
o
f

FI
.s

."

01
""

'"
of

A
oc

ou
.tl

ng

A
..,

...
.t 

D
I"

"'"
of

 A
oo

ou
nt

in
g

S
...

. A
oc

ou
nt

an
ta

(2
)

A
oo

ou
nt

in
g

A
ul

"'
nt

.
(2

)

A
o
c
o
u
n
t
o
 
P
t
_
'
v
s
b
l
o

C
oo

""
no

to
...

(3
)

D
I"

,o
to

r 
of

T
oo

.n
ol

oG
Y

 &
N
o
w
 
B
u
s
'
n
o
.
s

D
ov

ol
op

m
on

t

D
I.

...
.o

ro
f

E
nv

l"
,n

m
on

to
'

$0
",

'_
.

E
nv

'"
,n

m
on

to
'

co
m

p"
.n

oo
Sp

oo
l,"

at

E
nv

lr
on

m
on

to
l

So
l.n

tls
t

S
.
n
l
o
,
 
E
n
v
'
"
,
n
m
o
n
t
o
l

E
nG

ln
..,

E
nv

lr
on

m
on

to
l

E
nG

ln
,,"

'

FI
.,d

 S
sr

vl
-

C
oo

""
ns

to
, I

ss
n'

ob
A

IJ
.w

:r
 

l
 
B
O
.
"
'

:
f
 
D
I
:o

to
'.



..,
.,

n:
I

...
...



SCILlIA
DOWLING &
NATARELLIllC

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors
Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
Hartford, Connecticnt

We have audited the accompanying statements of net assets of Connecticut Resources Recovery
Authority (a component unit of the State of Connecticut) as of June 30, 2002 and 200 I , and therelated statements of revenues , expenses and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial stateme"ts are the responsibility of the Authority' s management.
Onr responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and with the standards applicable to financial audits coJltained in 

GovernmentAuditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States- Those standards
require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatemenL An audit also includes examining on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significanl estimates made by management
as well as evalualing the overall financial statement presentation- We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion-

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects
the financial position of Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority as of June 30

, 2002 and
2001 , and the results of its operations and its cash flow for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Certified Public Accountanfs and Consultants
Manl'"" Cenle' . 055 long Whorl On" . New H"en . CT 06511 . 203. 787.8600 . ", 203 7878604

GOOd"," Square. 225 Asyl"," %001. Harllor" cr 06103.860241.8962. ," 860241.9157



As discussed in Note I to the accompanying financial statements, in the year ended June 30
2002 , the Authority has adopted Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34
Basic Financial Statements and Management s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments.

The accompanying Management' s Discussion and Analysis. as listed in the table of contents is not
a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary infonnation required by the
Government Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement. and
presentation of the required supplementary infonnation- However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was eonducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining financial statements listed in the table of contents are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements of

Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly

stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 23, 2002 , 011 our consideration of Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority'
internal control structure over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction
with this report in considering the results of our audit.

LLL
Hartford, Connecticut
September 23, 2002
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MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (the "Authority") was created in 1973 by an act
of the Connecticut Legislature and is a . public instrumentality and political subdivision of the
State of Connecticut (the "State ). The Authority is responsible for implementing solid waste
disposal, recycling and resources recovery systems, facilities and services. Revenues generated
by Authority operations, primarily disposal fees, energy revenues and recycling revenues
provide for the support of the Authority and its operations on a self-sustaining basis. The 

Stateprovides no revenues to the Authority and the Authority has no taxing power. 
In carrying outthis mission the Authority utilizes private industry to construct and operate solid waste disposal

and resources recovery facilities. The Authority contracts with Connecticut membermunicipalities, non-member municipalities (spot waste), and commercial haulers to provide
waste management services and charges fees for these services. These entities must then agree
to deliver a minimum amount of solid waste to theJacilities. The Authority is authorized to issue
tax-exempt bonds and notes to finance its activities. The Authority's bonds are generallysecured by service agreements with the participating entities. Authority bonds are also secured
by revenues from the sale of energy generated by the facility and waste from non-municipal

. sources. In addition, Authority bonds may also be secured by a special capital reserve fund
(backe4 by the State) and municipal bond insurance or bank letters of credit.

The Authority has developed and helps oversee four regional waste-to-energy projects across the
State. TheSe facilities in Bridgeport, Hartford, Preston and Wallingford process over 80% of the
State s waste and serve approximately two out of every three municipalities in the State. 

TheAuthority is also Counecticut's largest recycler, having developed two of the country's largest
recycling facilities and a statewide transportation network.

The following Management Discussion and Analysis ("
MD&A") of the Authority's activitiesand financial performance provide an introduction to the audited financial statements for the

fiscal year ended June 30 2002 as compared to June 30, 2001. Following the MD&A are the
basic financial statements of the Authority together with the notes thereto

, which are essential toa full understanding of the data contained in the financial statements.

The Authority s financial statements use propriety fund reporting and reports its financiai
position in three basic financial statements: (I) a statement of net assets; (2) 

a statement ofrevenues, expenses and changes in net assets; and (3) a statement of cash flows.
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FINANCIAL POSITION SUMMARY

The Authority s fiscal year 2002 assets decreased by $33.3 million or 7.4% over fiscal year 2001
and liabilities decreased by $22.2 million or 7.1 %. Total assets exceeded liabilities by $130.
million in 2002 as compared to $142.0 million for 2001 , or a net decrease of$l1.1 million.

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

(In Thousands)
Fiscal Years Ending June 302002 2001

ASSETS:

Current unresIricted assets
Current resIricted assets

Total current assets

Capital assets

Other assets
Total assets

$ 94 241

339
179 580
229,151

11,480
420 211

$ 99 835

103,413
203,248
237,665

665

453 578

LIABILfTIES:

Current liabilities
Long-term debt outstanding

. LandfiIl closure and post closure
Total liabilities

137

220 606
548

289,291

51,201

238 980
344

311 525

NET ASSETS:

Invested in capital assets, net of debt
ResIricted
UuresIricted

Total net assets

037
786
097

130,920

698

514

841

142,053

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS mGHLIGHTS

The following is an overview of major changes within the Statement of Net Assets during the
past fiscal year:

Current unrestricted assets decreased by $5.5 million. This is due primarily to the drawdown
of funds from reserves to cover Operating Expenses in the Mid-Connecticut project due to the
Enron bankruptcy (see Emon and Covanta Exposure sce.ction herein and Note 7 in the Notes to
Financial Statements section).

Current restricted -assets decreased by $18.0 million. This decrease was the result of:
Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $18.3 million due the drop in revenue related to
the Enron bankruptcy (see Enron and Covanta Exposure section herein and Note 7 in the
Notes to Financial Statements section).

Investments increased by $659 000 due to the purchase of a U.S. Treasury Bill.
Non-Current assets decreased by $9.7 million. This was derived primarily by:

Capital assets decreased by $8.5 million primarily due to an increased accumulated

depreciation expense of $13.8 million, which was offset by a $3 million land purchase.
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Other assets decreased by $1.1 million due to an increased accumulated amortization

expense for development and bond issuance costs.

Current Liabilities decreased by $4.0 million. This was derived primarily by:
Bonds payable decreased by $2.4 million due to two bond issues maturing during fiscal
year 2002: Bridgeport Subordinated Bonds 1991 Series A and Mid-Connecticut System
Bonds 1991 Series A.

Closure and I'Ostclosure care of landfills decreased by $1.5 million due primarily to the
closure of the Shelton and Wallingford Landfills during fiscal year 2002. Subsequent
landfill costs are being funded from the postclosure reserve fund.

Long-Term Liabilities decreased by $18.1 milliolI. This was derived primarily by:
Bonds payable decreased by $18.3 million due to. regular principal amortization onAuthority bonds. 

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority s financial position.

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

JIn Thousands)
Fiscal Years Ending June 302002 2001

Operating revenues
. Operating expenses

Excess before depreciation and other non-
operating income and expenses
Depreciation

Income before other non-operating income and
expenses, net

Other non-operating income and expenses, net

$ 157,513 $ 171,518
141 082 137,056

16,431 462
975 710

(544) 752
589 313

133 76,065Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets

Operating revenues decreased by $14.0 million in fiscal year 2002 or 8.2% from fiscal
year 2001 due primarily to the loss of revenue resulting from the Enron bankruptcy (see
Euron and Covanta Exposure section herein and Note 7 in the Notes to Financial
Statements section).

Operating expenses. net of depreciation for the same period increased 2.9% due mainly to
increased solid waste operations expenses.

Other non-operating income and expenses. net decreased by $68.9 million at June 30
2002 from the same period due mainly to the one-time settlement income of $59.
million income received in fiscal year 2001 from the Enron energy contract (see Enron
and Covanta Exposure section herein and Note 7 in. the Notes to Financial Statements
section).
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SUMMARY OF REVENUES

The following chart shows the major sources and the percentage of operating revenues for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002:

Energy Revenue

26.

Other Service

Charges
16.

Ash Disposal

Other Income

Investment
Income

Settlement
Income

Percentages may not add due to rounding.

Solid Waste tipping fees (member and other service charges) and ash disposal fees account for
two-thirds of the Authority' s revenues. Energy production makes up another 26.7% of revenues.
A summary of revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, and the amount and percentage
of change in relation to prior fiscal year amounts is as follows:

SUMMARY OF REVENUES

(Dollars in Thousands)

Increase/ Percent
Percent of (Decrease) from Increase/

2002 Amount Total 2001 (Decrease)

Operating:
Member Service Charges 634 47. 028
Other Service Charges 389 16. 711) . (9.
Energy Revenue 43,246 26. (11 864) (21.5)
Ash Disposal 945 2.4% 224
Other Income 299 682) (21.1)

Total Operating Revenues 157 513 97.3% (14 005) (8.

Non-Operating:
Investment Income 388 (3,934) (47.3)
Settlement Income (66 841) (100.

Total Non-Operating Revenues 388 (70 775) (94.

TOTAL REVENUES 161 901 100. (84 780) (34.4)

Percentages may not add due to rounding.
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Overall, fiscal year 2002 revenues declined by 34.4% over fiscal year 2001. The following
discusses the major changes in operating arid non-operating revenues of the Authority:

Other service charges which represent spot waste haulers, decreased by $2.7 million or
0% fi:om fiscal year 2001 to 2002. The decrease in spot hauler waste is offset to an

increase of $2.0 million of member service charges.

Energy Revenue decreased by $11.8 million or 21.5% from fiscal year 2001 due to the
absence of capacity payments due the Authority under its contract with Enron (see Enron
and Covanta Exposure section and Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements section).
This decrease was slightly offset by increased revenues realized from the Jet turbine
engines purchased late in fiscal year 2001.

Ollie.r Income decreased by 21.1% or $1.6 million over the same period due to lower
recycling sales caused by the declining recyclable commodities market and the general
economic downturn.

Investment income decreased $3.9 million from fiscal 2001 to 2002 or 47.3% due to
overall market declines and lower returns on the Authority s investments.
Settlement income represents a one-time gain of $59.9 million received in fiscal year
2001 from the Enron energy contract (see Enron and Covanta Exposure section and Note
Tin the Notes to Financial Statements section).

SUMMARY OF EXPENSES

The following chart shows the major sources and the percentage of operating expenses for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002:

Solid Waste

Operations

75.2%

Closure/Postclosure

0.5%

Maintenance and
Utilities

Project Admin.

Depreciation

Other Bond Interest

0.3% Expense

8.4%

Day-to-day Solid. Waste Operations is the major component of the Authority s expensesaccounting for over 75% of the expenses in fiscal 2002. A summary of expenses for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2002, and the amount and percentage of change in relation to prior year
amounts is as follows:
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SUMMARY OF EXPENSES

(Dollars in Thousands)

Increase/ Percent
Percent of (Decrease) from Increase!

2002 Amount Total 2001 (Decrease)
Operating:

Solid Waste Operations 130,051 75:~% 427 4.4
Maintenance and Utilities 565 (493) (12.
Project Administration 619 (577) (8.
Closure and Postclosure 847 0.5% (331) (28.

Total Operating Expenses 141,082 81.5% 026

Depreciation 975 387

Non-Operating:
Bond Interest Expense 456 8.4% (1,320) (8.4)
Other (revenues) expenses 521 0.3% (553) (51.5)

Total Non-Operating Expenses 977 (1,873) (11.1)

TOTAL EXPENSES 173 034 100. 540 1.5
Percentages may not add due to rounding.

In general, the Authority s expenses remained fairly constant between fiscal year 2001 and 2002
increasing by 1.5% in total. Notable differences between the years include:

Solid Waste Operations increased by $5.4 million primarily due to annual contractual
increases to the operators of the resource recovery facilities and plant upgrades to complywith stricter emission regulations. 
Maintenance and utilities expenses decreased $493 000 fi:om fiscal year 2001 to 2002 or
12.1 % due to slightly less expended for construction projects in fiscal year 2002.

Landfill closure and post-closure costs decreased 28.1 % or $331 000 due to the closure of
the Shelton and Wallingford hindfiIls.

Other (revenues) expenses, shows the net difference between investment income, bond
expense, property gains . and losses, GAAP offsets and use of prior years retained
earnings, among others. This .amount decreased by $553 000 from fiscal year 2001 to
2002 due primarily toa $591 000 decrease in the use of prior years retained earnings for
the Wallingford project.

ENRON and CO V ANTA EXPOSURE

As part of the national deregulation of the energy industry and the resultant energy contract buy-

downs, the Authority entered into agreements with Enron Power Marketing, Inc. ("Enroll") and
the Connecticut Light & Power Company ("CL&P") on April 30, 2001 that, among other
obligations, required Enron to pay the Authority a monthly $2.2 million "capacity charge" for the
purchase of steam and an additional charge for conversion of steam into electricity from its Mid-
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Connecticut facility. As part of this transaction
, Enron received $220 million and the Authority

received $59.972 million during fiscal year 2001. Enron filed for bankruptcy on 
December 22001 and has not made its monthly capacity, electricity or other payments due since that time.

The Authority, in an effort to generate adequate revenues to pay debt service on its bonds
, hasincreased the Mid-Connecticut tipping fees, is pursuing remedies in bankruptcy court with the

State s Attorney General, negotiating with CL&P and other parties for increased electric rates
and has applied for licensure as an electric supplier in the State.

Also Covanta Mid~Conn. . Inc., the operator of the steam and electricity production components
of th~ Mid-Connecticut facility, and Covanta Projects of Wallingford

, L.P. , the operator andlessee of the Wallingford facility, filed for bankruptcy on Aprlll
, 2002. Thus far the bankruptcyhas not affected Covanta s operation of either the Mid-Connecticut or Wallingford facilities.

The State is obligated to maintain the minimum capital reserve for the Mid-
Connecticut bonds tothe extent the Authority Uses monies in the special capital reserve fund to pay debt service on the

Authority' s outstanding bonds. It is unclear at this time whether there win be any need for the
State to make payments to maintain the minimum capital reserve requirement. During April
2002, the General Assembly passed Public Act No. 02-46 which authorizes a loan by the State to
the Authority of up to $115 rnillion to support the repayment of the Authority'

s debt for the Mid-Connel;ticut facility. No amounts were drawn down through June 30
, 2002.

SUMMARy OF CASH FLOW ACTIVITIES

The following shows a summary of the major sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents for
the past two fiscal years. Cash 

equivalimts are considered cash-on-hand, bank deposits andhighlyJiquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FWWS

(In Thousands)
Fiscal Years Ending June 302002 2001

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities
Cash flow from capital and related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

$ 17 209
165

(44 933)

(23 559)

$ 110 085
994

(73 192)

887
Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year

End of year
177 705

154 146

131 818

177 705

The Authority s available cash and cash equivalents decreased $23.6 million from $177. 7 millionat the end of fiscal year 2001 to $154. 1 million at the end of fiscal year 2002 due to the negative
flow of funds used by operations and decreased investment income

, as described below:

Cash flow from operating activities for the fiscal years as indicated above represents the net
difference between cash received for services and cash paid to suppliers. For the fiscal year
2002, this net figure was $92.8 million less than 2001 and was mainly due to an $81.3
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million decrease in cash received fi:om providing services representing the $66.6 miilioti
settlement income received in fiscal year 2001 and approXimately $19.6 million in
uncollected capacity and energy payments due from Enron (see Enron and Cowmta Exposure
section and Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements section).

Cash flow from investing activities represents the net difference between interest on

investments of Authority funds and accounts plus any maturing investments versus the
purchase of investment securities. For the fiscal year 2002, this net figure was $4.8 million
less than 2001 and was mainly due to a decrease of $3.6 million in investment income
representing the steady decline in interest rates experienced in the market during the year.

Cash flow from canital and related financing activities represents the net difference between
total proceeds from bond or equipment sales and total costs involved with bonding, landfil1
closure and postclosure, debt service expenses, and capital acquisition. For the fiscal year
2002, this net figure improved by $28.2 million over 2001 and was mainly due to a
combination of no proceeds from bond sales during 2002 and a $43.1 million decreaSe in
capital acquisition costs. During fiscal year 2001 , capital acquisition costs were $50.
inillion and represented Mid-Connecticut purchases related to the Non-Project Venture
generation equipmeJitand buildings; the construction of an air processing system; and the
construction of a maneuvering hall for delivering solid waste.

LONG-TERM DEBT ISSUANCE, ADMINISTRATION and CREDIT RATINGS

The fol1owing table highlights the municipal bond issued and outstanding as of the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2002. Also included is the outstanding credit rating for each issue.

STATUS OF OUTSTANDING BONDS ISSUED AS OF FISCAL YEAR 2002

Sblldud& ORIGINAL
P.... Moody', SCRF Maturity AMOUNT PRINCIPAL

SERIES Rati.. Rati.o BACKED DATED

.....

BONDED . OUTSTANDING

MlD-CONNECTICUT PROJECT

1991 Sene. A - RecycliDg 08115/91 11115/01 735 000
1996 Sooo A-Project RefiDanciDg 08/20196 11115112 2O9.67S,000 193,170.000
1997 Series A- ProjectCoDSIntctio. 07/15/97 11115106 8,000 000 8110,0002001 Series A - Project CoDStmction Boa3 01/18101 11115/12 13,710.000 13210000

2lI 260 000
BRIDGEPORT PROJECT

1991 Series A. RecycliDg 08115/91 1/1/02 480 000
1999 smes A- Project RefiDanciDg 08/31/99 1/1109 141,695 000 111 790.0002000 smes A- RefinaDCiDg (portial Ins"""",,) A+/AAA AJ/- 08101/00 111109 9,70!1,000 7 875 000

119665000
WALLINGFORD PROJECT

1991 SerIesOnc- Subonlinatcd 08101/91 II/IS/OS 000 000 000,000
1998 Series A- Projcc'Refiuancmg 10/23/98 11/15/08 790,000 29100000

33100000
SOUfHEAST PROJECT

1989 Series A- Project Refinancmg 06101/89 IIIISilI 935,000 2,630 0001998 Series A - ProjcclRefiDanciDg AAA 08118198 1II15/IS 87,650,000 77, loW,000CRRA.cORPORATE CREDIT REVENUE BONDS
1992 Sories A - Corp. Credil 09/01/92 II/ISm 30,000,000 30,000,0002001 Sooo A - American Ref-Fuel Company ILC-I 11115/01 11115/15 750 000 750,0002001 Sene. A - American Ref-Fue' Company ILC-n Ban2 11115/01 IIIIS/15 750 000 6150000.

123 270000

TOTAL BONDS OUTSTANDING 870 000 487295000

OurSTANDING SCRF BONDS
$277 820 000
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The ratings of the Authority s outstandingbonds were unchanged during fiscal year ending June
2002 with one exception: the Mid-Connecticut System Subordinated Revenue Bonds, 2001

Series A. Of the three outstanding Mid-Connecticut system bond issues, the 2001 Series Abonds are subordinated debt that is not secured by the State
s special capital reserve fund and donot carry municipal bond insurance. Moody s Investor Service downgraded this series of bonds

twice, due to the Authority s Enron exposUre at the Mid-Connecticut facility (see Enron andCovanta Exposure section and Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements section). The other
major bond rating agency, Standard & Poor , maintains its "A" rating on the bonds.

ronolo~ of Mid-Connecticut 2001 Series A Bonds Dowul:l'ades by Moody
s Investors Service

Currently Original DowngradeBond Series Original Issue Outstanding Moody Eating on Downgrade RatingPar Amount Par Amount Rating March 11 on March 27, 2002($000) ($000) 2002
200lSenes A $ 13 210 $ 13 210 Baal Baa3(Subordinated)

with negative outlook

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 the following bond issues were refinanced:

Refinancing Original IssueProject Series Purpose Issuance Date Par Amount
$000Southeast 1998 Series A Refinance November IS

2001 750Southeast 1998 Series A Refinance November 15

2001 750

These bonds represent a refinancing of two series of bonds for which the Authority serves as a
conduit issuer. As such, they are not carried on the Authority books

, nor does the Authority pay, debt service on these bonds.
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Service payments receivable

Accounts receivable

Accrued interest and other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Invento!)'

Total Unrestricted Assels

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

(In Thousands)

EXHIBIT I

2002 2001

$69,705 $74 879
683 876
411 086
380 550

1,519 908
3,543 536

241 99,835

441 102 826
659
239 587

85,339 103 413

179 580 203 248

229 151 237 665
11,480 665

240 631 250 330

$420 211 $453 578

$18,373 $20 802
1,317 816

27,447 27,583

47,137 201

220 606 238 980
21,548 21,344

242 154 260 324

289,291 311 525

037 698

786 514
097 841

103 883 119 355

130 920 142 053

$420 211 $453 578

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accrued interest receivable

Total Restricted Assets

Total Corrent Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets, net
Development and Bond Issuance Costs

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of bonds payBble, net
Current portion of closure and postclosure care oflandfills

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Total Corrent Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds payable, net

Closure and postclosure care of landfills

Total Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, net of Relatcd Debt

Restricted

Unrestricted
Total Restricted and Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accnmpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR TIlE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

(In Thousands)

EXIllBIT II

Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority

Operating Revenues
Service charges:

Members

Other
Energy generation

Ash disposal fees
Other income
Total operaIing n:venues

2002 2001

$76 634 $74 606
27,389 100

246 55,110
945 721

299 981
157,513 171 518

130 051 124 624
16,975 710

565 058
847 178
619 196

158 057 153 766

(544) 752

4,388 322
66,841

(14 456) (15 776)
(521) (1,074)

(10 589) 58,313

(11 133) 065

142 053 988

$130 920 $142 053

Operating Expenses
Solid waste operations

DepreciaIion and amortization
Maintenance and utililies
Closnn: and postelosun: care ofiandfills

Project administration
Total operating expenses

Operating (Loss) Income

Non-Operating (Expenses) and Income
Investment income
Settlement income

Bond interest expense
Other
Total Non-Operaling (Expenses) and Income

Net Assets

(Decrease) Increase in Net Assets

Total Net Assets, beginning of year

Total Net Assets, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part oUbese "naneial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2002 AND 2001

(In Thousands)
EXHIBIT III

2002 2001

$161 953 $243 343
(140 966) (128 627)

(559) 150)
219) 481)
209 110 085

842 461

889
(677) (356)
165 994

084
255

(112)
(599)

140) 011)
(13 970) (15 224)
(21 498) (27 733)

484) (50 575)
(44 837) (73 112)

(96) (80)
(96) (80)

(23 559) 887

177,705 131 818

$154 146 $177 705

($544) $17 752

841
789 464
187 246
847 178

(559) 150)

325) 419
171 794

(7) (533)
193 (68)

(611) 229

870
$17,209 $110 085

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received /fom providing services
Cash pnid 10 suppliers
Cash paid to municipalities for rebates
Cash paid to employees
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on inveshnents
Proceeds &om sale and maturities of inveshnent securities
Purchase of inveshnent securities
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activiiies

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Finaneing Activities
. Proceeds &om sale ofbonds
Proceeds &om disposal of equipment
Refunding of debt
Bond issuance costs incurred
Payment oflandfill closure and postclosure care liabilities
Interest paid on bonds

Principal paid on bonds
Acquisilion and construction of capital assets
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Finaneing Activities
Other interest and. fees

Net Cash Used for Non-Capital Financing Activilies

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, ending of year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:

Operating (loss) income
Adjushnents to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Settlement income
Depreciation of property, plant and eqnipment
Amortization of development and bond. issnance costs
Provision for closure and postclosure care oflandfills
Othcr nonoperating revenues

Rebate 10 municipalities
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest and other receivables
Inventory
Service paymcntsreceivable

Prepaid expenses
(Decrease) Increase in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

art of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30 , 2002 AND 2001

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Entity and Servi~es

The Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority
(Authority) is a body politic and corporate, created in
.1973 by the State Solid Waste Management Services
Act, constituting Chapter 446e of the Connecticut
General Statutes. The Authority is public
instrumentality and political subdivision of the State
of Connecticut (State) and is included as a component
unit in the State s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report. The Authority Board of Directors consistS of
thirteen full members and eight ad-hoc members.
The Governor of the State appoints three ful\
members and al\ eight ad-hoc members- Eight full
members are appointed by the State legislature and
two ful\ members are ex-officio- The Treasurer of the
State approves the issuance of all Authority bonds
and notes. The State is contingently liable to restore
deficiencies for certain Authority bonds. The
Authority has no taxing power.

The Authority has responsibility for implementing
solid waste disposal and resourceS recovery systems
and facilities throughout the State in accordance with
the Sutte Solid Waste Management Plan. To
accomplish its purposes, the Authority is empowered
to determine the location of and construct solid waste
management .projects, to own, operate and maintain
waste management projects or to make provisions for 

operation and maintenance by contracting with
private industry. The Authority is required to be self-
stifficient in its operation; that is, revenues from user
services and sales of products, such as elecIricity,
cover the cost of fulfilling the Authority's mission.

The Authority is comprised of four comprehensive

solid waste disposal systems, a Non-Project Ventures
group of accounts and an Administrative Pool. Each
of the operating systems has a unique legal
contractual, fmancial and operational structure
described as fol\ows:

Mid-Connecticut Pro ect

The Mid-Connecticut Project consists of a 2 710 ton
per day refuse derived fuel Resources Recovery
Facility located in Hartford, Connecticut,. four
transfer stations, the Hartford Landfill, the Ellmgton
Landfill and a Regional Recycling Center located in
Hartford, Connecticut This system of facilities
provides solid waste disposal services to seventy

Connecticut municipalities through service contract
arrangements. . The Authority owns the. Resources
Recovery Facility, the transfer stations, the Ellington
Landfil\ and the container-processing portion of the
Regional Recycling Center. The Authority leases the
land for the Essex transfer station and paper
processing portion of the Regional Recycling Center.
The Authority controls the Hartford Landfill under a
long-term lease with the City of Hartford. The
. Authority leases the paper processing facility of the
Regional Recycling Center toa private vendor.
Private vendors under various operating contracts
conduct operation of the . facilities. A1\ revenue
generated by the facilities accrues to the Authority.
Certain operating. contracts have provisions for
revenue sharing with a vendor if prescribed operating
parameters are . achieved. The Authority has
responsibility for all debt issued in the development
of the Mid-Connecticut system.

Brideenort Proiect

The Bridgeport Project consists of a 2 250 ton . per
day mass bum Resources Recovery Facility l?"ated in
Bridgeport, Connecticut, eight transfer stations, the
Shelton Landfill, the Waterbury Landfill and a
Regional Recycling Center located in Stratford,
Connecticut. The Bridgeport Project provides solid
waste disposal services to eighteen Connecticut
I))unicipalities in Fairfield and New Haven Counties
through service contract arrangements. The
Authority holds title to all facilities in the Bridgeport
system. The Resources Recovery Facility is leased to
a private vendor under a long-term sales-type
arrangement nntil December 2008, with several
renewal option provisions. The private vendor h

beneficial ownership of the facility through this
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arrangement. The vendor is obligated to pay for the
costs of the facility including debt service (other than
Ihe portion al1ocable to AnIhority pUlposes for which
the AuIhority is responsible). The Authority derives

its revenues from service fees charged to member
municipalities and other system users. The AuIhority
pays the vendor a contractual1y specified disposal fee.
Energy and nonmember town revenues accrue to Ihe
vendor. .

WaUin!!ford Project

The Wallingford Project consists of a 420 ton per day
mass bum Resources Recovery Facility located in
Wallingford Connecticut and the Wal1ingford
Landfill. Five Connecticut municipalities in New
Haven County are provided solid waste disposal
services by this system through service contract
arrangements. The Authority leases the Wallingford
Landfil1 and owns the Resources Recovery Facility.
The Resources Recovery Facility is leased to a
private vendor under a long-term arrangement. The
private vendor has beneficial ownership of the facility
through this arrangement. The vendor is responsible
for operating the facility and servicing the debt (other
than the portion alIocable to Authority purposes for

which the Authority is responsible). The project'
revenues.are"primarily service fees charged to users
and fees for elecIric energy generated. The AuIhority
pays \he vendor a contractual1y detennined service
fee.

Southeastern Project

The Southeastern Project consists of a 690 ton per
day mass bum Resources Recovery Facility located in
Preston, Connecticut and the Montvil1e LandfiII. The
system provides solid waste disposal services to
sixteen . Connecticut municipalities in the eastern
portion of the State through service contract
arrangements. The Authority owns the Resources
Recovery Facility. It is leased to a private vendor
under a long-term lease. The private vendor has
beneficial ownership of the facility through . this
arrangement. The vendor is obligated to operate and
maintain the facility and service the debt (oIher than

the portion al1ocable to Authority pmposes for which
the Authority is responsible). The AuIhorityderives
revenues from service fees charged to participating
municipalities and pays the vendor a service fee for
the disposal service. ElecIric energy and nonmember
town revenues accrue to Ihe vendor wiIh certain

contractualIy prescribed credits to the service fee for
these revenue types.

Nou-Project Ventures

In conjunction with the deregulaiion of the State
elecIric industry, the Authority currently owns four
Prat( & Whitney Twin-Pac peaking gas turbines, and
certain land and asset acquired from the Connecticut
Light & Power Company ("CL&P"). An operating
and license agreement was entered into with CL&P '
operate the gas turbines. Operating and maintenance
agreements were entered into with Northeast
Generation Services Company to operate the gas
turbines and with Covanta Mid-Conn, Inc. to operate
the steam turbines. Some or all of the Non-Project
assets may be incorporated into the Mid-Connectieut
Project.

Administrative Pool

The Authority has an Administrative Pool in which
the costs of central administration are accumulated.

These costs are allocated to the Authority' s projects
and non-project ventures group based on time
expended.

B. Adoption of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No, 34

On July I , 2001 , the Authority adopted GASB
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management Discussion and Analysis - for State and
Local Governments. The adoption of Statement No.
34 required the Authority to make several changes to
the presentation of its basic financial statements in

addition to requiring the presentation of the
Authority' s Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). MD&A is considered to be required
supplemental information and precedes the fmancial
statements. The 200 I fmancial statements have been

restated to conform to the current year presentation.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and
Basis of Presentation 
The accounts of the Authority are organized as
Enterprise Funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted

for by a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues
and expenses.
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Enterprise funds are established to account for
operations Ihat are fmanced and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the
intent is that the costs of providing goods or services
on a continuing basis are fmanced or recovered

primarily through user charges.

Enterprise funds are accounted for on the flow of

economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred. Interest on revenue bonds, used to fmance
the construction of certain assets, is capitalized during
the construction period net of interest earned on the
investment of unexpended bond proceeds.

The financial statements are presented in accordance
with Alternative #1 under Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, and Ihe
AuIhority follows (I) all GASB pronouncements and
(2) Financial Accounting Standards Board Statemel!ts
and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins issued
on or before November 30, 1989, except those which
. conflict with a GASB pronouncement-

D. Estimates

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to
make estimates and asswnptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the balance sbeets and the reported amounts
of revenues arid expenses during the reporting period.
Such estimates are subsequently revised as deemed
necessary when additional information becomes
available. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of CasbFlows, all
unresIricted and restricted highly liquid investments

and those with rnaturities of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

F. Receivables

Receivables are shown net of an allowance for the
estimated portion that is not expected to be collected.

The Authority performs ongoing credit evaluations
and generally reqnires a guarantee of payment form
of collateral. Service payments receivable are stated

net of an allowance for the estimated portion that is
not expected to be collected of $220 000 at June 30
2002 and 2001.

G. Inventory

Inventory is valued at Ihe lower of cost (flTSt.inlflTSt
out) or market.

H. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Gains or losses
on sales of investments are determined using the

specific identification method.

Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in the
year the interest is earned, unless capitalized as an
offset to capitalized interest expense on assets
acquired with tax-exempt debt-

I. Restricted Assets

Under provisions of various bond indentures and
certain other agreements, resIricted assets are used for
debt service, special capital.reserve funds and other
debt service reServe funds, development, construction
and operating costs.

J. Development Costs

Costs incurred during the development stage of an
Authority project, including, but not limited to, initial
planning; permitting and bond administration costs
are capitalized. When the project begins commercial
operation, the costs are amortized using the straight-
line meIhod Over twenty to twenty-five year periods~

At June 30, 2002 and 2001 , accumulated amortization
of development costs for the projects is as follows: 

2001

Mid-Connecticut 336 179
Wallingford 683 400
SouIheastem 4.516 4124

Total
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K. Capital Assets

Capital asseis with a useful life in excess of one year
are capitalized at historical cost. Depreciation of
exhaustible fIXed assets is charged as an expense
against operations. Depreciation h~ been provided
over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives of landfills are
based on the estimated years of available disposal
capacity. The estimated useful lives of other capital
assets are as follows:

Capital assets I Years

Resources Recovery Buildings

Other BuiJdings

Resources Recovery Equipment

Gas and Steam Turbines 10-

Recycling Equipment

Rolling Stock and Automobiles

Office and Other Equipment

Roadways

L. Other Financing

The Authority has issued several bonds pursuant to
Indenture Agreements with a Trustee to fund the

construction of waste processing facilities . by
independent contractors/operators. These bonds are
payable ftom a pledge of revenues derived primarily
nnder Lease. or Loan Agreements between the

Authority and the operators.

The Authority. does not become involved in the
construction activities or the repayment of the debt
related to the waste processing facilities (other than
the portion allocable to Authority purposes). A
Trilsteeadministers debt service. The Authority has

not guaranteed repayment of debt service in the event
of default; therefore, the Authority does not record
the debt or the related capital lease receivable in its
fmancial state'1'ents.

The portion of all bond issues allocable to Authority
purposes is recorded as long-term debt.

M. Compensated Absences

The Authority's liability for vested accumulated
unpaid vacation, sick pay and other employee benefit
amounts is recorded on an accrual basis.

N. Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds that are
atIributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Unreserved net assets represent the net assets
available to finance future operations or for
disIribution.

Reservations of net assets are limited to outside third
party resIrictions and represent the net assets that
have been legally identified for specific purposes.
Reserved retained earnings at June 30, 2002 and 2001
are summarized as foIlows:

Reserved Net Assets
2002 I(OOO' 2001

Debt prmclpal payment $11 694 $13 095

Operating and maintenance 336 245

Equipment replacement 185 098

Regional recycling center

equipment 871 367

LandfiIl custodian accounts 679 671

Mercury Public AwareneSs ---,--ll

Total
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2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
INvESTMENTS

The Connecticut General Statutes authorize the
Authority to invest funds in obligations of the United
States or any state or other tax-exempt political
subdivision under certain conditions. Funds may also
be deposited in the Short Term Investment Fund

(STIF) administered by the Office of the Treasurer of
the State.

STIF is an investment pool of short-tenn money
market instruments that may include adjustable-raie
federal agency and foreign government securities
whose interest rates vary directly with short-tenn
money market indices and generaIly are reset daily,
monthly, quarterly. and semi-annuaIly. The
adjustable-rate securities have similar exposnres. to
credit and legal risks as fixed-rate securities from the
same issuers. The fair value of the position in the
pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

The Authority'~ primary investment tools are STIF
and treasury securities.

A. Deposits

At June 30, 2002 and 2001 , the carrying amounts of
the Authority deposits were $2 586 000 and

439 000, respectively, and the bank balances were
$5,401 000 and $3 075 000, respectively. Of the
bank balances, Federal Depository Insurance covered
at risk category I , $200 000 and $100 000, at June

, 2002 and . 200 I , respectively. The remaining bank
balances of $5 201 000 and $2,975 000 at June 30
2002 and 2001 , respectively, were categorized at risk
category 3.

Category 3 deposits are those bank balances which

are uninsured and are either not coIlateraIized, or
coIlateralized with securities held by the pledging
. financial institution, or by its trust department or
agent, but not in the name of the Authority. The
minimum amounts of the Authority' s category 3 bank
balances coIlateralized at June 30, 2002 and 2001
were $540 000 and $308 000, respectively. The
remaining category 3 bank balances of $4 661 000
and $2 668 000 at June 30, 2002 and 2001
respectively, were not collateralized.

The foIlowing table is a summary of GASB Statement
No. 3 deposits reconciled to Total Cash and Cash
Equivalents (unresIricted and resIricted) at June 30
2002 and 2001.

(OOO' 2001

Total Deposits

STIF

S. Treasury Open End
Mutual Fund

S. Treasury Bills (not
classified as .
investments)

Total Cash and Cash
Equiva1ents
(unresIricted and
resIricted)

2002 I

586 $1,439

146 618 172 959

942 637

---.2 670

B. Investments

Investments, under GASB. Statement No. , are

categorized to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed by the Authority at year-elld. Category I
includes investments that are insured or registered or
for which the Authority or its agent in the Authority'
name holds securities. Category 2 includes uninsured
and unregistered investments for which a
counterparty holds the securities by a counterparty'
trust department or agellt in the Authority's name.
Category 3 includes uninsured. or unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by a
counteIparty' s trust department or agent, but not in
the Authority' s name.

At June 30, 2002, investments as deemed by GASB
Statement No. 3 were U. S. Treasury Notes in the fair
value amount of $659 000 classified in Risk Category
3- At June 30, 2001 , investments, so defined, were
U.s. Treasury Bills in the amount of $670 000 (With
maturities less than 90 days classified as . cash
equivalents) classified in Risk Category 3.
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3, CAPITAL ASSETS

Co-incident with the March 2001 assignment of the
Mid-Connecticut Project Energy Contract explained
in Note 7 , the Authority purchnsed certain generation
equipment and land at the Mid-Connecticut Project
for a total value of$35 087 OOO.

A sunuruuy of capital nssets at June 30, 2002 and
2001 is presented ns follows:

Classification
(OOO's) 2002 2001

Land $27 774 $24 833

Plant 198 651 184 941

Equipmeut 192 818 193 903

Construction in progress ----.JQ 10.314

Subtotal 419 273 413 991

Less accumulated
depreciation

(190 122) (176326)

Capitatassets, net

Interest is capitalized on assets acquired. with tax-

exempt debt. The amount of interest to be capitalized
is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred
fro ' the date of borrowing until completion of the
projects with interest earned on invested proceeds
over the same period. During fiscal 2002 and 2001
there was no interest capitalized in capital nsoots.

4. LONG- TERM DEBT

The principallong-tenn obligations of the Authority
are special obligation revenue bonds issued to fmailce
the design, development and construction of
resources recovery and recycling facilities and
landfills throughout the State. These bonds are paid
solely from the revenues generated from the
operations of the projects and other receipts, accounts

and monies pledged in the respective bond
indentures.

In January 2001 , the Authority issued $13 210 000
Mid-Connecticut 2001 Series A bonds. The proceeds
were used towards the construction of (i) a
maneuvering hall fot delivering solid waste and (ii)
an air processing system at the Mid-Connecticut
facility.

In August 2000, the Authority issued $9 200 000
Bridgeport 2000 Series A bonds with an average

interest rate of 5.0%. The proceeds of the 2000
bonds, together with $1 268 000 of other Authority
funds ($1 145 000 resIricted) were deposited into an
irrevocable trust. These amounts were used to refund
$10 260 000 of Bridgeport 1989 Series A bonds
which had an average interest rate of 75%.

The Bridgeport refunding resulted in a difference of
$112 000 between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt. The amount is being
charged to interest expense through fiscal year 2009
using the proportionate-to-stated interest metIiod.
'This refunding is reducing the Authority' s total debt
service payments by $2 647 000 through fiscal 2009
and generated an economic gain (the difference
between the present values of the debt service
payments of the old and new bonds) of$755 000.

As of June 30, 2002, the Authority hns no outs!ariding
balance of the defeased Bridgeport 1985 Series A and
B bonds.

In January 1999, the Authority defeased the
Southenstem 1988 Landfill bonds which had an
outstanding principal balance of $2 445 000, by
depositing $2 573 000 ($1 689 000 of resIricted
funds) into an irrevocable trust. Debt service
payments for the defeased bonds were made from this
trust through the final maIurity date ofNovetnber 15
2000.
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The long-term debt amounts for the Projects in the
two tables above have been reduced by the deferred
loss (gain) on refunding of bonds, net of the

unamortized premium on the sale of bonds at June 30
2002 and 2001 , as follows:

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt recorded by the Authority as of June 30, 2002, including interest
payments of $80 , 198 000, are as follows: 

Total

2003 750 605 556 462 057 430

2004 512 651 327 507 034 031

2005 320 696 351 555 948 870

2006 298 761 126 609 758 552

2007 463 860 653 666 524 29, 166

2008-2012 002 672 391 255 672 132 992

2013-2016 31934 997 1205 36.136

Total lli.W, mu:zz
Interest Rates 25- 25% . 4. 55% 63- 85% 125-

Certain of the . Authority' s bonds are secured by
special capital reserve funds. Each fund is equal to
the highest annual amount of debt service remaining
on the issue. The State is contingently liable to
restore any deficiencies that exist in these funds in

anyone year in the event that the Authority must
draw from the reserve fund. Certain Authority bonds
are insured. Bond principal amounts recorded as
long-term debt at June 30, 2002 and 2001 , which are
backed by a special capital reserve fund, are as
fOllows: .

2001

Mid-Connecticut $194 565 $208 578

Bridgeport 230

Southeastern 10.051 10474

Total

Project
(Ooo'

Deferred loss (gain):
20012002 I

Mid-Connecticut 485 $4,102
Bridgeport (81) (102)
Wallingford
Southeastern 2111

Subtotal 567 461

Reduced by unamortized

premium:.
Mid-Connecticut (504) (5$6)
Bridgeport (60) (77)
Southeastern !2m (\.074\

Net Reduction M.ill
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5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE
CARE OF LANDFILLS

Federal, State and local regulations require the
Au!hority to place fInal Cover on its landfills when it
stops accepting waste (including ash) and to perfonn
certain maintenance and monitoring functions for
periods which may extend to thirty years after
closure.

GASB Statement No. 18 "Accounting for Municipal
Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care
Costs", applies to closure and postclosure care costs
which are paid near or after the date a landfill stops
aC(;epting waste. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 18, the Authority reports a portion of

Project/Landfill
(Ooo'

Liability

July I
2000

Expense

these closure and postclosure care costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill
capacity used as of the balance sheet date. 'This
amount increases the liabiHty on the balance sheet for
closure and postclo.sure care of landfills. These costs
are generally paid when the landfill is closed and may
continue for up to thirty years !hereafter. The liability
for these costs is reduced when these costs are
actually incurred.

Actual costs may be higher due to inflation or
changes in permitted capacity, technology or
regulation.

The closure and postclosure care expenses and the
amounts paid or accrued for fiscal 2001 and 2002 for
the landfills, are presented separately in the following
table:

Paid or
Accrued

Liability

June 30

2001
Expense

Paid or
Accrued

Liability

Juue 30
2002

Mid-Connecticut:

Hartford 312 ($199) 113 $193 306
Ellington 320 1\4 (235) 199 393 (211) 381

Bridgeport:

Shelton 381 985 551) 815 404 506) 713
WateIbwy 607 (91) 516 (4) 512

Wallingford 5.372
...IDll !llil ilW -1ill1 3955

Total WlJI
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The estimated remaining costs to be recognized in the future as closure and postclosure care Of landfills expense, the
percent oflandfill capacity used and the remaining years of life for open landfills at June 30, 2002, are scheduledbelow: .

ProjectlLandfill Remaining Costs to Capacity Used Estimated Years of Remaining
(Ooo' be Recognized Landfill Area Landfill Area Life

Ash Other Ash Other

Mid-Connecticut-
Hartford 451 42% 95% 1.0

Bridgeport-Waterbury 246 68% 13.

Total

The State of Connecticut Department of
Enwonmental Protection (DEP) requires that certain
financial assurance mechanisms be maintained by the
Authority to ensure payment of closure and

postclosure costs related to certain landfills.
Additionally, DEP requires that the Authority budget
for anticipated closure costs for Mid-Connecticut
Hartford Landfill.

Trost accounts were held for fmancial assurance

purposes. The Mid-Connecticut Ellington Landfill
account was valued at $407 000 and $402 000 at June

, 2002 and 2001 , respectively. The Bridgeport
Waterbury Landfill account was valued at $145 000
and $143 000 at June 30, 2002 and 2001
respectively. The Wallingford Landfill account was
valued at $127 000 and $126 000 at June 30, 2002
and 2001 , respectively. These trust accounts. are
reflected as resIricted assets on the balance sheet.

At June 30, 2002 and 2001 , a letter of credit for

$305 000 was outstanding for fmancial assurance of
the Bridgeport Shelton Landfill. No funds were
drawn on this letter during fiscal year 2002.

In addition to the above accounts and letters of credit
the Authority satisfies certain fmancial assurance

requirements at June 30, 2002 and 2001 by meeting
specified criteria pursuant to Section 258.74 of the
federal Enviromnental Protection Agency Subtitle D
regulations.

6. ~JOR CUSTO~ERS

Steam and electricity revenues from the CL&P
totaled 12% and 26% of the Authority's operating
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001
respectively.

Service charges revenues from Waste Management of
Connecticut, Inc. totaled II % and 10% of the
Authority' s operating revenues for the years ended
June 30, 2002 and 2001 , respectively.

7. SETILEMENTINCOME

In March 2001 , CL&P assigued the Mid-Connecticut
Project energy contract to Enron Power Marketing
Inc.. The Authority and Enron Power Marketing Inc.
amended the contract to include payment for the
purchase of capacity and energy from the. Mid-
Connecticut Project. This transaction yielded
$59,972 000 of settlement income in the Non-Project
Ventures group of accounts.

In June 2000, the Authority entered into an Operating
and License Agreement with CL&P to operate certain
gas turbines. The proceeds from the operation of the
units were held in escrow until March 2001. In
March 2001 , in conjunction with the purchase
discussed in Note 3, the escrowed proceeds of

619 000 were transferred to the Authority as
settlement income in the Non-Project Ventures gronp
of accounts.



Connecticut Resources ReCQvery Authority

During both fiscal 2001 and 2000
, the Authority

received $250 000 from the Southeastern Project'
regional authority. These payments resulted from
agreements entered into in fiscal 1996 between the
regional authority and private entities.

8. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Authority is the Administrator of its 401(k)
Employee Savings Plan. This deemed conIribution
retirement plan covers all eligible staff members. To
be eligible, the staff member must .be 18 years of age
and have been a full time employee for six months.

Under the Amended and Restated 401(k) Employee
Savings Plan, effective July I, 2000, Authority
conIributions are 5 percent of payroll with a dollar for
dollar match of employees ' conIributions up to 5
percent Authority contributions for the years ended
June . , 2002 and 2001 amounted $299 000 and
$279 000, . respectively. Employees contributed
$252 000 to, the plan in fiscal 2002 and $240 000 in
fiscal 2001.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss
related to: torts; theft of, . damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees;
and, natural disasters. The Authority purchases
commercial insurance for all insurable risks of loss.
There were no significant reductions in insurance
coverage from the prior year. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

The Authority is a member of the Connecticut
Interlocal Risk Management Agency (CIRMA), an
unincorporated association of Connecticut local public
agencies, which was formed in 1980 by the
Connecticut Coriference of Municipalities for the

purpose of establishing and administering an interloeal
risk management program pursuant to the provisions of
Section 7-479a et Seq. of the Connecticut General

Statutes.

The Authority is a member of CIRMA's Workers
Compensation Pool, a risk sharing pool, which was
begun on July I , 1980. The Workers ' Compensation

Pool provides statutory benefits pursuant to the
provisions of the Connecticut Workers
Compensation Act. The coverage is a guaranteed
cost program. The deposit contn'butions (premiums)
paid were $27 000 and $16 000 for the years ended
June 30, 2002 and 2001 , respectively. The premiums
are subject to payroll audit at the close of the

coverage period. CIRMA' s Workers ' Compensation
Pool retains $750 000 per occurrence and purchases

reinsurance above that amount which is unlimited.

10. COMMITMENTS

The Authority has various operating leases for office
space, land, landfills and office equipment. For the
years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 , operating lease
payments totaled $949 000 and $1 340 000
respectively. Future minimum rental commitments
under noncancelable operating leases as of June 30
2002 are as follows:

Fiscal Year
(OOO' Amount

2003 $919

2004 912

2005 934

2006 947

2007 950

Thereafter --.LQQ2

Total

The Authority leases the Bridgeport Regional
Recycling Center and its equipment to . a private
vendor. Under this operating lease, the Authority
earned rental income of $1 093 000 and $1 115 000
for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001
respectively. The cost of the plant and equipment

under lease is $3 025 000 and $1 909 000
respectively, at June 30 , 2002. The carrying value at
June 30, 2002 of this plant and equipment under lease
is $1 607 000 and $69 000, respectively. The future
minimum rental income on non-caucelable leases at
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June 30, 2002 is $6 395 000 due in fiscal years 2003
through 2008 in equal annual amounts of$ I ,066 000.
During fiscal 200 I , the Auihority contracted to
construct an air processing system for the Mid-
Connecticut facilitY. At June 30, 2002, the remaining
amount to complete the construction contract was
$124 000.

In June 2001 , the Authority authorized the purchase of
three parcels adjacent to ' the Mid-Connecticnt
Ellington Landfill for the approximate amount of
$900 000. The purchase of all three parcels had
occurred in fiscal 2002. The Administration Project
provided the funds for these purchases.

In December 2000, the Authority authorized
purchasing land adjacent to the Wallingford landfill
for approximately $1 850 000 plus legal fees. The
purchase had occurred in fiscal 2002.

11, OTHER FINANCING

The Authority has issued several bonds pursuant to
Indenture Agreements to fund the construction of

waste processing facilities by an independent
contractor/operator. The revenue bonds are issued by

the Authority to lower the cost of borrowing for the
contractor/operator of the projects. The Authority
does not become involved in the construction
activities, and construction requisitions by the
contractor are made from various trustee accounts.

The Authority does not become involved in the
repayment of debt on these issues except for the
portion of the bonds allocable to Authority purposes.

In the event of default, and except in cases where the
State has a contingent liabilitY discussed below, the

payment of debt is not .guaranteedby the Authority or
the State. Therefore, the Authority does not record the
assets and liabilities related to these bond issues in its
fmancial statements. The amounts of these bond issues
outstanding at June 30; 2002 (excluding portions
allocable to AuthoritY purposes) are as follows:

ProiectlOOO' I Amount

Bridgeport" 1999 Series A

WaIlingford - 1998 Series A

Southeastern -

1992 Series A (Corp. Credit)

1998 Series A (project)

2001 Series A (American Ref-Fuel
Company LLC ~ I)

2001 Series A (American Ref-Fuel
ComPany LLC - II)

Total

$107.560

24.644

000

555

750

6750

112055

The Southeastern 1998 Series A Project bond issue is
secured by a special capital reserve fund. The State is
contingently liable for any deficiencies m the special
capital reserve fund for this bond issue, as explained
in Note 4. 

12, SERVICE CONTRACT
COMMITMENTS

The Authority . has various contracts with the
operators of the waste processing .and power block
facilities, regional recycling centers, transfer stations
and landfiIls under various terms and Conditions
expiring through November 2015. Genemlly,
operating charges are derived from various factors
such as tonnage processed, energy produced and

certain pass-through operating costs.

The approximate amount of contract operating charges
included in solid waste operations and maintenance

and utilities expenses for the years. ended June 30
2002 and 2001 are as foIlows:
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Project (OOO's) I 20012002 I

Mid-Connecticut

Bridgeport

Wallingford

Southeastern

Non-Project Ventures

Total

Operating revenues

Depreciation and
amortization
expense

Operating income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Operating transfers:

Out

Capital Assets

Additions

Deletions

Bonds payable
(including CUITent

portion)

Total net assets

Net working capital
(deficiency)

Total Assets

$38 544

943

483

840

141

Mid-
Connecticut

Project

$71 799

330

054)

(13 670)

407

025)

208 279

929

835

$259 341

$38 898

450

11,390

978

Bridge-
port

Project

$45 165

073

(931)

(286)

962 080

245

697

975

$33 694

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Authority has four operating eilterprise funds
which are intended to be self-supporting through
service . fees charged to operate resources recovery
and recycling facilities. The Authority also has a
non-project ventures enterprise fund, established in
fiscal 2001 , that is intended to be self-supporting
primarily through certain energy revenues. In
addition, the Authority has an Administrative Pool.

Financial segment information is presented below as
of and for the year ended Juue 30, 2002.

Walling-
ford

Project

Non- Adminis-
Project trative

Ventures Pool

$21 573 $10 462

324

207

448

(1,774)

284)830

980

(0)

404

423

051

815

909

$33 527

130

$19 712

514

563

273

156

(246)

023

065

$63 023

237

(265)

879)

042)

033

529

Total
2002

$0 $157 513

975

(544)

(I 1 133)

042)
042

553

(2) 273)

238 979

130 920

$10 824 $420 21\

132 443
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14. CONTINGENCIES

In September 2001 , the Authority began to arbitrate a
vendor s $5 000 000 claim for costs over the
contracted amount 10 conslIUct the Mid.Connecticut
air processing system. At present, the parties are
attempting to settle the matter without future
arbitration. The Authority has recognized a liability
of$I 084,000.

In May 2001 , Bridgeport Resco filed a demand for
arbitration seeking a declaratory judgment that it is
entitled to approximately $9 000 000 of savings from
an August 1999 bond refInancing. The parties are
attempting to settle this claim. In the opinion of
management and its outside counsel, the amount of

. any liability is currently not determinable.

In August 1999, the Authority terminated an
operating contract with a former operator of the
methane collection system at the Shelton landfill for
system failure and methane gas leak. In November
1999, the operator was placed in the involuntary
bankruptcy and. then med an adversary proceeding

against the Authority for improperly terminating the

contract and is seeking damages in excess of

800 000 and punitive damages in an unspecified
amount The Authority has . denied all material
allegations and has counterclaimed for breach of
contract, negligence statutory violations and
declaratory relief; The Authority seeks declaratory

relief, compensatory damages, indemnification and
punitive damages. The Irial on liability alone is
scheduled for the end of October 2002. Management
believes that the outcome of the above matter will not
have a material adverse effect on the Authority'
fInancial position.

The Authority is subject to numerous federal state
and local environmental and other regulatory laws

and regulation and management believes it is in
substantial compliance with all such govermnental
laws and regulations

The Authority is involved in other legal and
adniinistrative proceedings and claims of various
types. While any litigation contains an element of
uncertainty, . based upon the opinions of outside
counsel, management presently believes that the
outcome of these proceedings and claims will not
bave a material adverse effect on the Authority'
fmancial position.

15, SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

In connection with the restructuring of the state
elecIric industry, in March 2001 , Connecticut Light &
Power Company (CL&P) assigued its Mid-
Connecticut energy agreement with the Authority to
Enron Power MaJketing, Inc. (Enron). Enron . was
obligated to pay the Authority a monthly "capacity
charge" for the purchase of steam and an additional
charge for conversion of steam into elecIricity. The
capacity charge was significantly . above current
market prices. Enron filed for bankruptcy on
December 2 2001 and has not made its capacity or
elecIricity payments since that time, It is unlikely that
Enron will make its other required payments to the
Authority. Therefore, management has decided not to
record the . amounts due from Enron on the
Anthority' s fmancial statements. The Authority, in an
effort to generate adequate revenues to pay debt
service on its bonds for the Mid-Connecticut facility,
is considering renegotiating the rate at which CL&P
pays for the Authority's power, as well as pursing
remedies in bankruptcy court. The Authority has
been working with CL&P, The US Attorney's Office
and bankruptcy co\msel to resolve this issue as soon
as possible.

In addition, Covanta Mid-Connecticut, Inc.
Covanta") operator of the steam and electricity

production components of the Mid-Connecticut
facility, filed for bankruptcy on April I , 2002- Thus
far the bankruptcy bas not affected Covanta'
operation of the Mid-Connecticut facility and it
appears that Covanta will continue to operate without
any foreseeable problems relating to the bankruptcy.

During April 2002, the General Assembly passed
Public Act No. 02-46 authorizing a loan by the State to
the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority of up
to $115 million to support the repayment of the

Authority's debt for the Mid-Connecticut facility and
to minimize the amount of tipping fee increases
chargeable to the towns which use the Mid-
Connecticut facility. The Authority is looking into

ways in which to utilize these monies to repay the Mid-
Connecticut debt and to minimize the tipping fees for
Mid-Connecticut As of June 30, 201)2 , the Authority
had not drawn upon these funds.
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D
em

ographic Inform
ation

Fiscal
M

id-C
onnecticut

B
ridgeport

W
a.\H

ngfo.rd
Southeastern

Population
#of

Population
#of

Population
#of

Population
#of

Served
T

ow
ns

Served
T

ow
ns

Served
T

ow
ns

Served
T

ow
ns

1993
871,690

637,990
200, 450

247,350

1994
052,066

636,829
198

525
271,712

1995
051,197

635,384
198,870

276
605

1996
049,516

636
438

198,760
277,022

1997
005,714

636
438

198
760

277,022

1998
018,728

640
525

.
 
1
9
8

851
269

866

1999
088

026
643

194
199,295

263,715

2000
137

468
627,153

209,
877 

294
111

2001
177,063

633
372

208
360

254
715

(1) 2002
177

063
633

372
208

360
254

715

Source: D
epartm

ent ofH
ea1th Services

(1) . E
stim

ated popW
ations as of July I, 2001


